In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies

# **MR01**

170192/13

**%IRIS** Laserform

Act 2006 Particulars of a charge

		You can use the WebFiling service to file this form online. Please go to www companieshouse gov uk		
•	You may use this form to register You a charge created or evidenced by re	You may not use this form to	For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.companieshouse gov.uk	
	This form must be delivered to the Regist 21 days beginning with the day after the da delivered outside of the 21 days it will be recourt order extending the time for delivery	ejected unless it is a	321RUNL* 11/08/2014 #7	
	You <b>must</b> enclose a certified copy of the inscanned and placed on the public record	strument with this f	PANIES HOUSE	
1	Company details		For official use	
Company number Company name in full	0 8 3 8 9 9 8 4  Angel Acquisitions Limited		Filling in this form     Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals	
Company hame in full	Anger Acquisitions limited		All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *	
2	Charge creation date			
Charge creation date	$\begin{bmatrix} d_3 & d_0 & & \\ \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} m_0 & m_7 & & \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} y_2 & y_0 \\ \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} y_1 & & \\ \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} y_2 & & \\ \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} y_1 & & \\ \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} $	y 1 y 4		
3	Names of persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge			
	Please show the names of each of the per entitled to the charge	rsons, security agents or trustees		
Name	Toscafund GP Limited as Security Trustee			
	(the "Security Trustee")			
Name				
Name				
Name				
	If there are more than four names, please tick the statement below  I confirm that there are more than fou trustees entitled to the charge	,		

MR01 Particulars of a charge

4	Description	Description			
	Please give a short description of any land (including buildings), ship, aircraft or intellectual property registered (or required to be registered) in the UK which is subject to this fixed charge or fixed security	Continuation page Please use a continuation page if you need to enter more details			
Description	None None				
5	Fixed charge or fixed security  Does the instrument include a fixed charge or fixed security over any tangible or intangible (or in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box				
1	[✓] Yes □ No				
6	Floating charge	<u> </u>			
/	Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box  [✓] Yes Continue  □ No Go to Section 7  Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company?  [✓] Yes				
7	Negative Pledge				
	Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the chargor from creating any further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge? Please tick the appropriate box  [ ✓] Yes				
	□ No				

04/13 Version 1 0

# Trustee statement You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge Signature Please sign the form here Signature Signature This form must be signed by a person with an interest in the charge Trustee of This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06) This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06) This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06) This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06)

**MR01** 

MR01 Particulars of a charge

Presenter information	Important information	
We will send the certificate to the address entered below All details given here will be available on the public record. You do not have to show any details	Please note that all information appear on the public record.	
here but, if none are given, we will send the certificate to the company's Registered Office address	How to pay	
Contact name Rebecca Carwood	A fee of £13 is payable to Comp. in respect of each mortgage or c	
Company name Dickson Minto W S	on paper.	
Address 16 Charlotte Square	Make cheques or postal orders par 'Companies House'	
	Where to send	
	You may return this form to any	
Postfown Edinburgh	address. However, for expedient to return it to the appropriate ad	
County/Region           Postcode         E         H         2         4         D         F	For companies registered in Eng The Registrar of Companies, Comp Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14	
Country	DX 33050 Cardiff	
DX DX 199 Edinburgh	For companies registered in Scc	
Telephone 0131 225 4455	The Registrar of Companies, Compa	
✓ Certificate	139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Sc DX ED235 Edinburgh 1	
We will send your certificate to the presenter's address	or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)	
If given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank	For companies registered in Noi The Registrar of Companies, Comj	
✓ Checklist	Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BC	
We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.	DX 481 N R Belfast 1	
	Further information	
Please make sure you have remembered the following	For further information, please see	
The company name and number match the information held on the public Register	on the website at www companies email enquiries@companieshouse	
You have included a certified copy of the	, ,	
instrument with this form  You have entered the date on which the charge	This form is available in	
was created You have shown the names of persons entitled to	alternative format. Pleaforms page on the web	
the charge	forms page on the wet www.companieshous:	
You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8	wwww.companiconous:	
You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate		
You have signed the form		
You have enclosed the correct fee Please do not send the original instrument, it must		
be a certified copy		



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 8389984

Charge code: 0838 9984 0001

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 30th July 2014 and created by ANGEL ACQUISITIONS LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 11th August 2014

Dx

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 19th August 2014





A250\002\EH5759832.3

WE CERTIFY THAT, SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 859G
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006, THIS COPY
INSTRUMENT IS A CORRECT COPY OF
THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT

Druh, n- M-to-s.

DICKSON MINTO W.S.

DATE: 8 Agrit 2014

## COMPOSITE GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

Dated 30 JULY 2014

between

ANGEL ACQUISITIONS LIMITED

and the other companies listed in Schedule 1

and

TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED as Security Trustee

> Dickson Minto W.S. Edinburgh

# CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	. 1
2	COVENANT TO PAY	9
3	GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY	10
4	CHARGING CLAUSE	10
5	NEGATIVE PLEDGE	. 14
6	PROTECTION OF SECURITY	15
7	FURTHER ASSURANCE	. 18
8	UNDERTAKINGS	. 18
9	THE SHARES AND INVESTMENT INTERESTS	20
10	ACCOUNTS	22
11	BOOK DEBTS	. 23
12	INSURANCE	24
13	POWERS OF SECURITY TRUSTEE	25
14	APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER	27
15	APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR	30
16	APPLICATION OF MONIES	. 30
1 <i>7</i>	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	. 31
18	POWER OF ATTORNEY	33
19	PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS	34
20	PRESERVATION OF SECURITY	34
21	PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS	. 36
22	SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS . , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	. 36
23	SUSPENSE ACCOUNT	36
24	SET-OFF	. 37
25	RELEASE AND DISCHARGE	37
26	CHANGES IN SECURED LIABILITIES .	37

27	ASSIGNMENT		. 38
28	INDEMNITY		. 38
29	DISCRETION AND DELEGATION		39
30.	CALCULATIONS AND CERTIFICATES		39
31	PERPETUITY PERIOD		. 39
32	NOTICES	. •	. 40
33	COUNTERPARTS		41
34	GOVERNING LAW		41
35	JURISDICTION		. 41
SCHE	DULE 1 THE CHARGING COMPANIES		42
SCHE	DULE 2 THE SHARES		. 43
SCHE	DULE 3 THE LEGALLY MORTGAGED PROPERTY		. 44
SCHE	DULE 4 THE SPECIFIED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS.		. 45
SCHE	DULE 5 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE	3	. 46
SCHE	DULE 6 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIED A	CCOU	NT 48
SIGN	ATORIES		50

### GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

THIS COMPOSITE GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE is made the 30<sup>74</sup> day of Tucy 2014

### **BETWEEN**

- (1) THE COMPANIES listed in Schedule 1 (The Charging Companies); and
- (2) TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED a company incorporated in England and Wales (registered number 06942099) whose registered office is at 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA as agent and trustee for itself and for each of the other Secured Parties on the terms and conditions set out in the Security Trust Deed (as hereinafter defined) (in such capacity as agent and trustee hereinafter referred to as the "Security Trustee" which expression shall include each person appointed as the Security Trustee at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture or any additional security trustee appointed for the purpose of, and in accordance with, the Security Trust Deed)

### WHEREAS

- (A) The Charging Companies have entered into the Investor Loan Agreements with the Investors, pursuant to which the Investors have agreed to make available to the Charging Companies certain loans,
- (B) the Security Trustee has been appointed by the Investors and has agreed to hold the benefit of this Guarantee and Debenture in accordance with the Security Trust Deed, and
- (C) It is condition of certain of the Investor Loan Agreements that each Charging Company enters into this Guarantee and Debenture

### NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows

### 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

### 11 Definitions from Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement

Words and expressions defined in the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement or whose definitions are imported into the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement shall bear the same meaning in this Guarantee and Debenture (including, without limitation, the recitals and schedules hereto) unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context otherwise requires

### 12 Definitions

In this Guarantee and Debenture and the recitals hereto

"ACE" means ACE Equity Holdco (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (Registration Number MC-223591) and having its registered office at c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

"Ares" means Ares Capital Europe (Luxembourg) Sà r.l, incorporated in Luxembourg (Registration Number B135825) and having its registered office at 11-13 Boulevard Grande-Duchesse Charlotte, L-1331 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

"Act" means The Law of Property Act 1925

"Bridge Investor Loan Agreement" means the loan agreement dated 23 July 2014 originally between ACE and Tosca (as lenders) and the Angel Acquisitions Limited (as borrower) in respect of a loan of an original principal amount of £1,000,000, the rights of ACE under which have been assigned to Ares pursuant to a deed of assignment of loan dated on or around 30 July 2014

"Charged Property" means the property, assets or income of each Charging Company mortgaged, charged or assigned to the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture.

"Charging Companies" means each company listed in Schedule 1 (The Charging Companies) and "Charging Company" will be construed accordingly

"Debt Repayment Loan Agreement" means the loan agreement dated on or around 30 July 2014 between the Investors (as lenders) and Healthcare Locums Limited (as borrower) in respect of a loan of an original principal amount of £16,163,000 00

"Default Rate" means the aggregate of four per cent per annum over the base rate for the time being of the Bank of England

"Environment" means humans, animals, plants and all other living organisms including the ecological systems of which they form part and the following media

- (a) air (including without limitation, air within natural or man-made structures, whether above or below ground),
- (b) water (including without limitation, territorial, coastal and inland waters, water under or within land and water in drains and sewers), and
- (c) land (including without limitation, land under water).

"Environmental Law" means any applicable law or regulation which relates to

- (a) the pollution or protection of the Environment,
- (b) harm to or the protection of human health,
- (c) the conditions of the workplace, or

(d) the generation, handling, storage, use, release or spillage of any emission or substance which, alone or in combination with any other, is capable of causing harm to the Environment including, without limitation, any waste.

"Event of Default" means occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in either of the Investor Loan Agreements)

"Finance Documents" means the Investor Loan Agreements, the Investor Security Documents and any other document designated as such by each Charging Company and the Investors

"Financial Collateral Regulations" means the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations (SI 2003 No 3226)

"Floating Charge Property" means the property, assets or income of each Charging Company comprised within the floating charge created by Clause 4.4 (Floating Charge)

"Group" means each Charging Company and each of their Subsidiaries from time to time and "member of the Group" shall be construed accordingly

"Insurance Policies" means the insurance policies in which a Charging Company may from time to time have an interest and "Insurance Policy" shall be construed accordingly

"Intellectual Property Rights" means the Specified Intellectual Property Rights and any other licences and patents (including applications and the rights to apply therefor), copyrights, rights in trade marks whether registered or not, trade names, rights in service marks whether registered or not, registered designs, business names, design rights, moral rights, inventions, know-how and rights in confidential information

"Investment Interests" means all shares and stock in the capital of any company (other than the Shares), debentures, securities, certificates or deposits, interests in collective investment schemes, warrants, options and any other rights to subscribe for or acquire any such investments held by or on behalf of a Charging Company in any manner whatsoever or in which it otherwise has an interest together in all cases with all rights, including dividends and other distributions arising in relation thereto in any manner whatsoever

"Investor Loan Agreements" means the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement and the Bridge Investor Loan Agreement.

"Investor Security" means this Debenture together with such further security as may be granted by a member of the Group in favour of the Security Trustee to secure amounts due pursuant to the Investor Loan Agreements from time to time

"Investors" means Tosca and Ares or any of them as the context may require and "Investor" shall be construed accordingly

### "Legal Reservations" means

- (a) the principle that equitable remedies may be granted or refused at the discretion of a court and the limitation of enforcement by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, reorganisation, court schemes, moratoria, administration and other laws generally affecting the rights of creditors;
- (b) the time barring of claims under the Limitation Act 1980 and the Foreign Limitation Periods Act 1984, the possibility that an undertaking to assume liability for or indemnify a person against nonpayment of UK stamp duty may be void and defences of set-off or counterclaim,
- (c) the principle that in certain circumstances Security granted by way of fixed charge may be recharacterised as a floating charge or that Security purported to be constituted by an assignment may be recharacterised as a charge,
- (d) the principle that any additional interest imposed pursuant to any relevant agreement may be held to be unenforceable on the grounds that it is a penalty and thus void,
- (e) the principle that an English court may not give effect to an indemnity for legal costs incurred by an unsuccessful litigant,
- (f) the principle that the creation or purported creation of Security over any contract or agreement which is subject to a prohibition against transfer, assignment or charging, may be void, ineffective or invalid and may give rise to a breach entitling the contracting party to terminate or take any other action in relation to such contract or agreement, and
- (g) similar principles, rights and defences under the laws of any other relevant jurisdiction

"Legally Mortgaged Property" means the freehold, leasehold and other immovable property described in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*) together with the proceeds of sale thereof and all buildings and trade and other fixtures on any such property belonging to or charged to each Charging Company and machinery thereon and therein and all rights, licenses, guarantees, rents, deposits, contracts, covenants and warranties relating to any such property.

"Planning Acts" means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, the Planning (Consequential Provisions) Act 1990, the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and all regulations made or taking effect as if made thereunder in each case as from time to time amended and re-enacted by subsequent legislation and regulations.

"Property" means the Legally Mortgaged Property and any other present and future freehold or leasehold property together with the proceeds of sale thereof and all buildings and trade and other fixtures on any such property

"Plant and Equipment" means plant, machinery, computers, office and other equipment and vehicles together with the benefit of any obligations and warranties given by the manufacturer or supplier of such plant, machinery, computers, office or other equipment or vehicles and the benefit of all maintenance agreements entered into in respect of such plant, machinery, computers, office and other equipment and vehicles

"Quasi-Security" means an arrangement or transaction in terms of which a Charging Company

- sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of any of its assets on terms whereby they are or may be leased to or re-acquired by any other member of the Group,
- (b) sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of any of its receivables on recourse terms,
- (c) enters into an arrangement under which money or the benefit of a bank or other account may be applied, set-off or made subject to a combination of accounts, or
- (d) enters into any other preferential arrangements having a similar effect,

in circumstances where the arrangement or transactions is entered into primarily as a method of raising any indebtedness or of financing the acquisition of an asset

"Receiver" means a receiver and manager, receiver or administrative receiver and includes any substitute receiver, receiver and manager or administrative receiver

"Secured Liabilities" means all present and future obligations and liabilities (whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally or as principal debtor, guarantor, surety or otherwise or as the equivalent obligor under the laws of any other jurisdiction) of each Charging Company to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties (or any of them) under the Finance Documents together with

- (a) any refinancing, novation, refunding, deferral or extension of or increase in any of those obligations or liabilities,
- (b) any further advances and additional facilities which may be made by any Secured Party to any Charging Company under any agreement expressed to be supplemental to any of the Finance Documents and all interest, fees and costs in connection therewith,

- (c) any claim for damages or restitution in the event of rescission of any of those obligations or liabilities or otherwise in connection with any of the Finance Documents,
- (d) any claim against any Charging Company flowing from the recovery by any Charging Company of a payment or discharge in respect of any of those liabilities on grounds of preference or otherwise,
- (e) any amounts which would be included in any of the foregoing but for any discharge, non-provability, unenforceability or non-allowability of the same in any insolvency or other proceedings, and
- (f) all costs, charges and expenses incurred by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party in connection with the protection, preservation or enforcement of its rights against any Charging Company

"Secured Parties" means the Security Trustee and the Investors or any of them as the context requires and "Secured Party" shall be construed accordingly

"Security" means a mortgage, charge, standard security, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect.

"Security Trust Deed" means the security trust deed dated on or around the date of this Guarantee and Debenture between the Investors, the Security Trustee and the Charging Companies

"Shares" means the shares listed in Schedule 2 (*The Shares*) and all other shares held by or on behalf of a Charging Company in any member of the Group together with all rights, including dividends and other distributions, arising in relation thereto in any manner whatsoever

"Specified Accounts" means any current, deposit or other account with any bank, lender, financial institution or similar third party that may at any time be designated in writing as a Specified Account by the Charging Companies and the Security Trustee

"Specified Intellectual Property Rights" means the intellectual property rights in which a Charging Company has an interest as at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and detailed in Schedule 4 (The Specified Intellectual Property Rights)

"Subsidiary" means in relation to any company, corporation or legal entity (a "holding company"), any company, corporation or legal entity

- (a) which is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the holding company, or
- (b) more than half the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the holding company, or
- (c) which is a subsidiary of another subsidiary of the holding company,

and, for these purposes, a company, corporation or legal entity shall be treated as being controlled by another if that other company, corporation or legal entity is able to direct its affairs and/or to control the composition of its board of directors or equivalent body

"Supplemental Mortgage" means a legal mortgage or charge in respect of any other freehold or leasehold property at any time belonging to a Charging Company (other than the Legally Mortgaged Property) together with all present and future buildings and fixtures (including trade fixtures) and fixed plant machinery from time to time thereon and therein entered into pursuant to the provisions of Clause 7 (Further Assurance) in a form required by the Security Trustee.

"Tosca" means Tosca Opportunity a fund incorporated in the Cayman Islands and having its registered office at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

### 13 Interpretation

Save where the contrary is indicated, any reference in this Guarantee and Debenture to

- 131 "assets" includes present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description,
- 1.3 2. "book debts" means all present and future book and other debts and monetary and other claims due or owing to a Charging Company and the benefit of all security, guarantees and other rights enjoyed or held by a Charging Company in relation to any of them,
- 133 a "company" includes any body corporate,
- "guarantee" means any guarantee, letter of credit, bond, indemnity or similar assurance against loss, or any obligation, direct or indirect, actual or contingent, to purchase or assume any indebtedness of any person or to make an investment in or loan to any person or to purchase assets of any person where, in each case, such obligation is assumed in order to maintain or assist the ability of such person to meet its indebtedness,
- 135 "indebtedness" includes any obligation (whether incurred as principal or as surety) for the payment or repayment of money, whether present of future, actual or contingent,
- 136. "intellectual property" shall be construed as a reference to the property described in Clause 4.25,
- 137 a "person" includes any individual, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality),

- a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency or department or of any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation,
- 139 a provision of law is a reference to that provision as amended or reenacted,
- 1310 the singular shall include the plural and vice versa,
- 1311. this Guarantee and Debenture and any provisions of this Guarantee and Debenture or to any other agreements, instrument or document are to be construed as references to this Guarantee and Debenture, those provisions or that agreement, instrument or document as amended, varied, supplemented, substituted, replaced or novated (however fundamentally) from time to time, including (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) (1) any variation, increase, extension or addition of or any variation of or to any facility or amount made available under any Finance Document or any variation of the purposes for which such facility or amount may be available from time to time and (2) in respect of this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 1312 Clauses and Schedules are to be construed as references to the Clauses of, and Schedules to, this Guarantee and Debenture as amended or varied from time to time and references to sub-clauses shall unless otherwise specifically stated be construed as references to the sub-clauses of the Clause in which the reference appears, and
- 13.13 an Event of Default is "continuing" if it has not been waived

### 14 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994

The limitations on liability set out in Section 6 of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 shall not apply to, or in respect of, the covenants implied by virtue of Sections 2(1)(a), 3 and 4 of that Act on the part of any Charging Company by its execution and delivery of this Guarantee and Debenture

### 15. Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

The terms of the agreements or documents under which the Secured Liabilities arise and of any side letters between one or more of the Charging Companies and/or the Secured Parties (or any of them) relating thereto are incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture the extent required for any purported disposition of the Charged Property contained in this Guarantee and Debenture to be a valid disposition in accordance with Section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.

### 16. Successors and assignees

Any reference in this Guarantee and Debenture to the Security Trustee or a Secured Party shall include the successors, permitted assignees and permitted transferees of the Security Trustee or such Secured Party.

### 17. Rights of Third Parties

Unless expressly provided to the contrary in any of the Finance Documents, a third party (being any person other than a Charging Company or the Security Trustee or any Secured Party and their permitted successors and assignees) has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or enjoy the benefit of any term of this Guarantee and Debenture and no consent of any third party is required for any amendment, variation or termination of this Guarantee and Debenture

### 18 Trust

The Security Trustee shall hold the benefit of the covenants, mortgages, charges and assignments given by each Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture upon trust for the other Secured Parties in accordance with the terms of the Security Trust Deed The duty contained in Section 1 of the Trustee Act 2000 shall not apply to the Security Trustee in relation to the trust created by this Guarantee and Debenture

### 19 Tacking

Each Secured Party must perform its obligations under the Finance Documents (including any obligation to make available further advances)

### 1 10 Supplemental Mortgage

If any of the provisions of this Guarantee and Debenture duplicate or contradict the provisions of any Supplemental Mortgage, the provisions of that Supplemental Mortgage shall prevail

### 2. COVENANT TO PAY

### 21 Covenant to Pay

Each Charging Company hereby, as principal debtor and not merely as surety, covenants with the Security Trustee for itself and on behalf of the other Secured Parties that it will pay or discharge the Secured Liabilities on the due date therefor in the manner provided in the relevant Finance Document or, where no such provision is made in the Finance Documents, on demand

### 22 Interest

If a Charging Company fails to pay any sum on the due date for payment of that sum, such Charging Company shall pay interest on any such sum (before and after any judgment and to the extent interest at a default rate is not otherwise being paid on such sum) from the date of demand until the date of payment calculated on a daily basis at the Default Rate

### 3. GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY

Each Charging Company hereby irrevocably and unconditionally -

- guarantees to the Security Trustee and the Secured Parties the due and punctual payment, observance and performance of the Secured Liabilities owing by each other Charging Company when and as the same shall become due.
- as principal debtor undertakes to the Security Trustee on its own account and on behalf of the other Secured Parties that if and each time that another Charging Company shall be in default in the payment or performance of any of the Secured Liabilities, it will on demand from the Security Trustee make good the default and pay all sums which may be payable in respect thereof as if it instead of such other Charging Company were the principal debtor in respect thereof, together with interest thereon at the rate per annum from time to time payable by such Charging Company on such sums from the date when such sums become payable by that Charging Company hereunder until payment of the Secured Liabilities in full; and
- agrees as a primary obligation to indemnify the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party on demand by the Security Trustee from and against any loss incurred by the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party or any of them in connection with the non-payment or non-performance of any of the Secured Liabilities owing by any other Charging Company or as a result of any of the Secured Liabilities or any of the Finance Documents being or becoming void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective as against any other Charging Company for any reason whatsoever, whether or not known to the Security Trustee or the other Secured Parties or any of them or any other person, the amount of such loss being the amount which the person or persons suffering it would otherwise have been entitled to recover from such Charging Company

### 4. CHARGING CLAUSE

### 41 Legal Mortgage

Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, by way of first legal mortgage, all its estates and interests in the Legally Mortgaged Property

### 42 Fixed Charges

Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities, by way of first fixed charge

- 421. all its estates and interests in the Property (other than the Legally Mortgaged Property),
- 422 all its Plant and Equipment;
- 423 the Shares;
- 4.24 all its Investment Interests;
- 425 all its Intellectual Property Rights,
- 426. all licences, consents and authorisations (statutory or otherwise) held or required in connection with the business of each Charging Company or the use of any Charged Property and all rights in connection with them,
- 427. all its beneficial interests, claims or entitlements in any pension fund;
- 4.2.8. all its goodwill and uncalled capital,
- 429. all the book debts and monetary claims due or owing to it in any manner whatsoever,
- 4210. all balances standing to the credit of any of its current, deposit or other account with any banks, lenders, financial institutions or similar third parties and the debt or debts represented thereby, other than any such balances to the extent effectively assigned to the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 4 2.11. all its benefits in respect of all contracts and policies of insurance which are from time to time taken out by it or (to the extent of such interest) in which it has an interest, other than any such benefits to the extent effectively assigned to the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture.

### 43 Assignments in Security

- 431 Each Charging Company hereby assigns with full title guarantee absolutely to the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, all of its right, title and interest in and to
  - (a) the Insurance Policies, and
  - (b) the Specified Accounts
- 43.2. To the extent (if any) that such right, title and/or interest is not assignable, such assignment will operate as an assignment of all proceeds received by such Charging Company under the Insurance Policies or the Specified Accounts (as the case may be) as security for the Secured Liabilities

### 44 Floating Charge

- 4.4.1 Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, by way of first floating charge, its undertaking and all its property and assets both present and future (including, without limitation, any property or assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots Law)
- 4 4.2 The floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture shall be deferred in point of priority to all fixed security validly and effectively created by a Charging Company under the Finance Documents in favour of the Security Trustee
- 4 4 3 Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 applies to the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture

### 4.5 Conversion Of Floating Charge

### 451 Conversion by Notice

If, at any time:

- (a) an Event of Default occurs,
- (b) the Security Trustee reasonably believes that any assets of any Charging Company are in danger of being seized or sold under any form of distress, execution or similar process or are otherwise in jeopardy, or
- (c) the Security Trustee reasonably believes that it is desirable to protect the priority or enforceability of the Security created by this Guarantee and Debenture,

then, without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 4 5 2 (*Automatic Conversion*), the Security Trustee may, by notice in writing to that Charging Company, convert the floating charge created by that Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture into a fixed charge in relation to the assets specified in such notice.

### 452 Automatic Conversion

Ιf

(a) any Charging Company charges, pledges or otherwise encumbers (whether by way of fixed or floating charge) any of the Charged Property or attempts to do so without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,

- (b) any creditor or other person levies any distress, execution or other process against all or any of the Charged Property belonging to a Charging Company,
- (c) a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation of any Charging Company, or
- (d) an administrator is appointed to a Charging Company or any person entitled to do so gives notice of its intention to appoint an administrator to any Charging Company or files such a notice with the court,

then, in the absence of any notice or other action by the Security Trustee pursuant to Clause 451 (Conversion by Notice), the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture by such Charging Company shall automatically operate as a fixed charge upon the property, assets or income belonging to that Charging Company which is subject to the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture forthwith upon the occurrence of such event.

### 453 Scotland

The terms of Clause 451 (Conversion by Notice) and Clause 452 (Automatic Conversion) shall not apply in respect of any property or assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots law if and to the extent that any such conversion is ineffective under Scots law or would result in any Receiver being unable to exercise any powers under Section 72 of the Insolvency Act 1986

### 454 Assets Acquired After Any Floating Charge Crystallisation

Any asset acquired by a Charging Company after any crystallisation of the floating charge created under this Guarantee and Debenture by that Charging Company which, but for such crystallisation, would be subject to a floating charge shall (unless the Security Trustee confirms in writing to the contrary) be charged to the Security Trustee by way of first fixed charge

### 455 Reconversion of Fixed Charge into Floating Charge

At any time following the conversion of the floating charge created under this Guarantee and Debenture by a Charging Company into a fixed charge in accordance with Clause 4.5.1 (Conversion by Notice) or Clause 4.5.2 (Automatic Conversion), the Security Trustee may reconvert such fixed charge into a floating charge by giving notice to the relevant Charging Company

### 456 Small company moratorium

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Guarantee and Debenture, where a Charging Company is an eligible company in

terms of section 1A and Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the obtaining of a moratorium or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium (including any preliminary decision or investigation) shall not cause the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture to crystallise or cause restrictions that would not otherwise apply to be imposed on the disposal of property by a Charging Company

### 4.6 Exclusion of leasehold properties

- 4 6.1 There shall be excluded from the charges created by Clause 4 2 1 any leasehold property held by a Charging Company under any lease entered into after the date of this Guarantee and Debenture which either precludes absolutely or conditionally (including requiring the consent of any third party) such Charging Company from creating any mortgage or charge over its leasehold interest in that property (each an "Excluded Property") until the relevant condition or waiver has been satisfied or obtained
- 4.6 2. For each Excluded Property the Charging Company that is the tenant thereof undertakes to
  - (a) apply for the relevant consent or waiver of prohibition or conditions within 10 Business Days of the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and to use all reasonable endeavours to obtain that consent or waiver or prohibition as soon as possible,
  - (b) keep the Security Trustee informed of its progress in obtaining such consent or waiver, and
  - (c) forthwith upon receipt of such consent or waiver provide the Security Trustee with a copy thereof
- 4 6.3 Forthwith upon receipt of the relevant waiver or consent, the relevant property shall stand charged by way of legal mortgage to the Security Trustee and, if requested by the Security Trustee, the Charging Company that is the tenant thereof shall grant a legal charge in relation to its interest in such property.

### 5. NEGATIVE PLEDGE

### 51 Negative Pledge

Each Charging Company hereby covenants that (without the prior consent of the Security Trustee) it shall not:

- 5 1 1 create (or permit to subsist) any Security or Quasi-Security over all or any part of its present or future revenues or assets,
- 512 sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of or part with possession of (by one or more transactions or series of transactions

whether related or not) the whole or any part of its property revenues, assets or rights (other than assets only subject to an uncrystallised floating charge in the ordinary course of business), or

51.3 dispose of the equity of redemption of all or any part of the Charged Property,

except as permitted under the Finance Documents

### 6. PROTECTION OF SECURITY

### 61 Notice of Assignments

- 611 Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee:
  - (a) to give promptly upon the request of the Security Trustee in the case of the Insurance Policies, a notice substantially in the form of Schedule 5 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Insurance),
  - (b) to give promptly upon the designation at any time by the Parent and the Security Trustee of any bank account as a Specified Account in the case of the Specified Accounts, a notice substantially in the form of Schedule 6 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Specified Account),

and/or such other form of notice of assignment (and any subsequent assignments hereunder) as the Security Trustee may from time to time require

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee to use all reasonable endeavours to procure that each notice specified in Clause 6 1 1 is acknowledged by the recipient thereof.

### 62 Notices of Charge

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that, if requested by the Security Trustee at any time, it will promptly deliver to the Security Trustee (or procure delivery of) notices of charge (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Security Trustee) executed by, or on behalf of, the relevant Charging Company and shall use its reasonable endeavours to deliver to the Security Trustee acknowledgements of each of those notices from each of the banks, lender, financial institutions or similar third parties with which any of its bank accounts charged in terms of Clause 4.210 are opened or maintained

### 63 Registration of Restriction

In respect of the properties specified in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*), the title to which is, or which is to be, registered at the Land Registry and in respect of any other registered title(s) in England and Wales against which this Guarantee and Debenture may be noted, each Charging

Company shall notify the Security Trustee of the relevant title number(s) and shall apply forthwith to the Chief Land Registrar for a restriction completed in substantially the following terms to be entered on the Register of Title relating thereto:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate [or by the proprietor of any registered charge] is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the Guarantee and Debenture dated • between Angel Acquisitions Limited and others as Charging Companies and Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee for the Secured Parties (as defined therein) referred to in the charges register or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its authorised signatory "

### 64 Registration of Title

No Charging Company shall, without the previous written consent of the Security Trustee, register any person or cause or permit any person to be registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 and any subsequent Land Registration Acts (and any regulations or orders made thereunder) as the proprietor of that Charging Company's interest in the Legally Mortgaged Property or any part thereof and the costs of entering a caution against such registration shall be deemed to be costs properly incurred by the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture

### 65 Further Advances

The obligation on the part of the Secured Parties (or any of them) to make further advances is deemed to be incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture and each Charging Company applies to the Chief Land Registrar for a note of such obligation to be entered on the Register of Title of all present and future registered freehold and leasehold property of that Charging Company

### 66 Deposit of Title Deeds

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that it shall:

- on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture, deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all deeds and documents of title relating to (a) the Legally Mortgaged Property and (b) all other freehold and leasehold property in which a Charging Company has an interest on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture (other than an Excluded Property), and
- 662 promptly upon the acquisition of any interest in any freehold or leasehold property (other than an Excluded Property), deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all deeds and documents of title relating to that property

### 67 Deposit of Share Certificates

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that it shall.

- on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture, deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all certificates or other documents of title to the Shares and any Investment Interests held by or on behalf of a Charging Company as at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture together with stock transfer forms (executed in blank by or on behalf of the relevant Charging Company), and
- 672 promptly upon the acquisition of any Investment Interests or the accrual, offer or issue of any stocks, shares, warrants or other securities in respect of or derived from the Shares or the Investment Interest, notify the Security Trustee of that occurrence and deliver to the Security Trustee (i) all certificates or other documents of title and (ii) such stock transfer forms or other instruments of transfer (executed in blank by or on behalf of the relevant and Charging Companies) in respect thereof as the Security Trustee may request.

### 68 Registration of Intellectual Property Rights

Each Charging Company hereby agrees

- 681 If requested by the Security Trustee, to register the interest of the Security Trustee in any of its Specified Intellectual Property Rights (in each registry where such Specified Intellectual Property Rights are registered) and shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute all such documents and do all acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any Specified Intellectual Property Rights, and
- of 8 2 if requested by the Security Trustee, to register the interest of the Security Trustee in any Intellectual Property Rights (other than the Specified Intellectual Property Rights) in which that Charging Company has an interest (in each registry where such Intellectual Property Right is registered) and shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute all such documents and do all such acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any such Intellectual Property Right.

### 69 Notice of Charge of Plant and Equipment

Promptly upon a request by the Security Trustee, each Charging Company shall (at its own expense) place and maintain in a conspicuous place on each item of Plant and Equipment as the Security Trustee may specify a clearly legible plate, sign or label in such form as the Security Trustee may require giving notice of the charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture

### FURTHER ASSURANCE

### 71. Further assurance

Each Charging Company shall

- 711 at the request of the Security Trustee and at the cost of that Charging Company, execute in favour of the Security Trustee (or as it may direct) a Supplemental Mortgage over any freehold or leasehold property which it owns or leases, and
- 712 enter into such further or other legal assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges or other documents and do all such other things as in any such case the Security Trustee may require in respect of that Charging Company's estate or interest in any property or assets of whatsoever nature or tenure and wherever situated, for the purpose of more effectively perfecting or protecting the security intended to be provided hereby, for facilitating the enforcement of such security or to create in favour of the Security Trustee security no more onerous than the security intended to be created pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage over any property or asset of a Charging Company located in a jurisdiction outside England and Wales

### 72 Necessary Action

Each Charging Company shall take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) as may be necessary for the purposes of the creation, perfection, protection or maintenance of any Security conferred or intended to be conferred on the Security Trustee or the Secured Parties by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture.

### 8. UNDERTAKINGS

### 81. Undertakings

Each Charging Company hereby undertakes with the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that it will

- 8 1.1. take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) and as may be necessary to create, perfect, protect or maintain all or any of the security created or intended to be created in favour of the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage,
- 812 If requested to do so by the Security Trustee and subject to the provisions of Clause 46 (Exclusion of leasehold properties) in respect of Excluded Properties, use all reasonable endeavours to obtain (in form and content reasonably satisfactory to the Security Trustee) as soon as possible any consents necessary to enable the assets of that Charging Company to be the subject of an effective fixed charge or assignment pursuant to Clause 4 (Charging Clause) and, immediately upon

- obtaining any such consent, the relevant asset shall become subject to such Security and that Charging Company shall deliver a copy of each consent to the Security Trustee,
- 813 notify the Security Trustee in writing of the acquisition or purchase by that Charging Company from time to time of any freehold or leasehold property (or the equivalent in any other jurisdiction) and, promptly upon such acquisition or purchase, enter into such documents (including mortgages and charges) in favour of the Security Trustee as the Security Trustee may require;
- 814. keep all buildings forming part of the Charged Property and all plant, machinery, works, fixtures, fittings, implements, tools and other effects thereon and therein in no worse state of repair and condition than as at the date hereof (fair wear and tear excepted) and not take, or omit to take, with regard to any freehold or leasehold property or any such buildings forming part of the Charged Property, any action which might have a material adverse effect on the value of such property;
- perform and observe all covenants and stipulations restrictive or otherwise affecting the Charged Property and permit the Security Trustee or any person nominated by it free access at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice to view the state and condition thereof,
- 816 not carry out any development within the meaning of the Planning Acts on or in respect of the Legally Mortgaged Property or any part thereof or sever or remove any of the fixtures forming part of the Legally Mortgaged Property or any of the plant and machinery on or in the Charged Property (except for the purpose of the replacement thereof or any necessary repairs) without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,
- pay the rents reserved by and perform and observe all the covenants, agreements and stipulations on the part of the lessee contained in any lease or leases of the Legally Mortgaged Property and not do or suffer to be done any act or thing whereby the said lease or leases may become liable to the forfeiture or otherwise be determined,
- 8 1 8 not agree, accept, suffer or permit any alteration, variation or addition to the terms of any lease or leases of the Legally Mortgaged Property without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,
- 819 use the Legally Mortgaged Property only for such purpose or purposes as may from time to time be authorised as the permitted use thereof under or by virtue of the Planning Acts,
- 8110 within seven days after receipt of any notice or order given, issued or made to that Charging Company by any planning authority under or by virtue of the Planning Acts give full particulars thereof to the Security Trustee and (without delay and at the cost of that Charging

Company) take all reasonable or necessary steps to comply with any such notice or order and/or make or join with the Security Trustee in making such objections or representations against or in respect of any such notice or order as the Security Trustee shall require;

- 8 1 11 pay all taxes, rents, rates, duty, fees, charges, assessments, impositions and outgoings whatsoever (whether imposed by deed or statute or otherwise) which are properly payable in respect of the Charged Property or any part thereof by the owner or occupier thereof,
- 8 1 12 preserve, maintain and renew as and when necessary all copyrights, licences, patents, trademarks and other intellectual property rights required in connection with its business and not use or permit such intellectual property rights to be used in any manner which may have a material and adverse effect upon its value;
- 81.13 upon request and following receipt of reasonable notice from the Security Trustee, permit the Security Trustee and its representatives, advisers and contractors, access at reasonable times to any of its freehold or leasehold properties or other premises to view the Charged Property

### 82 Failure to comply

If a Charging Company fails to comply with any of the undertakings detailed in Clause 81 (*Undertakings*), the Security Trustee may do such things as in its reasonable opinion may be required to remedy such failure and all sums expended in so doing shall be reimbursed by that Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until it is reimbursed at the Default Rate

### 9. THE SHARES AND INVESTMENT INTERESTS

### 91 Shares: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing

- 911 each Charging Company shall be entitled to receive and obtain all dividends paid in respect of the Shares, and
- 91.2 each Charging Company shall be entitled to exercise all voting and other rights and powers attached to the Shares provided that the Charging Company shall not exercise any voting rights or other powers in any way that restricts or limits the ability of the Security Trustee to sell or transfer the Shares to any third party, conflicts with any of the Finance Documents or is otherwise likely to have an adverse effect on the value of the Shares

### 9.2 Shares and Investment Interests: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Security Trustee may at its discretion

- 9 2 1 exercise (or refrain from exercising) any voting rights in respect of the Shares or the Investment Interests,
- 9 2 2 apply all dividends, interest and other monies arising from the Shares and the Investment Interests in accordance with Clause 16 (Application of Monies),
- 9 2 3. complete the stock transfer forms referred to in Clause 6.7 (*Deposit of Share Certificates*) and transfer the Shares or the Investment Interests into the name of the Security Trustee or its nominee(s), and
- 9 2 4 exercise (or refrain from exercising) all other powers and rights of the legal or beneficial owner of the Shares and the Investment Interests in each case in such manner and on such terms as the Security Trustee may think fit, and the proceeds of any such action shall form part of the Charged Property

### 93 Shares: Nominations

- 931 Each Charging Company shall terminate with immediate effect all nominations it may have made under Sections 145 and 146 of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the Shares and pending such termination procure that any person so nominated
  - (a) does not exercise any rights in respect of the Shares without the prior written approval of the Security Trustee; and
  - (b) immediately upon receipt, forward to the Security Trustee all communications or other information received in respect of any Shares for which it has been so nominated
- 932 No Charging Company shall exercise any rights under Section 145 and 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to nominate any person in respect of the Shares

### 94. Shares: Information

The Charging Companies shall send to the Security Trustee copies of all notices, circulars, reports, accounts and other documents which are sent to holders of any Shares promptly following receipt

### 95 Shares and Investment Interests: Calls and Payments

Subject to the terms of the Finance Documents, the Charging Companies shall promptly pay all calls or other payments which may be or become due and payable in respect of any of the Shares or any of the Investment Interests. If any Charging Company defaults in making such payment, the Security Trustee may make such payment on behalf of such Charging Company. Any sums paid by the Security Trustee shall be reimbursed by the relevant Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until reimbursed at the Default Rate.

### 96 Investment Interests: Exercise of Rights

A Charging Company shall not exercise any of its rights and powers in relation to any of the Investment Interests in any manner that restricts or limits the ability of the Security Trustee to sell or transfer the Investment Interests to any third party, conflicts with any of the Finance Documents or is otherwise likely to have an adverse effect on the value of the Investment Interests

### 10. ACCOUNTS

### 101 Accounts: Notification and Variation

The Charging Companies:

- 10 1 1 shall deliver to the Security Trustee on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture (and on the date of any change occurring thereafter) details of each current, deposit or other account maintained by it with any bank, lender, financial institution or similar third party, and
- 1012 shall not, without the Security Trustee's prior written consent, permit or agree to any variation of the rights attaching to any current, deposit or other account or close any such account where, in the reasonable opinion of the Security Trustee, such variation or closure would prejudice the security created by this Guarantee and Debenture in any manner whatsoever.

### 10 2. Accounts: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any current, deposit or other such account (other than a Specified Account).

### 103 Accounts: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Charging Companies shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any current, deposit or other account without the prior consent of the Security Trustee

### 104 Specified Accounts

- 10 4 1 Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any Specified Account
- 10 4 2 After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing
  - (a) the Charging Companies shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to

time on any Specified Account without the prior consent of the Security Trustee,

- (b) the Security Trustee shall be entitled to exercise from time to time all rights, powers and remedies held by it as assignee of the Specified Accounts and to
  - (1) demand and receive all and any monies due under or arising out of each Specified Account, and
  - (ii) exercise all such rights as the Charging Companies were then entitled to exercise in relation to such Specified Account or might, but for the terms of any of the Finance Documents, exercise

### 105 Accounts: Application of Monies

Following the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Security Trustee shall be entitled to apply, transfer or set-off all or any of the credit balances from time to time on any current, deposit or other account in or towards the payment or other satisfaction of all or part of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the provisions of Clause 16 (Application of Monies)

### 11. BOOK DEBTS

### 111 Collection

No Charging Company will deal with its book debts other than by getting them in and realising them in the ordinary course of its business and by paying them into a current, deposit or other account. Each Charging Company shall, pending such payment, hold all amounts so received in trust for the Security Trustee

### 11 2 Book Debts: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, such amount will be credited to a current, deposit or other account will be subject to the terms of the floating charge created by Clause 4.4 (Floating Charge) but (subject thereto) the relevant Charging Company shall be free to deal with such amount in the ordinary course of its business

### 113 Book Debts: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Charging Companies shall not, except with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee, be entitled to withdraw or otherwise deal in any way with any amount standing to the credit of any current, deposit or other account or any Specified Account.

### 12. INSURANCE

### 121 Insurance Undertakings

Each Charging Company shall

- 1211 keep the Charged Property insured (with reputable independent insurance companies or underwriters) against those risks and to the extent as is usual for companies carrying on the same or substantially similar business,
- 12.1. If required by the Security Trustee, ensure that each Insurance Policy relating to the Charged Property (other than any Insurance Policies in respect of which a notice of assignment has already been sent pursuant to the provisions of Clause 6.1 (Notice of Assignments)) is issued in the joint name of the Security Trustee and the relevant Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture noted thereon,
- 1213 promptly pay all premiums and other moneys payable under its Insurance Policies and, promptly upon request by the Security Trustee, deliver to the Security Trustee a copy of each policy and evidence (in a form acceptable to the Security Trustee) of the payment of such sums,
- 1214 perform all of its obligations under its Insurance Policies,
- 12 1 5 not make or agree to make any amendments to its Insurance Policies, waive any of its rights under its Insurance Policies or terminate any of its Insurance Policies without the prior written consent of the Security Agent, and
- 12 1 6 if required by the Security Trustee, deposit all Insurance Policies with the Security Trustee

### 12.2 Security Trustee's Powers

If at any time any Charging Company fails to comply with the terms of Clause 12 1 (Insurance Undertakings), the Security Trustee may effect or renew any such insurance on such terms, in such name and in such amount as it may consider appropriate and all sums expended in doing so shall be reimbursed by that Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until it is reimbursed at the Default Rate

### 123 Application of Insurance Proceeds

All moneys received under any insurance policies relating to the Charged Property shall (subject to the rights and claims of any person having prior rights thereto) prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing be applied in reinstatement or replacement of the assets which were the subject of the relevant claim. After the occurrence of an Event of

Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall hold such monies upon trust for the Security Trustee pending payment to the Security Trustee in accordance with Clause 161 (Application of Monies) and that Charging Company waives any right it may have to require that such monies are applied in reinstatement of any part of the Charged Property

### 13. POWERS OF SECURITY TRUSTEE

### 13.1 Exercise of Powers

At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, the security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture is immediately enforceable and the Security Trustee may (without further notice and without any of the restrictions contained in Section 103 of the Act and whether or not it shall have appointed a Receiver)

- 13 1 1 exercise all the powers conferred on mortgagees by the Act (as varied or extended by this Guarantee and Debenture),
- 13 1 2 exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 13 1.3 enforce all or any part of the security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture; and
- 1314 take possession of and retain or dispose of all or any part of the Charged Property.

The power of sale conferred upon the Security Trustee and on any Receiver by this Guarantee and Debenture shall operate as a variation and extension of the statutory power of sale under Section 101 of the Act and such power shall arise (and the Secured Liabilities shall be deemed due and payable for that purpose) on the execution of this Guarantee and Debenture

### 13 2 Statutory Powers

- 13 21 The statutory powers of leasing, letting, entering into arrangements for leases or lettings and accepting and agreeing to accept the surrenders of leases conferred by Sections 99 and 100 of the Act shall not be exercisable by a Charging Company in relation to any part of the Charged Property without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee
- 13 2.2 The Security Trustee shall have power after the occurrence of an Event of Default to lease or make agreements for leases at a premium or otherwise and accept surrenders of leases without any restriction on the kinds of leases and agreements for leases that the Security Trustee may make without the necessity for the Security Trustee to comply with the provisions of Sections 99 and 100 of the Act.
- 13 2 3 The Security Trustee may delegate the powers set out in Clauses 13 2 1 and 13 2 2 to any person and no such delegation shall preclude the

subsequent exercise of such powers by the Security Trustee itself or preclude the Security Trustee from making a subsequent delegation thereof to some other person. Any such delegation may be revoked by the Security Trustee at any time.

### 13 3. Consolidation of mortgages

The restriction on the right of consolidating mortgage securities contained in Section 93 of the Act shall not apply to this Guarantee and Debenture or to any Supplemental Mortgage

### 13.4 Mortgagee in possession

So far as permitted by law, neither the Security Trustee nor any Receiver shall, by reason of it or any Receiver entering into possession of any part of the Charged Property when entitled to do so, be liable to account as mortgagee in possession or be liable for any loss or realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable

### 13.5 Prior Charges

The Security Trustee may at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing redeem any prior Security on or relating to the Charged Property or may procure the transfer of such Security to itself and settle and pass the accounts to which the Security relates Any accounts so settled and passed shall be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Charging Company Each Charging Company shall reimburse the Security Trustee on demand all principal monies and interest and all losses incidental to such redemption or transfer

### 13 6 Financial Collateral

The Security Trustee may, to the extent that any of the mortgaged property constitutes "financial collateral" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations) and that this Guarantee and Debenture constitutes a "security financial collateral arrangement" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations), appropriate such financial collateral in or towards the discharge of the Secured Liabilities

### 13 7 Value of Financial Collateral

Each Charging Company and the Security Trustee agree for the purposes of Clause 13 6 (Financial Collateral) that the value of any such financial collateral so appropriated shall be

- 13.7.1 in the case of any cash, the amount standing to the credit of the relevant account together with any accrued interest at the date of appropriation, and
- 13.72 in the case of the Shares or the Investment Interests (or any other shares or stock of any nature whatsoever in the capital of any company), the market value thereof as determined by the Security

Trustee (acting reasonably) by reference to the information available to the Security Trustee

In each case each Charging Company and the Security Trustee agree that the method of valuation referred to above shall constitute a commercially reasonable method of valuing the relevant financial collateral for the purposes of the Financial Collateral Regulations.

### 14. APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER

### 14.1 Appointment of Receiver

At any time after

- 1411. the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing,
- 14 1 2 a petition or application is presented or a resolution proposed for the winding up, reorganisation or administration of a Charging Company,
- 14.1.3. a Charging Company or any other person entitled to do so gives written notice of its intention to appoint an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company or the appointment of an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company, or
- 14 1 4 a written request has been made by a Charging Company to the Security Trustee for the appointment of a Receiver or administrator,

the Security Trustee may appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver or Receivers of the Charged Property or any part thereof

### 14.2 Removal of Receiver

Subject to Section 45 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the Security Trustee may remove any Receiver previously appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture and appoint another person or persons as Receiver or Receivers, either in the place of a Receiver so removed or who has otherwise ceased to act or to act jointly with the Receiver or Receivers previously appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture.

### 143 Joint and several appointment

If at any time and by virtue of any such appointments any two or more persons shall hold office as Receivers of the same assets or income, such Receivers may act jointly and/or severally so that each one of such Receivers shall be entitled (save to the extent that the contrary shall be stated in any of the deeds or other instruments appointing them) to exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture on Receivers individually and to the exclusion of the other or others of them

### 14 4 Appointment in writing under hand

Every such appointment or removal and every delegation, appointment or removal by the Security Trustee in the exercise of any rights to delegate its powers or to remove delegates contained in this Guarantee and Debenture, may be made in writing under the hand of any officer of the Security Trustee

### 145 General Powers of Receiver

Every Receiver shall have

- 1451 all the powers conferred by the Act on mortgagees in possession and receivers appointed under the Act,
- 1452 all the powers specified in the Insolvency Act 1986 (whether or not such Receiver is an administrative receiver within the meaning of the Insolvency Act 1986),
- 1453 all the powers of the Secured Parties under this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 14.5.4 all the powers and rights of an absolute owner to do or omit to do anything which a Charging Company itself could do or omit to do; and
- 1455 the power to do all things which are in the opinion of the Receiver incidental or conducive to the powers vested in him by this Guarantee and Debenture or by law or are incidental or conducive to the gathering in by him of any assets which, when gathered in would be, Charged Property

### 146 Further Powers of a Receiver

Every Receiver may

- 14 6 1 collect in and take possession of the Charged Property or any part of it and make such demands and take such proceedings as may seem expedient for that purpose,
- 14 6 2 carry on the business of a Charging Company as he thinks fit,
- 14 6 3 provide services and employ, or engage such managers, contractors and other personnel on such terms as he thinks fit,
- 1464 discharge any person appointed by a Charging Company,
- 14 6 5 raise and borrow money (either unsecured or secured on any Charged Property) on such terms as he shall think fit (including, if the Security Agent consents, terms under which such security ranks in priority to this Guarantee and Debenture),

- 14 6 6. undertake or complete any works of repair, building or development on any property of a Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed,
- 14 6 7. grant options and licences over all or any part of the Charged Property, sell, concur in selling, assign or concur in assigning, lease or concur in leasing and accept or concur in accepting surrenders of leases of, all or any of the property of a Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed;
- 14 6 8 make any arrangement, settlement or compromise between a Charging Company and any other person which he may think expedient,
- 1469. bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon all actions and proceedings and submit to arbitration in the name of a Charging Company in relation to any Charged Property as he may think expedient,
- 14 6 10 make calls conditionally or unconditionally on the members of a Charging Company in respect of uncalled capital,
- 14 6 11.make such elections for value added tax purposes as he thinks fit;
- 14 6 12 manage, develop, reconstruct, amalgamate or diversify or concur in managing, developing, reconstructing, amalgamating or diversifying the business of a Charging Company,
- 14 6 13 redeem any prior Security on or relating to the Charged Property and settle and pass the accounts to which the Security relates so that any accounts so settled and passed shall be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Charging Company and the monies so paid shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred by him.
- 14 6 14 effect with any insurer any policy of insurance in relation to the Charged Property, and
- 14 6 15 promote or establish any new company (whether a Subsidiary of a Charging Company or not)

#### 147 Consideration

In making any sale or the disposal of any of the Charged Property in the exercise of their respective powers, the Receiver or the Security Trustee may accept as, and by way of consideration for such sale or other disposal, cash, shares, loan capital or other obligations, including, without limitation, consideration fluctuating, according to or dependent on turnover and consideration the amount of which is to be determined by a third party. Any such consideration may be receivable in a lump sum or by way of instalments

## 148 Receiver as agent of the Charging Company

Every Receiver shall be the agent of the Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed which shall be solely responsible for his acts and defaults and for the payment of his remuneration.

#### 149 Remuneration

Each Receiver shall be entitled to remuneration for his services at a rate to be fixed by agreement between him and the Security Trustee (or, failing such agreement, to be conclusively fixed by the Security Trustee) commensurate with the work and responsibilities involved upon the basis of charging from time to time adopted in accordance with his current practice or the current practice of his firm and without being limited to the maximum rate specified in Section 109(6) of the Act.

#### 15. APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR

## 151 Appointment of an Administrator

At any time after:

- 1511. the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing;
- 1512 a petition or application is presented or resolution proposed for the winding up, reorganisation or administration of a Charging Company,
- 1513 a Charging Company or any other person entitled to do so gives written notice of its intention to appoint an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company or the appointment of an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company, or
- 1514 a written request has been made by a Charging Company to the Security Trustee for the appointment of a Receiver or administrator,

the Security Trustee may without further notice appoint in writing under its hand any person or persons to be an administrator of a Charging Company.

#### 15.2 Joint and several appointment

If at any time and by virtue of any such appointments any two or more persons shall hold office as administrators, such administrators may act jointly and/or severally so that each one of such administrators shall be entitled (save to the extent that the contrary shall be stated in any of the deeds or other instruments appointing them) to exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture and by law on administrators individually and to the exclusion of the other or others of them

# 16. APPLICATION OF MONIES

## 16.1 Application of Monies

All moneys received by the Security Trustee or by any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture shall be applied in the following order.

- 16 1 1 in the payment of the costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the appointment of any Receiver under this Guarantee and Debenture and the payment of his remuneration,
- 16 1 2 in the payment and discharge of any outgoings paid and liabilities incurred by any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture in the exercise of any powers of such Receiver;
- 16 1 3 in providing for the matters (other than the remuneration of a Receiver) specified in the first three paragraphs of Section 109(8) of the Act.
- 16 1 4 in or towards payments of any debts or claims which are required by law to be paid in preference to the Secured Liabilities, but only to the extent to which such debts or claims have such preference,
- 16 1 5 in or towards the satisfaction of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the terms of the Investor Loan Agreements, and
- 1616 any surplus shall be paid to the Charging Companies or any other person entitled thereto.

## 16 2 Section 109 of the Act

The provisions of this Clause 16 2 and Clause 14.9 (*Remuneration*) shall take effect as and by way of variation and extension to the provisions of Section 109(8) of the Act, which provisions as so varied and extended shall be deemed to be incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture.

#### 17. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

## 17.1 Representations and Warranties

Each Charging Company represents and warrants to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that:

- 17 1 1 it is a limited liability company duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of England and Wales with power to own its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted,
- 1712 subject to the Legal Reservations, the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in each Finance Document to which it is a party are legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations,
- 1713. the entering into and performance by it of, and the transactions contemplated by, the Finance Documents do not and will not conflict with

- (a) subject to the Legal Reservations, any law or regulation applicable to 1t;
- (b) its constitutional documents,
- any agreement or instrument binding upon it or any of its assets or constitute a default or termination event (howsoever described) under any such agreement or instrument;
- 17 1 4 it has the necessary power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action to authorise its entry into, performance and delivery of, the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the transactions contemplated by those Finance Documents,
- 17 1 5 all authorisations, approvals, consents, licences, exemptions, filings, registrations and other matters required by it in connection with the entry into by it of the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the exercise by it of its rights thereunder and the performance by it of its obligations thereunder and in connection with the validity and enforceability of such Finance Documents have been obtained or effected and are in full force and effect,
- 17.16 this Guarantee and Debenture validly creates any security interest which it purports to create and validly evidences any Security which it purports to evidence,
- 1717 it is or has the right to be registered as the sole legal and beneficial owner of the Charged Property, free and clear of any Security or Quasi Security which is not permitted in terms of the Finance Documents;
- 1718 the Shares and the Investment Interests comprise the whole of the Shares in any company legally or beneficially owned by the Charging Companies and the whole of the investments of any kind whatsoever in any company or other entity legally or beneficially owned by the Charging Companies,
- 1719 subject to the Legal Reservations, this Guarantee and Debenture creates a valid charge over all the Charged Property securing the payment of the Secured Liabilities and, other than registration hereof pursuant to Section 860 of the Companies Act 2006 and, in the case of any property described in Schedule 3 (The Legally Mortgaged Property), registration hereof at the Land Registry, and, in the case of any Specified Intellectual Property Rights described in Schedule 4 (The Specified Intellectual Property Rights), registration hereof at the Intellectual Property Office, no authorisation, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with any person, governmental authority or regulatory body is required either for the grant by it of the charges granted hereby or for the execution, delivery or performance of this Guarantee and Debenture by it, or for the exercise by the Security Trustee of its rights and remedies hereunder, and

17 1 10 it has good, valid and marketable title to or valid leases of all of its assets including those necessary to carry on its business as presently conducted

## 17.2 Repetition

Each of the representations and warranties made by the Charging Companies under Clause 17 1 (*Representations and Warranties*) are made on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and on each date that the representations and warranties contained in the Investor Loan Agreements are repeated

## 18. POWER OF ATTORNEY

## 181 Power of Attorney

Each Charging Company hereby irrevocably appoints the Security Trustee and any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture and for the time being holding office as such severally to be its attorney and on its behalf and in its name to sign, seal, execute, deliver, perfect and do all deeds, instruments and/or documents and to do all acts and things which may be required for -

- 1811 carrying out any obligation imposed on that Charging Company by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 1812 enabling the Security Trustee and the Receiver to exercise the rights and powers conferred upon them by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture or by law (including the right to sell, lease, convey, transfer or realise any of the Charged Property)

The Security Trustee shall have full power to delegate the power conferred on it by this Clause 181 and no such delegation shall preclude the subsequent exercise of such power by the Security Trustee itself or preclude the Security Trustee from making a subsequent delegation thereof to some other person and any such delegation may be revoked by the Security Trustee at any time.

#### 182. Ratification

Each relevant Charging Company shall ratify and confirm all acts and things done and all deeds, instruments and/or documents signed, sealed, executed and/or perfected by any attorney in the exercise or purported exercise of all or any of his powers

## 183 Powers of Attorney Act 1971

The power of attorney hereby granted is as regards the Security Trustee its delegates and any such Receiver (and each Charging Company hereby acknowledges) granted irrevocably and for value as part of the security constituted by this Guarantee and Debenture to secure proprietary interests in and the performance of obligations owed to the respective donees within the meaning of the Powers of Attorney Act 1971

#### 19. PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS

#### 19.1 Consideration

The receipt of the Security Trustee or any Receiver shall be conclusive discharge to a purchaser and, in making any sale or disposal of any of the Charged Property or making any acquisition, the Security Trustee or any Receiver may do so for such consideration, in such manner and on such terms as it thinks fit.

#### 19 2. Protection of Purchasers

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Trustee or its delegate or any Receiver appointed hereunder shall be bound to see or enquire whether the right of the Security Trustee or such Receiver to exercise any of its or his powers has arisen or become exercisable or be concerned with notice to the contrary or be concerned to see whether any such delegation by the Security Trustee shall have lapsed for any reason or be revoked

#### 20. PRESERVATION OF SECURITY

#### 201. Continuing Security

The security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and by any Supplemental Mortgage shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security for the Secured Liabilities unless and until discharged by the Security Trustee and shall not be considered satisfied by any intermediate payment or satisfaction of all or any of the Secured Liabilities or for any other reason

#### 20 2 Waiver of defences

Neither the obligations of each Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture nor the rights, powers and remedies conferred in respect of the Charging Companies upon the Security Trustee will be affected by any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 20 2, would reduce, release or prejudice any of those obligations or those rights, powers and remedies (without limitation and whether or not known to it or any Secured Party) including

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Charging Company or other person,
- (b) the release of any Charging Company or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any member of the Group,
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any Charging Company or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other

requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security,

- (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of any Charging Company or any other person,
- (e) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension or restatement (however fundamental and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of a Finance Document or any other document or security including, without limitation, any change in the purpose of, any extension of or increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under any Finance Document or other document or security,
- (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security; or
- (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings.

## 20 3. Rights Cumulative

The obligations of each Charging Company contained in this Guarantee and Debenture and all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee expressed in this Guarantee and Debenture are in addition to and independent of all other rights, powers and remedies possessed by the Security Trustee including, without limitation, those provided for in any Finance Document, by applicable law or in any other written instrument or agreement relating to that Charging Company's obligations or the Charged Property

#### 204 Remedies and Waivers

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Security Trustee or any Secured Party, any right or remedy under this Guarantee and Debenture shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy

#### 20 5 Partial Invalidity

If at any time any provision hereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the law of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby

## 20 6 Independent Security

The security constituted by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage shall be in addition to and shall be independent of every mortgage, charge, pledge, guarantee or other security which the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party may at any time hold in respect of any of the Secured Liabilities and it is hereby declared that no prior security held by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party over the Charged Property or any part thereof shall merge in the security constituted by this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage

#### 21. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS

Neither the Security Trustee nor the other Secured Parties nor any of them shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers, discretions or remedies conferred upon them in respect of any Charging Company by any of the Finance Documents or by law:

- 211 to make any demand of any of the Charging Companies other than that required by the terms of the Finance Documents,
- 21.2 to take any action or obtain judgement in any court against any of the Charging Companies;
- 213 to submit, make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up, liquidation, insolvency or dissolution of any of the Charging Companies, or
- 21.4 to enforce or seek to enforce any other security taken in respect of any of the obligations of any of the Charging Companies under the Investor Loan Agreements.

#### 22. SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS

If the Security Trustee (acting in its capacity as security trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties receives or is deemed to have received notice of any subsequent Security affecting all or any part of the Charged Property which is prohibited by the terms of this Guarantee and Debenture, any Supplemental Mortgage or all or any of the Finance Documents, all payments thereafter by or on behalf of a Charging Company to the Security Trustee (whether in its capacity as security trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties shall be treated as having been credited to a new account of the relevant Charging Company and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Liabilities as at the time when the Security Trustee received such notice

#### 23. SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

So that the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party may claim against any Charging Company or prove in any bankruptcy or liquidation of any Charging Company for the full amount of the Secured Liabilities then owing by it, the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party may, after the occurrence of an Event of Default and for so long as the same is continuing, hold in suspense account, until the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably paid and discharged in full, any moneys received, recovered or realised from or on account of any of the Charging Companies without being under any intermediate obligation to apply the same or any part thereof in or towards the discharge of the said amount. The Security Trustee and each other

Secured Party may refrain from applying or enforcing any other security, money or rights held or received in respect of the Secured Liabilities or may apply the same in such manner and order as they see fit and no Charging Company shall be entitled to the benefit of the same until all the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably paid and discharged in full

#### 24. SET-OFF

A Secured Party may set-off any matured obligation due from any Charging Company under the Finance Documents (to the extent beneficially owned by that Secured Party) against any matured obligation owed by that Secured Party to any Charging Company, regardless of the place of payment, booking branch or currency of either obligation. If the obligations are in different currencies, the Secured Party may convert either obligation at a market rate of exchange in its usual course of business for the purpose of the set-off

#### 25. RELEASE AND DISCHARGE

## 251 Release

Subject to Clause 25.2 (Conditional Discharge), each Charging Company shall be entitled, after the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably and unconditionally discharged in full and none of the Secured Parties being under any actual or contingent obligations to make available any facilities of any kind whatsoever to any Charging Company under any of the Finance Documents, to require, at its cost and request, the release, re-assignment or retransfer of any of the Charged Property mortgaged, charged, assigned or transferred hereunder or otherwise in terms of this Guarantee and Debenture.

#### 25 2. Conditional Discharge

Any settlement or discharge between the Charging Companies (or any of them) and the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties or any of them shall be conditional upon no security or payment to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties or any of them by any Charging Company or any other person on behalf of a Charging Company being avoided or reduced by virtue of any provisions or enactments relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation for the time being in force and, if any such security or payment is so avoided or reduced, the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties shall be entitled to recover the value or amount of such security or payment from each Charging Company subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred

## 26. CHANGES IN SECURED LIABILITIES

Each Charging Company expressly agrees and acknowledges that the parties to the Finance Documents may from time to time agree to make amendments to the terms of those documents and may enter into such supplemental agreements as are required from time to time in order to give effect to such amendments

#### 27. ASSIGNMENT

# 27 1 Security Trustee

The Security Trustee may (without prejudice to its right to appoint any joint trustee) assign and/or transfer all or any of its rights and obligations under this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage to any person appointed as its replacement as Security Trustee (or any joint trustee) in accordance with the terms of the Security Trust Deed. The Security Trustee shall be entitled to disclose such information concerning the Charging Companies and thus Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage as the Security Trustee considers appropriate to any actual or proposed direct or indirect successor or to any person to whom information may be required to be disclosed by any applicable law

## 27 2. Charging Companies

No Charging Company may assign or transfer any of its obligations under this Guarantee and Debenture or enter into any transaction which would result in any of those rights or obligations passing to another person

#### 28. INDEMNITY

# 28 1 Environmental Indemnity

The Charging Companies shall jointly and severally indemnify the Security Trustee against any and all costs, losses, liabilities or expenses incurred by the Security Trustee arising (directly or indirectly) out of, or in connection with.

- 28 1 1 any actual or alleged breach of any Environmental Law by any member of the Group or affecting any freehold or leasehold property now or at any time after the date of this Guarantee and Debenture owned or occupied by any member of the Group, or
- 28 1 2 any responsibility of the Security Trustee in respect of any clean-up, repair or other corrective action in relation to any actual or alleged breach or liability in respect of the business or any freehold or leasehold property now or at any time hereafter owned or occupied by any member of the Group

## 28 2 Indemnity

Without prejudice to Clause 8.2 (Failure to comply) and Clause 12.2 (Security Trustee's Powers), the Charging Companies shall jointly and severally indemnify the Security Trustee and any Receiver against any cost, loss or liability incurred by either of them as a result of

28 2 1 the taking, holding, protection or enforcement of this Guarantee and Debenture,

- 28 2 2 the exercise or purported exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions and remedies vested in the Security Trustee and each Receiver by this Guarantee and Debenture or by law, or
- 28 2 3 any default by any Charging Company of any of the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 29. DISCRETION AND DELEGATION

#### 29 1 Discretion

Any power or right which may be exercised by the Security Trustee or any Receiver under this Guarantee and Debenture may be exercised in the absolute and unfettered discretion of the Security Trustee or Receiver and without any obligation to give reasons

## 29.2 Delegation

The Security Trustee and any Receiver may delegate (either generally or specifically) by power of attorney or any other manner to any person any right, power, authority or discretion conferred on it by this Guarantee and Debenture (including the power of attorney granted under Clause 18 (*Power of Attorney*)) The Security Trustee and any Receiver may make a delegation on the terms and conditions (including the power to sub-delegate) that it thinks fit Any such delegation shall not preclude the subsequent exercise, any subsequent delegation or any revocation of such right, power, authority or discretion by the Security Trustee or the Receiver

## 30. CALCULATIONS AND CERTIFICATES

#### 30.1 Accounts

In any litigation or arbitration proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture, the entries made in the accounts maintained by the Security Trustee or a Secured Party are prima facie evidence of the matters to which they relate

#### 30 2 Certificates and determinations

Any certificate or determination by the Security Trustee or a Secured Party of a rate or amount under this Guarantee and Debenture is, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the matters to which it relates

#### 31. PERPETUITY PERIOD

The perpetuity period applicable to the trusts contained in or arising from this Guarantee and Debenture shall be one hundred and twenty five years from the date hereof

#### 32. NOTICES

## 321 Communications in Writing

Any communication to be made under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture shall be made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be made by fax or letter

## 322 Address

The address and fax number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of each party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture is that identified with its name below or any substitute address, fax number or department or officer as the party may notify to the other parties by not less than 5 Business Days' notice.

## 323 Delivery

- 32 3.1 Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture will only be effective:
  - (a) if by way of fax, when received in legible form; or
  - (b) If by way of letter, when it has been it has been left at the relevant address or 5 Business Days after being deposited in the post postage prepaid in an envelope addressed to it at that address,

and, if a particular department or officer is specified as part of its address details provided under Clause 32 2 (Address), if addressed to that department or officer

32.3.2 Any communication or document to be made or delivered to the Security Trustee will be effective only when actually received by the Security Trustee and then only if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer identified with the Security Trustees' signature below (or any substitute department or officer as the Security Trustee shall specify for this purpose).

## 324 English Language

- 32 4 1 Any notice given under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture must be in English
- 32 4 2 All other documents provided under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture must be
  - (a) in English, or

(b) If not in English, and if so required by the Security Trustee, accompanied by a certified English translation and, in this case, the English translation will prevail unless the document is a constitutional, statutory or other official document.

#### 33. COUNTERPARTS

This Guarantee and Debenture may be executed in any number of counterparts and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Guarantee and Debenture

## 34. GOVERNING LAW

This Guarantee and Debenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law

## 35. JURISDICTION

## 35 1 Jurisdiction of English Courts

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Guarantee and Debenture) (a "Dispute")

#### 35.2 Convenient Forum

The parties to this Guarantee and Debenture agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no party to this Guarantee and Debenture will argue to the contrary

#### 35 3 Concurrent Proceedings

This Clause 35 is for the benefit of the Secured Parties only As a result, no Secured Party shall be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Secured Parties may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

IN WITNESS whereof this Guarantee and Debenture has been executed by each Charging Company and the Security Trustee as its deed the day and year first above written

# THE CHARGING COMPANIES

Name Registered Number

Angel Acquisitions Limited 08389984

Healthcare Locums Limited 04736913

## THE SHARES

Registered Owner	Name	Class of Shares	Denomination of Shares	Number of Shares
Angel Acquisitions Limited	Healthcare Locums Limited	Ordinary	£0 10	847,799,742
Angel Acquisitions Limited	Healthcare Locums Limited	Preference	£0 10	121,900,260

# THE LEGALLY MORTGAGED PROPERTY

None

## THE SPECIFIED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

## PART 1

# TRADE MARKS, SERVICE MARKS, DESIGNS, COPYRIGHTS AND APPLICATIONS THEREFOR

None

#### PART 2

## PATENTS AND PATENT APPLICATIONS

None

## PART 3

## OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES

None

#### FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE

To [Insurer]

Date [ ]

Dear Sirs

We hereby give you notice that we have assigned to Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee (the "Security Trustee") pursuant to a composite guarantee and debenture entered into by, among others, us in favour of the Security Trustee dated • all of our right, title and interest in and to the proceeds of [insert details of relevant insurance policy] (the "Insurance Policy")

With effect from your receipt of this notice we hereby instruct you to

- (i) note the interest of the Security Trustee on the Insurance Policy, and
- (ii) disclose to the Security Trustee, without further approval from us, such information regarding the Insurance Policy as the Security Trustee may from time to time request and to send to it copies of all notices issued by you under the Insurance Policy.

With effect from the receipt by you of this notice, all rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for the benefit of ourselves arising from the Insurance Policy belong to and are exercisable by the Security Trustee

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the acknowledgement on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Trustee at Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA marked for the attention of Tim Bee

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of

Limited

# To Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA

We acknowledge receipt of the notice in the terms set out above and confirm that we have not received any notice of any previous assignment or charge of or over any of the rights, title and interest and/or benefits referred to in such notice and that we will comply with the terms of that notice

We further confirm that no amendment or termination of the Insurance Policy will be effective unless we have given 30 days written notice thereof to the Security Trustee.

For and on behalf of •

Ву

Dated

## FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIED ACCOUNT

To	[Account Bank]		
		Date: [	1

Dear Sirs

We hereby give you notice that we have assigned and charged to Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee (the "Security Trustee") pursuant to a composite guarantee and debenture entered into by, among others, us in favour of the Security Trustee dated • all of our right, title and interest in and to account number •, account name •, sort code • (including any renewal or redesignation thereof) and all monies standing to the credit of that account from time to time (the "Account")

With effect from the date of your receipt of this notice any existing payment instructions in relation to the Account are terminated

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the enclosed acknowledgement on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Trustee at Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA marked for the attention of Tim Bee

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of

Limited

To Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA

We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assignment and charge in the terms set out above in respect of the Account (as described in those terms) and confirm that:

- (a) the balance standing to the Account at today's date is ●, no fees or periodic charges are payable in respect of the Account and there are no restrictions on (i) the payment of the credit balance on the Account [(except, in the case of a time deposit, the expiry of the relevant period)] or (ii) the assignment of the Account to the Security Trustee or any third party;
- (b) we have not received notice of any previous assignments of, charges over or trusts in respect of, the Account and we will not, without the Security Trustee's consent (a) exercise any right of combination, consolidation or setoff which we may have in respect of the Account or (b) amend or vary any rights attaching to the Account, and
- (c) all existing payment instructions in relation to the Account are terminated and all payments and communications in respect of the Account shall be made to the Security Trustee and we will not, without the Security Trustee's consent amend or vary any rights attaching to the Account.

For and on behalf of •

By

Dated

# **SIGNATORIES**

ANGEL ACQUISITI acting by in the presence of.	ONS LIMITED , a director,	Director
	Witness	Director
	Full Name	е
	Address	
	Occupation	on
Address for Notice	10 Old Bailey, London E	C4M 7NG
Fax	0207 451 1444	
Attention.	Mark Phillips/Mike Der	nnis
EXECUTED and DEI HEALTHCARE LOC acting by in the presence of	LIVERED as 1ts deed by UMS LIMITED , a director,	Director
	Witness	
	Full Nam	e
	Address	
	Occupation	on
Address for Notice	10 Old Bailey, London E	C4M 7NG
Fax	0207 451 1444	
Attention	Ian Ketchın	

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a deed by TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED as SECURITY TRUSTEE acting by , a director,

in the presence of	, a director,		 Director	
		Witness Full Name Address		
A 11 - C - Nich -	74- 11	Occupation		
Address for Notice	7th Floor 90 Long Acre London WC2			
Fax	0207 845 6101			
Attention:	Tım Bee			

A250\002\EH5759832.3

WE CERTIFY THAT, SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 859G
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006, THIS COPY
INSTRUMENT IS A CORRECT COPY OF
THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT

DICKSON MINTO W.S.

DATE: 8 Degrit Zoily

# COMPOSITE GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

Dated 30 JULY 2014

between

ANGEL ACQUISITIONS LIMITED

and the other companies listed in Schedule 1

and

TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED as Security Trustee

> Dickson Minto W.S. Edinburgh

## **CONTENTS**

1	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
2.	COVENANT TO PAY
3.	GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY
4.	CHARGING CLAUSE 10
5.	NEGATIVE PLEDGE 14
6	PROTECTION OF SECURITY
7	FURTHER ASSURANCE 18
8.	UNDERTAKINGS 18
9.	THE SHARES AND INVESTMENT INTERESTS
10	ACCOUNTS
11.	BOOK DEBTS
12	INSURANCE
13	POWERS OF SECURITY TRUSTEE
14.	APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER
15	APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR
16.	APPLICATION OF MONIES
17.	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
18	POWER OF ATTORNEY
19.	PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS
20.	PRESERVATION OF SECURITY 34
21.	PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS
22	SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS
23.	SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
24.	SET-OFF
25	RELEASE AND DISCHARGE
26	CHANGES IN SECURED LIABILITIES

27.	ASSIGNMENT
28.	INDEMNITY
29.	DISCRETION AND DELEGATION
30	CALCULATIONS AND CERTIFICATES
31.	PERPETUITY PERIOD
32	NOTICES
33.	COUNTERPARTS
34.	GOVERNING LAW
35.	JURISDICTION
SCHE	DULE 1 THE CHARGING COMPANIES
SCHEI	OULE 2 THE SHARES
SCHEI	OULE 3 THE LEGALLY MORTGAGED PROPERTY
SCHEI	DULE 4 THE SPECIFIED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 45
SCHE	OULE 5 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE 46
SCHEI	DULE 6 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIED ACCOUNT 48
SIGNA	TORIES

#### **GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE**

THIS COMPOSITE GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE is made the 30<sup>TH</sup> day of JULY 2014

#### BETWEEN:

- (1) THE COMPANIES listed in Schedule 1 (The Charging Companies); and
- (2) TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED a company incorporated in England and Wales (registered number 06942099) whose registered office is at 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA as agent and trustee for itself and for each of the other Secured Parties on the terms and conditions set out in the Security Trust Deed (as hereinafter defined) (in such capacity as agent and trustee hereinafter referred to as the "Security Trustee" which expression shall include each person appointed as the Security Trustee at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture or any additional security trustee appointed for the purpose of, and in accordance with, the Security Trust Deed)

#### WHEREAS.

- (A) The Charging Companies have entered into the Investor Loan Agreements with the Investors, pursuant to which the Investors have agreed to make available to the Charging Companies certain loans;
- (B) the Security Trustee has been appointed by the Investors and has agreed to hold the benefit of this Guarantee and Debenture in accordance with the Security Trust Deed, and
- (C) It is condition of certain of the Investor Loan Agreements that each Charging Company enters into this Guarantee and Debenture.

## NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

#### 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

#### 11. Definitions from Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement

Words and expressions defined in the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement or whose definitions are imported into the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement shall bear the same meaning in this Guarantee and Debenture (including, without limitation, the recitals and schedules hereto) unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context otherwise requires

#### 1.2. Definitions

In this Guarantee and Debenture and the recitals hereto

"ACE" means ACE Equity Holdco (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (Registration Number MC-223591) and having its registered office at c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

"Ares" means Ares Capital Europe (Luxembourg) Sà r.l, incorporated in Luxembourg (Registration Number B135825) and having its registered office at 11-13 Boulevard Grande-Duchesse Charlotte, L-1331 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

"Act" means The Law of Property Act 1925.

"Bridge Investor Loan Agreement" means the loan agreement dated 23 July 2014 originally between ACE and Tosca (as lenders) and the Angel Acquisitions Limited (as borrower) in respect of a loan of an original principal amount of £1,000,000, the rights of ACE under which have been assigned to Ares pursuant to a deed of assignment of loan dated on or around 30 July 2014.

"Charged Property" means the property, assets or income of each Charging Company mortgaged, charged or assigned to the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture

"Charging Companies" means each company listed in Schedule 1 (*The Charging Companies*) and "Charging Company" will be construed accordingly.

"Debt Repayment Loan Agreement" means the loan agreement dated on or around 30 July 2014 between the Investors (as lenders) and Healthcare Locums Limited (as borrower) in respect of a loan of an original principal amount of £16,163,000.00.

"Default Rate" means the aggregate of four per cent. per annum over the base rate for the time being of the Bank of England

"Environment" means humans, animals, plants and all other living organisms including the ecological systems of which they form part and the following media:

- (a) air (including without limitation, air within natural or man-made structures, whether above or below ground),
- (b) water (including without limitation, territorial, coastal and inland waters, water under or within land and water in drains and sewers), and
- (c) land (including without limitation, land under water).

"Environmental Law" means any applicable law or regulation which relates to

- (a) the pollution or protection of the Environment,
- (b) harm to or the protection of human health,
- (c) the conditions of the workplace, or

(d) the generation, handling, storage, use, release or spillage of any emission or substance which, alone or in combination with any other, is capable of causing harm to the Environment including, without limitation, any waste

"Event of Default" means occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in either of the Investor Loan Agreements)

"Finance Documents" means the Investor Loan Agreements, the Investor Security Documents and any other document designated as such by each Charging Company and the Investors.

"Financial Collateral Regulations" means the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No 2) Regulations (SI 2003 No. 3226)

"Floating Charge Property" means the property, assets or income of each Charging Company comprised within the floating charge created by Clause 4.4 (Floating Charge)

"Group" means each Charging Company and each of their Subsidiaries from time to time and "member of the Group" shall be construed accordingly.

"Insurance Policies" means the insurance policies in which a Charging Company may from time to time have an interest and "Insurance Policy" shall be construed accordingly.

"Intellectual Property Rights" means the Specified Intellectual Property Rights and any other licences and patents (including applications and the rights to apply therefor), copyrights, rights in trade marks whether registered or not, trade names, rights in service marks whether registered or not, registered designs, business names, design rights, moral rights, inventions, know-how and rights in confidential information.

"Investment Interests" means all shares and stock in the capital of any company (other than the Shares), debentures, securities, certificates or deposits, interests in collective investment schemes, warrants, options and any other rights to subscribe for or acquire any such investments held by or on behalf of a Charging Company in any manner whatsoever or in which it otherwise has an interest together in all cases with all rights, including dividends and other distributions arising in relation thereto in any manner whatsoever.

"Investor Loan Agreements" means the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement and the Bridge Investor Loan Agreement

"Investor Security" means this Debenture together with such further security as may be granted by a member of the Group in favour of the Security Trustee to secure amounts due pursuant to the Investor Loan Agreements from time to time

"Investors" means Tosca and Ares or any of them as the context may require and "Investor" shall be construed accordingly

## "Legal Reservations" means:

- (a) the principle that equitable remedies may be granted or refused at the discretion of a court and the limitation of enforcement by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, reorganisation, court schemes, moratoria, administration and other laws generally affecting the rights of creditors,
- (b) the time barring of claims under the Limitation Act 1980 and the Foreign Limitation Periods Act 1984, the possibility that an undertaking to assume liability for or indemnify a person against nonpayment of UK stamp duty may be void and defences of set-off or counterclaim,
- (c) the principle that in certain circumstances Security granted by way of fixed charge may be recharacterised as a floating charge or that Security purported to be constituted by an assignment may be recharacterised as a charge,
- (d) the principle that any additional interest imposed pursuant to any relevant agreement may be held to be unenforceable on the grounds that it is a penalty and thus void;
- (e) the principle that an English court may not give effect to an indemnity for legal costs incurred by an unsuccessful litigant;
- (f) the principle that the creation or purported creation of Security over any contract or agreement which is subject to a prohibition against transfer, assignment or charging, may be void, ineffective or invalid and may give rise to a breach entitling the contracting party to terminate or take any other action in relation to such contract or agreement, and
- (g) similar principles, rights and defences under the laws of any other relevant jurisdiction.

"Legally Mortgaged Property" means the freehold, leasehold and other immovable property described in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*) together with the proceeds of sale thereof and all buildings and trade and other fixtures on any such property belonging to or charged to each Charging Company and machinery thereon and therein and all rights, licenses, guarantees, rents, deposits, contracts, covenants and warranties relating to any such property.

"Planning Acts" means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, the Planning (Consequential Provisions) Act 1990, the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and all regulations made or taking effect as if made thereunder in each case as from time to time amended and re-enacted by subsequent legislation and regulations

"Property" means the Legally Mortgaged Property and any other present and future freehold or leasehold property together with the proceeds of sale thereof and all buildings and trade and other fixtures on any such property.

"Plant and Equipment" means plant, machinery, computers, office and other equipment and vehicles together with the benefit of any obligations and warranties given by the manufacturer or supplier of such plant, machinery, computers, office or other equipment or vehicles and the benefit of all maintenance agreements entered into in respect of such plant, machinery, computers, office and other equipment and vehicles.

"Quasi-Security" means an arrangement or transaction in terms of which a Charging Company:

- (a) sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of any of its assets on terms whereby they are or may be leased to or re-acquired by any other member of the Group,
- (b) sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of any of its receivables on recourse terms;
- (c) enters into an arrangement under which money or the benefit of a bank or other account may be applied, set-off or made subject to a combination of accounts; or
- (d) enters into any other preferential arrangements having a similar effect,

in circumstances where the arrangement or transactions is entered into primarily as a method of raising any indebtedness or of financing the acquisition of an asset

"Receiver" means a receiver and manager, receiver or administrative receiver and includes any substitute receiver, receiver and manager or administrative receiver

"Secured Liabilities" means all present and future obligations and liabilities (whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally or as principal debtor, guarantor, surety or otherwise or as the equivalent obligor under the laws of any other jurisdiction) of each Charging Company to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties (or any of them) under the Finance Documents together with:

- (a) any refinancing, novation, refunding, deferral or extension of or increase in any of those obligations or liabilities,
- (b) any further advances and additional facilities which may be made by any Secured Party to any Charging Company under any agreement expressed to be supplemental to any of the Finance Documents and all interest, fees and costs in connection therewith;

- (c) any claim for damages or restitution in the event of rescission of any of those obligations or liabilities or otherwise in connection with any of the Finance Documents,
- (d) any claim against any Charging Company flowing from the recovery by any Charging Company of a payment or discharge in respect of any of those liabilities on grounds of preference or otherwise;
- (e) any amounts which would be included in any of the foregoing but for any discharge, non-provability, unenforceability or non-allowability of the same in any insolvency or other proceedings, and
- (f) all costs, charges and expenses incurred by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party in connection with the protection, preservation or enforcement of its rights against any Charging Company.

"Secured Parties" means the Security Trustee and the Investors or any of them as the context requires and "Secured Party" shall be construed accordingly.

"Security" means a mortgage, charge, standard security, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect.

"Security Trust Deed" means the security trust deed dated on or around the date of this Guarantee and Debenture between the Investors, the Security Trustee and the Charging Companies

"Shares" means the shares listed in Schedule 2 (*The Shares*) and all other shares held by or on behalf of a Charging Company in any member of the Group together with all rights, including dividends and other distributions, arising in relation thereto in any manner whatsoever

"Specified Accounts" means any current, deposit or other account with any bank, lender, financial institution or similar third party that may at any time be designated in writing as a Specified Account by the Charging Companies and the Security Trustee.

"Specified Intellectual Property Rights" means the intellectual property rights in which a Charging Company has an interest as at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and detailed in Schedule 4 (*The Specified Intellectual Property Rights*)

"Subsidiary" means in relation to any company, corporation or legal entity (a "holding company"), any company, corporation or legal entity

- (a) which is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the holding company; or
- (b) more than half the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the holding company, or
- (c) which is a subsidiary of another subsidiary of the holding company,

and, for these purposes, a company, corporation or legal entity shall be treated as being controlled by another if that other company, corporation or legal entity is able to direct its affairs and/or to control the composition of its board of directors or equivalent body.

"Supplemental Mortgage" means a legal mortgage or charge in respect of any other freehold or leasehold property at any time belonging to a Charging Company (other than the Legally Mortgaged Property) together with all present and future buildings and fixtures (including trade fixtures) and fixed plant machinery from time to time thereon and therein entered into pursuant to the provisions of Clause 7 (Further Assurance) in a form required by the Security Trustee.

"Tosca" means Tosca Opportunity a fund incorporated in the Cayman Islands and having its registered office at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

## 13 Interpretation

Save where the contrary is indicated, any reference in this Guarantee and Debenture to:

- 1.3 1 "assets" includes present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description;
- 1.3 2 "book debts" means all present and future book and other debts and monetary and other claims due or owing to a Charging Company and the benefit of all security, guarantees and other rights enjoyed or held by a Charging Company in relation to any of them,
- 1.33 a "company" includes any body corporate;
- 1.34 "guarantee" means any guarantee, letter of credit, bond, indemnity or similar assurance against loss, or any obligation, direct or indirect, actual or contingent, to purchase or assume any indebtedness of any person or to make an investment in or loan to any person or to purchase assets of any person where, in each case, such obligation is assumed in order to maintain or assist the ability of such person to meet its indebtedness;
- 1.35 "indebtedness" includes any obligation (whether incurred as principal or as surety) for the payment or repayment of money, whether present of future, actual or contingent;
- 1.36 "intellectual property" shall be construed as a reference to the property described in Clause 4 2 5,
- 1.37 a "person" includes any individual, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality),

- 1 3.8 a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency or department or of any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation;
- 1 3.9 a provision of law is a reference to that provision as amended or reenacted,
- 1 3.10. the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;
- 1 3.11. this Guarantee and Debenture and any provisions of this Guarantee and Debenture or to any other agreements, instrument or document are to be construed as references to this Guarantee and Debenture, those provisions or that agreement, instrument or document as amended, varied, supplemented, substituted, replaced or novated (however fundamentally) from time to time, including (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) (1) any variation, increase, extension or addition of or any variation of or to any facility or amount made available under any Finance Document or any variation of the purposes for which such facility or amount may be available from time to time and (2) in respect of this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 1312 Clauses and Schedules are to be construed as references to the Clauses of, and Schedules to, this Guarantee and Debenture as amended or varied from time to time and references to sub-clauses shall unless otherwise specifically stated be construed as references to the sub-clauses of the Clause in which the reference appears, and
- 1313 an Event of Default is "continuing" if it has not been waived.

## 14 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994

The limitations on liability set out in Section 6 of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 shall not apply to, or in respect of, the covenants implied by virtue of Sections 2(1)(a), 3 and 4 of that Act on the part of any Charging Company by its execution and delivery of this Guarantee and Debenture

## 15 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

The terms of the agreements or documents under which the Secured Liabilities arise and of any side letters between one or more of the Charging Companies and/or the Secured Parties (or any of them) relating thereto are incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture the extent required for any purported disposition of the Charged Property contained in this Guarantee and Debenture to be a valid disposition in accordance with Section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.

## 16 Successors and assignees

Any reference in this Guarantee and Debenture to the Security Trustee or a Secured Party shall include the successors, permitted assignees and permitted transferees of the Security Trustee or such Secured Party.

## 1.7. Rights of Third Parties

Unless expressly provided to the contrary in any of the Finance Documents, a third party (being any person other than a Charging Company or the Security Trustee or any Secured Party and their permitted successors and assignees) has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or enjoy the benefit of any term of this Guarantee and Debenture and no consent of any third party is required for any amendment, variation or termination of this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 18. Trust

The Security Trustee shall hold the benefit of the covenants, mortgages, charges and assignments given by each Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture upon trust for the other Secured Parties in accordance with the terms of the Security Trust Deed The duty contained in Section 1 of the Trustee Act 2000 shall not apply to the Security Trustee in relation to the trust created by this Guarantee and Debenture

## 19 Tacking

Each Secured Party must perform its obligations under the Finance Documents (including any obligation to make available further advances).

## 1.10. Supplemental Mortgage

If any of the provisions of this Guarantee and Debenture duplicate or contradict the provisions of any Supplemental Mortgage, the provisions of that Supplemental Mortgage shall prevail

## 2. COVENANT TO PAY

## 21 Covenant to Pay

Each Charging Company hereby, as principal debtor and not merely as surety, covenants with the Security Trustee for itself and on behalf of the other Secured Parties that it will pay or discharge the Secured Liabilities on the due date therefor in the manner provided in the relevant Finance Document or, where no such provision is made in the Finance Documents, on demand

#### 22 Interest

If a Charging Company fails to pay any sum on the due date for payment of that sum, such Charging Company shall pay interest on any such sum (before and after any judgment and to the extent interest at a default rate is not otherwise being paid on such sum) from the date of demand until the date of payment calculated on a daily basis at the Default Rate.

#### 3. GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY

Each Charging Company hereby irrevocably and unconditionally -

- 3.1 guarantees to the Security Trustee and the Secured Parties the due and punctual payment, observance and performance of the Secured Liabilities owing by each other Charging Company when and as the same shall become due;
- 3.2. as principal debtor undertakes to the Security Trustee on its own account and on behalf of the other Secured Parties that if and each time that another Charging Company shall be in default in the payment or performance of any of the Secured Liabilities, it will on demand from the Security Trustee make good the default and pay all sums which may be payable in respect thereof as if it instead of such other Charging Company were the principal debtor in respect thereof, together with interest thereon at the rate per annum from time to time payable by such Charging Company on such sums from the date when such sums become payable by that Charging Company hereunder until payment of the Secured Liabilities in full, and
- 3.3 agrees as a primary obligation to indemnify the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party on demand by the Security Trustee from and against any loss incurred by the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party or any of them in connection with the non-payment or non-performance of any of the Secured Liabilities owing by any other Charging Company or as a result of any of the Secured Liabilities or any of the Finance Documents being or becoming void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective as against any other Charging Company for any reason whatsoever, whether or not known to the Security Trustee or the other Secured Parties or any of them or any other person, the amount of such loss being the amount which the person or persons suffering it would otherwise have been entitled to recover from such Charging Company.

#### 4. CHARGING CLAUSE

## 4.1 Legal Mortgage

Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, by way of first legal mortgage, all its estates and interests in the Legally Mortgaged Property.

## 42 Fixed Charges

Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities, by way of first fixed charge

- 421. all its estates and interests in the Property (other than the Legally Mortgaged Property),
- 4.2.2. all its Plant and Equipment,
- 4.2.3. the Shares;
- 4.2.4. all its Investment Interests;
- 4.2.5. all its Intellectual Property Rights;
- 4 2 6. all licences, consents and authorisations (statutory or otherwise) held or required in connection with the business of each Charging Company or the use of any Charged Property and all rights in connection with them:
- 4 2 7. all its beneficial interests, claims or entitlements in any pension fund;
- 428 all its goodwill and uncalled capital;
- 429 all the book debts and monetary claims due or owing to it in any manner whatsoever;
- 4.2.10. all balances standing to the credit of any of its current, deposit or other account with any banks, lenders, financial institutions or similar third parties and the debt or debts represented thereby, other than any such balances to the extent effectively assigned to the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture; and
- 4 2 11. all its benefits in respect of all contracts and policies of insurance which are from time to time taken out by it or (to the extent of such interest) in which it has an interest, other than any such benefits to the extent effectively assigned to the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture

## 43. Assignments in Security

- 4.3 1. Each Charging Company hereby assigns with full title guarantee absolutely to the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, all of its right, title and interest in and to
  - (a) the Insurance Policies; and
  - (b) the Specified Accounts
- 432 To the extent (if any) that such right, title and/or interest is not assignable, such assignment will operate as an assignment of all proceeds received by such Charging Company under the Insurance Policies or the Specified Accounts (as the case may be) as security for the Secured Liabilities

## 44. Floating Charge

- 4.4.1. Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, by way of first floating charge, its undertaking and all its property and assets both present and future (including, without limitation, any property or assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots Law).
- 4 4 2. The floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture shall be deferred in point of priority to all fixed security validly and effectively created by a Charging Company under the Finance Documents in favour of the Security Trustee.
- 4.43 Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 applies to the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture

## 4.5. Conversion Of Floating Charge

#### 451. Conversion by Notice

If, at any time:

- (a) an Event of Default occurs;
- (b) the Security Trustee reasonably believes that any assets of any Charging Company are in danger of being seized or sold under any form of distress, execution or similar process or are otherwise in jeopardy; or
- (c) the Security Trustee reasonably believes that it is desirable to protect the priority or enforceability of the Security created by this Guarantee and Debenture,

then, without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 452 (Automatic Conversion), the Security Trustee may, by notice in writing to that Charging Company, convert the floating charge created by that Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture into a fixed charge in relation to the assets specified in such notice.

#### 4.5 2 Automatic Conversion

Ιf٠

(a) any Charging Company charges, pledges or otherwise encumbers (whether by way of fixed or floating charge) any of the Charged Property or attempts to do so without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee;

- (b) any creditor or other person levies any distress, execution or other process against all or any of the Charged Property belonging to a Charging Company,
- (c) a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation of any Charging Company; or
- (d) an administrator is appointed to a Charging Company or any person entitled to do so gives notice of its intention to appoint an administrator to any Charging Company or files such a notice with the court,

then, in the absence of any notice or other action by the Security Trustee pursuant to Clause 4.5.1 (Conversion by Notice), the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture by such Charging Company shall automatically operate as a fixed charge upon the property, assets or income belonging to that Charging Company which is subject to the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture forthwith upon the occurrence of such event

#### 45.3. Scotland

The terms of Clause 451 (Conversion by Notice) and Clause 45.2 (Automatic Conversion) shall not apply in respect of any property or assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots law if and to the extent that any such conversion is ineffective under Scots law or would result in any Receiver being unable to exercise any powers under Section 72 of the Insolvency Act 1986

## 454 Assets Acquired After Any Floating Charge Crystallisation

Any asset acquired by a Charging Company after any crystallisation of the floating charge created under this Guarantee and Debenture by that Charging Company which, but for such crystallisation, would be subject to a floating charge shall (unless the Security Trustee confirms in writing to the contrary) be charged to the Security Trustee by way of first fixed charge.

#### 455 Reconversion of Fixed Charge into Floating Charge

At any time following the conversion of the floating charge created under this Guarantee and Debenture by a Charging Company into a fixed charge in accordance with Clause 4.5.1 (Conversion by Notice) or Clause 4.5.2 (Automatic Conversion), the Security Trustee may reconvert such fixed charge into a floating charge by giving notice to the relevant Charging Company

#### 456 Small company moratorium

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Guarantee and Debenture, where a Charging Company is an eligible company in terms of section 1A and Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the obtaining of a moratorium or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium (including any preliminary decision or investigation) shall not cause the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture to crystallise or cause restrictions that would not otherwise apply to be imposed on the disposal of property by a Charging Company

## 46 Exclusion of leasehold properties

- 1.61 There shall be excluded from the charges created by Clause 4.2.1 any leasehold property held by a Charging Company under any lease entered into after the date of this Guarantee and Debenture which either precludes absolutely or conditionally (including requiring the consent of any third party) such Charging Company from creating any mortgage or charge over its leasehold interest in that property (each an "Excluded Property") until the relevant condition or waiver has been satisfied or obtained.
- 4.6 2 For each Excluded Property the Charging Company that is the tenant thereof undertakes to.
  - (a) apply for the relevant consent or waiver of prohibition or conditions within 10 Business Days of the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and to use all reasonable endeavours to obtain that consent or waiver or prohibition as soon as possible;
  - (b) keep the Security Trustee informed of its progress in obtaining such consent or waiver; and
  - (c) forthwith upon receipt of such consent or waiver provide the Security Trustee with a copy thereof
- Forthwith upon receipt of the relevant waiver or consent, the relevant property shall stand charged by way of legal mortgage to the Security Trustee and, if requested by the Security Trustee, the Charging Company that is the tenant thereof shall grant a legal charge in relation to its interest in such property

#### NEGATIVE PLEDGE

#### 51 Negative Pledge

Each Charging Company hereby covenants that (without the prior consent of the Security Trustee) it shall not:

- 5 1 1 create (or permit to subsist) any Security or Quasi-Security over all or any part of its present or future revenues or assets;
- 512 sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of or part with possession of (by one or more transactions or series of transactions

whether related or not) the whole or any part of its property revenues, assets or rights (other than assets only subject to an uncrystallised floating charge in the ordinary course of business); or

5 1 3 dispose of the equity of redemption of all or any part of the Charged Property,

except as permitted under the Finance Documents.

## 6. PROTECTION OF SECURITY

#### 61. Notice of Assignments

- 6.11. Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee:
  - (a) to give promptly upon the request of the Security Trustee in the case of the Insurance Policies, a notice substantially in the form of Schedule 5 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Insurance),
  - (b) to give promptly upon the designation at any time by the Parent and the Security Trustee of any bank account as a Specified Account in the case of the Specified Accounts, a notice substantially in the form of Schedule 6 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Specified Account),

and/or such other form of notice of assignment (and any subsequent assignments hereunder) as the Security Trustee may from time to time require

6 1 2 Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee to use all reasonable endeavours to procure that each notice specified in Clause 6.1.1 is acknowledged by the recipient thereof

## 6.2. Notices of Charge

6.2.1. Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that, if requested by the Security Trustee at any time, it will promptly deliver to the Security Trustee (or procure delivery of) notices of charge (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Security Trustee) executed by, or on behalf of, the relevant Charging Company and shall use its reasonable endeavours to deliver to the Security Trustee acknowledgements of each of those notices from each of the banks, lender, financial institutions or similar third parties with which any of its bank accounts charged in terms of Clause 4.2 10 are opened or maintained.

## 63 Registration of Restriction

In respect of the properties specified in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*), the title to which is, or which is to be, registered at the Land Registry and in respect of any other registered title(s) in England and Wales against which this Guarantee and Debenture may be noted, each Charging

Company shall notify the Security Trustee of the relevant title number(s) and shall apply forthwith to the Chief Land Registrar for a restriction completed in substantially the following terms to be entered on the Register of Title relating thereto:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate [or by the proprietor of any registered charge] is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the Guarantee and Debenture dated • between Angel Acquisitions Limited and others as Charging Companies and Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee for the Secured Parties (as defined therein) referred to in the charges register or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its authorised signatory".

## 64. Registration of Title

No Charging Company shall, without the previous written consent of the Security Trustee, register any person or cause or permit any person to be registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 and any subsequent Land Registration Acts (and any regulations or orders made thereunder) as the proprietor of that Charging Company's interest in the Legally Mortgaged Property or any part thereof and the costs of entering a caution against such registration shall be deemed to be costs properly incurred by the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture.

## 65. Further Advances

The obligation on the part of the Secured Parties (or any of them) to make further advances is deemed to be incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture and each Charging Company applies to the Chief Land Registrar for a note of such obligation to be entered on the Register of Title of all present and future registered freehold and leasehold property of that Charging Company.

## 66 Deposit of Title Deeds

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that it shall:

- 6.1. on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture, deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all deeds and documents of title relating to (a) the Legally Mortgaged Property and (b) all other freehold and leasehold property in which a Charging Company has an interest on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture (other than an Excluded Property); and
- 662 promptly upon the acquisition of any interest in any freehold or leasehold property (other than an Excluded Property), deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all deeds and documents of title relating to that property

## 67 Deposit of Share Certificates

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that it shall:

- on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture, deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all certificates or other documents of title to the Shares and any Investment Interests held by or on behalf of a Charging Company as at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture together with stock transfer forms (executed in blank by or on behalf of the relevant Charging Company), and
- 67.2. promptly upon the acquisition of any Investment Interests or the accrual, offer or issue of any stocks, shares, warrants or other securities in respect of or derived from the Shares or the Investment Interest, notify the Security Trustee of that occurrence and deliver to the Security Trustee (i) all certificates or other documents of title and (ii) such stock transfer forms or other instruments of transfer (executed in blank by or on behalf of the relevant and Charging Companies) in respect thereof as the Security Trustee may request

## 68. Registration of Intellectual Property Rights

Each Charging Company hereby agrees:

- 681. If requested by the Security Trustee, to register the interest of the Security Trustee in any of its Specified Intellectual Property Rights (in each registry where such Specified Intellectual Property Rights are registered) and shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute all such documents and do all acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any Specified Intellectual Property Rights, and
- of 82 if requested by the Security Trustee, to register the interest of the Security Trustee in any Intellectual Property Rights (other than the Specified Intellectual Property Rights) in which that Charging Company has an interest (in each registry where such Intellectual Property Right is registered) and shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute all such documents and do all such acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any such Intellectual Property Right.

## 69. Notice of Charge of Plant and Equipment

Promptly upon a request by the Security Trustee, each Charging Company shall (at its own expense) place and maintain in a conspicuous place on each item of Plant and Equipment as the Security Trustee may specify a clearly legible plate, sign or label in such form as the Security Trustee may require giving notice of the charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 7. FURTHER ASSURANCE

#### 71 Further assurance

Each Charging Company shall

- 7.1.1. at the request of the Security Trustee and at the cost of that Charging Company, execute in favour of the Security Trustee (or as it may direct) a Supplemental Mortgage over any freehold or leasehold property which it owns or leases; and
- 71.2. enter into such further or other legal assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges or other documents and do all such other things as in any such case the Security Trustee may require in respect of that Charging Company's estate or interest in any property or assets of whatsoever nature or tenure and wherever situated, for the purpose of more effectively perfecting or protecting the security intended to be provided hereby, for facilitating the enforcement of such security or to create in favour of the Security Trustee security no more onerous than the security intended to be created pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage over any property or asset of a Charging Company located in a jurisdiction outside England and Wales.

## 7.2 Necessary Action

Each Charging Company shall take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) as may be necessary for the purposes of the creation, perfection, protection or maintenance of any Security conferred or intended to be conferred on the Security Trustee or the Secured Parties by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture.

#### 8. UNDERTAKINGS

#### 81 Undertakings

Each Charging Company hereby undertakes with the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that it will:

- 811 take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) and as may be necessary to create, perfect, protect or maintain all or any of the security created or intended to be created in favour of the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage,
- 8.1.2. If requested to do so by the Security Trustee and subject to the provisions of Clause 4 6 (Exclusion of leasehold properties) in respect of Excluded Properties, use all reasonable endeavours to obtain (in form and content reasonably satisfactory to the Security Trustee) as soon as possible any consents necessary to enable the assets of that Charging Company to be the subject of an effective fixed charge or assignment pursuant to Clause 4 (Charging Clause) and, immediately upon

- obtaining any such consent, the relevant asset shall become subject to such Security and that Charging Company shall deliver a copy of each consent to the Security Trustee,
- 8.1.3. notify the Security Trustee in writing of the acquisition or purchase by that Charging Company from time to time of any freehold or leasehold property (or the equivalent in any other jurisdiction) and, promptly upon such acquisition or purchase, enter into such documents (including mortgages and charges) in favour of the Security Trustee as the Security Trustee may require;
- 8 1.4. keep all buildings forming part of the Charged Property and all plant, machinery, works, fixtures, fittings, implements, tools and other effects thereon and therein in no worse state of repair and condition than as at the date hereof (fair wear and tear excepted) and not take, or omit to take, with regard to any freehold or leasehold property or any such buildings forming part of the Charged Property, any action which might have a material adverse effect on the value of such property,
- 8.15. perform and observe all covenants and stipulations restrictive or otherwise affecting the Charged Property and permit the Security Trustee or any person nominated by it free access at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice to view the state and condition thereof;
- 8.16. not carry out any development within the meaning of the Planning Acts on or in respect of the Legally Mortgaged Property or any part thereof or sever or remove any of the fixtures forming part of the Legally Mortgaged Property or any of the plant and machinery on or in the Charged Property (except for the purpose of the replacement thereof or any necessary repairs) without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,
- 8.17. pay the rents reserved by and perform and observe all the covenants, agreements and stipulations on the part of the lessee contained in any lease or leases of the Legally Mortgaged Property and not do or suffer to be done any act or thing whereby the said lease or leases may become liable to the forfeiture or otherwise be determined;
- 8 1 8 not agree, accept, suffer or permit any alteration, variation or addition to the terms of any lease or leases of the Legally Mortgaged Property without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee;
- 819. use the Legally Mortgaged Property only for such purpose or purposes as may from time to time be authorised as the permitted use thereof under or by virtue of the Planning Acts,
- 8 1 10 within seven days after receipt of any notice or order given, issued or made to that Charging Company by any planning authority under or by virtue of the Planning Acts give full particulars thereof to the Security Trustee and (without delay and at the cost of that Charging

Company) take all reasonable or necessary steps to comply with any such notice or order and/or make or join with the Security Trustee in making such objections or representations against or in respect of any such notice or order as the Security Trustee shall require,

- 8.1 11 pay all taxes, rents, rates, duty, fees, charges, assessments, impositions and outgoings whatsoever (whether imposed by deed or statute or otherwise) which are properly payable in respect of the Charged Property or any part thereof by the owner or occupier thereof;
- 8.1.12. preserve, maintain and renew as and when necessary all copyrights, licences, patents, trademarks and other intellectual property rights required in connection with its business and not use or permit such intellectual property rights to be used in any manner which may have a material and adverse effect upon its value;
- 8113. upon request and following receipt of reasonable notice from the Security Trustee, permit the Security Trustee and its representatives, advisers and contractors, access at reasonable times to any of its freehold or leasehold properties or other premises to view the Charged Property.

## 8.2. Failure to comply

If a Charging Company fails to comply with any of the undertakings detailed in Clause 8.1 (*Undertakings*), the Security Trustee may do such things as in its reasonable opinion may be required to remedy such failure and all sums expended in so doing shall be reimbursed by that Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until it is reimbursed at the Default Rate.

## 9. THE SHARES AND INVESTMENT INTERESTS

#### 9.1 Shares: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing

- 911. each Charging Company shall be entitled to receive and obtain all dividends paid in respect of the Shares, and
- 9.1 2 each Charging Company shall be entitled to exercise all voting and other rights and powers attached to the Shares provided that the Charging Company shall not exercise any voting rights or other powers in any way that restricts or limits the ability of the Security Trustee to sell or transfer the Shares to any third party, conflicts with any of the Finance Documents or is otherwise likely to have an adverse effect on the value of the Shares

## 9 2 Shares and Investment Interests: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Security Trustee may at its discretion

- 9 2 1. exercise (or refrain from exercising) any voting rights in respect of the Shares or the Investment Interests,
- 9.2 2 apply all dividends, interest and other monies arising from the Shares and the Investment Interests in accordance with Clause 16 (Application of Monies),
- 923 complete the stock transfer forms referred to in Clause 6.7 (*Deposit of Share Certificates*) and transfer the Shares or the Investment Interests into the name of the Security Trustee or its nominee(s); and
- 9 2 4 exercise (or refrain from exercising) all other powers and rights of the legal or beneficial owner of the Shares and the Investment Interests in each case in such manner and on such terms as the Security Trustee may think fit, and the proceeds of any such action shall form part of the Charged Property

#### 93. Shares: Nominations

- 9 3.1. Each Charging Company shall terminate with immediate effect all nominations it may have made under Sections 145 and 146 of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the Shares and pending such termination procure that any person so nominated:
  - (a) does not exercise any rights in respect of the Shares without the prior written approval of the Security Trustee, and
  - (b) immediately upon receipt, forward to the Security Trustee all communications or other information received in respect of any Shares for which it has been so nominated.
- 9 3 2 No Charging Company shall exercise any rights under Section 145 and 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to nominate any person in respect of the Shares

#### 94. Shares: Information

The Charging Companies shall send to the Security Trustee copies of all notices, circulars, reports, accounts and other documents which are sent to holders of any Shares promptly following receipt.

## 95. Shares and Investment Interests: Calls and Payments

Subject to the terms of the Finance Documents, the Charging Companies shall promptly pay all calls or other payments which may be or become due and payable in respect of any of the Shares or any of the Investment Interests. If any Charging Company defaults in making such payment, the Security Trustee may make such payment on behalf of such Charging Company. Any sums paid by the Security Trustee shall be reimbursed by the relevant Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until reimbursed at the Default Rate.

## 9.6 Investment Interests: Exercise of Rights

A Charging Company shall not exercise any of its rights and powers in relation to any of the Investment Interests in any manner that restricts or limits the ability of the Security Trustee to sell or transfer the Investment Interests to any third party, conflicts with any of the Finance Documents or is otherwise likely to have an adverse effect on the value of the Investment Interests.

#### 10. ACCOUNTS

#### 101. Accounts: Notification and Variation

The Charging Companies

- 10 1 1 shall deliver to the Security Trustee on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture (and on the date of any change occurring thereafter) details of each current, deposit or other account maintained by it with any bank, lender, financial institution or similar third party; and
- 10 1 2 shall not, without the Security Trustee's prior written consent, permit or agree to any variation of the rights attaching to any current, deposit or other account or close any such account where, in the reasonable opinion of the Security Trustee, such variation or closure would prejudice the security created by this Guarantee and Debenture in any manner whatsoever

#### 10.2. Accounts: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any current, deposit or other such account (other than a Specified Account).

## 103. Accounts: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Charging Companies shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any current, deposit or other account without the prior consent of the Security Trustee

#### 104. Specified Accounts

- 10 4 1. Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any Specified Account.
- 10 4 2 After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing:
  - (a) the Charging Companies shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to

time on any Specified Account without the prior consent of the Security Trustee,

- (b) the Security Trustee shall be entitled to exercise from time to time all rights, powers and remedies held by it as assignee of the Specified Accounts and to:
  - (1) demand and receive all and any monies due under or arising out of each Specified Account; and
  - (ii) exercise all such rights as the Charging Companies were then entitled to exercise in relation to such Specified Account or might, but for the terms of any of the Finance Documents, exercise.

## 10.5 Accounts: Application of Monies

Following the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Security Trustee shall be entitled to apply, transfer or set-off all or any of the credit balances from time to time on any current, deposit or other account in or towards the payment or other satisfaction of all or part of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the provisions of Clause 16 (Application of Monies).

#### 11. BOOK DEBTS

#### 11.1. Collection

No Charging Company will deal with its book debts other than by getting them in and realising them in the ordinary course of its business and by paying them into a current, deposit or other account. Each Charging Company shall, pending such payment, hold all amounts so received in trust for the Security Trustee.

#### 11.2. Book Debts: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, such amount will be credited to a current, deposit or other account will be subject to the terms of the floating charge created by Clause 44 (Floating Charge) but (subject thereto) the relevant Charging Company shall be free to deal with such amount in the ordinary course of its business.

## 113 Book Debts: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Charging Companies shall not, except with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee, be entitled to withdraw or otherwise deal in any way with any amount standing to the credit of any current, deposit or other account or any Specified Account

#### 12. INSURANCE

## 12.1 Insurance Undertakings

Each Charging Company shall

- 1211. keep the Charged Property insured (with reputable independent insurance companies or underwriters) against those risks and to the extent as is usual for companies carrying on the same or substantially similar business,
- 12 1 2 if required by the Security Trustee, ensure that each Insurance Policy relating to the Charged Property (other than any Insurance Policies in respect of which a notice of assignment has already been sent pursuant to the provisions of Clause 61 (Notice of Assignments)) is issued in the joint name of the Security Trustee and the relevant Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture noted thereon;
- 1213. promptly pay all premiums and other moneys payable under its Insurance Policies and, promptly upon request by the Security Trustee, deliver to the Security Trustee a copy of each policy and evidence (in a form acceptable to the Security Trustee) of the payment of such sums,
- 12.14 perform all of its obligations under its Insurance Policies;
- 12.15 not make or agree to make any amendments to its Insurance Policies, waive any of its rights under its Insurance Policies or terminate any of its Insurance Policies without the prior written consent of the Security Agent; and
- 12.1 6. If required by the Security Trustee, deposit all Insurance Policies with the Security Trustee.

## 12.2 Security Trustee's Powers

If at any time any Charging Company fails to comply with the terms of Clause 121 (Insurance Undertakings), the Security Trustee may effect or renew any such insurance on such terms, in such name and in such amount as it may consider appropriate and all sums expended in doing so shall be reimbursed by that Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until it is reimbursed at the Default Rate

#### 12.3 Application of Insurance Proceeds

All moneys received under any insurance policies relating to the Charged Property shall (subject to the rights and claims of any person having prior rights thereto) prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing be applied in reinstatement or replacement of the assets which were the subject of the relevant claim. After the occurrence of an Event of

Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall hold such monies upon trust for the Security Trustee pending payment to the Security Trustee in accordance with Clause 16.1 (Application of Monies) and that Charging Company waives any right it may have to require that such monies are applied in reinstatement of any part of the Charged Property

## 13. POWERS OF SECURITY TRUSTEE

#### 13.1. Exercise of Powers

At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, the security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture is immediately enforceable and the Security Trustee may (without further notice and without any of the restrictions contained in Section 103 of the Act and whether or not it shall have appointed a Receiver).

- 13 1.1 exercise all the powers conferred on mortgagees by the Act (as varied or extended by this Guarantee and Debenture);
- 13.1 2 exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture;
- 13 1.3. enforce all or any part of the security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 1314. take possession of and retain or dispose of all or any part of the Charged Property.

The power of sale conferred upon the Security Trustee and on any Receiver by this Guarantee and Debenture shall operate as a variation and extension of the statutory power of sale under Section 101 of the Act and such power shall arise (and the Secured Liabilities shall be deemed due and payable for that purpose) on the execution of this Guarantee and Debenture

### 13.2. Statutory Powers

- 13.21 The statutory powers of leasing, letting, entering into arrangements for leases or lettings and accepting and agreeing to accept the surrenders of leases conferred by Sections 99 and 100 of the Act shall not be exercisable by a Charging Company in relation to any part of the Charged Property without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee
- 13 2.2 The Security Trustee shall have power after the occurrence of an Event of Default to lease or make agreements for leases at a premium or otherwise and accept surrenders of leases without any restriction on the kinds of leases and agreements for leases that the Security Trustee may make without the necessity for the Security Trustee to comply with the provisions of Sections 99 and 100 of the Act.
- 13 2.3 The Security Trustee may delegate the powers set out in Clauses 13.2 1 and 13 2 2 to any person and no such delegation shall preclude the

subsequent exercise of such powers by the Security Trustee itself or preclude the Security Trustee from making a subsequent delegation thereof to some other person. Any such delegation may be revoked by the Security Trustee at any time

## 13.3 Consolidation of mortgages

The restriction on the right of consolidating mortgage securities contained in Section 93 of the Act shall not apply to this Guarantee and Debenture or to any Supplemental Mortgage

## 13 4. Mortgagee in possession

So far as permitted by law, neither the Security Trustee nor any Receiver shall, by reason of it or any Receiver entering into possession of any part of the Charged Property when entitled to do so, be liable to account as mortgagee in possession or be liable for any loss or realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable

#### 135. Prior Charges

The Security Trustee may at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing redeem any prior Security on or relating to the Charged Property or may procure the transfer of such Security to itself and settle and pass the accounts to which the Security relates. Any accounts so settled and passed shall be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Charging Company. Each Charging Company shall reimburse the Security Trustee on demand all principal monies and interest and all losses incidental to such redemption or transfer.

#### 136 Financial Collateral

The Security Trustee may, to the extent that any of the mortgaged property constitutes "financial collateral" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations) and that this Guarantee and Debenture constitutes a "security financial collateral arrangement" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations), appropriate such financial collateral in or towards the discharge of the Secured Liabilities.

#### 137 Value of Financial Collateral

Each Charging Company and the Security Trustee agree for the purposes of Clause 13 6 (*Financial Collateral*) that the value of any such financial collateral so appropriated shall be:

- 1371 in the case of any cash, the amount standing to the credit of the relevant account together with any accrued interest at the date of appropriation, and
- 13 7 2 in the case of the Shares or the Investment Interests (or any other shares or stock of any nature whatsoever in the capital of any company), the market value thereof as determined by the Security

Trustee (acting reasonably) by reference to the information available to the Security Trustee

In each case each Charging Company and the Security Trustee agree that the method of valuation referred to above shall constitute a commercially reasonable method of valuing the relevant financial collateral for the purposes of the Financial Collateral Regulations

## 14. APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER

## 14.1 Appointment of Receiver

At any time after:

- 1411. the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing,
- 14.1.2. a petition or application is presented or a resolution proposed for the winding up, reorganisation or administration of a Charging Company,
- 14.1.3 a Charging Company or any other person entitled to do so gives written notice of its intention to appoint an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company or the appointment of an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company; or
- 1414 a written request has been made by a Charging Company to the Security Trustee for the appointment of a Receiver or administrator,

the Security Trustee may appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver or Receivers of the Charged Property or any part thereof.

#### 14.2 Removal of Receiver

Subject to Section 45 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the Security Trustee may remove any Receiver previously appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture and appoint another person or persons as Receiver or Receivers, either in the place of a Receiver so removed or who has otherwise ceased to act or to act jointly with the Receiver or Receivers previously appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture.

#### 14.3 Joint and several appointment

If at any time and by virtue of any such appointments any two or more persons shall hold office as Receivers of the same assets or income, such Receivers may act jointly and/or severally so that each one of such Receivers shall be entitled (save to the extent that the contrary shall be stated in any of the deeds or other instruments appointing them) to exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture on Receivers individually and to the exclusion of the other or others of them.

## 14 4. Appointment in writing under hand

Every such appointment or removal and every delegation, appointment or removal by the Security Trustee in the exercise of any rights to delegate its powers or to remove delegates contained in this Guarantee and Debenture, may be made in writing under the hand of any officer of the Security Trustee.

#### 145. General Powers of Receiver

Every Receiver shall have

- 14.5 1. all the powers conferred by the Act on mortgagees in possession and receivers appointed under the Act;
- 14.5.2. all the powers specified in the Insolvency Act 1986 (whether or not such Receiver is an administrative receiver within the meaning of the Insolvency Act 1986),
- 1453 all the powers of the Secured Parties under this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 1454 all the powers and rights of an absolute owner to do or omit to do anything which a Charging Company itself could do or omit to do; and
- 1455 the power to do all things which are in the opinion of the Receiver incidental or conducive to the powers vested in him by this Guarantee and Debenture or by law or are incidental or conducive to the gathering in by him of any assets which, when gathered in would be, Charged Property.

#### 14.6. Further Powers of a Receiver

Every Receiver may

- 14.6.1. collect in and take possession of the Charged Property or any part of it and make such demands and take such proceedings as may seem expedient for that purpose;
- 14 6 2. carry on the business of a Charging Company as he thinks fit,
- 14 6 3. provide services and employ, or engage such managers, contractors and other personnel on such terms as he thinks fit,
- 14.6.4. discharge any person appointed by a Charging Company,
- 14 6 5. raise and borrow money (either unsecured or secured on any Charged Property) on such terms as he shall think fit (including, if the Security Agent consents, terms under which such security ranks in priority to this Guarantee and Debenture),

- 14 6 6. undertake or complete any works of repair, building or development on any property of a Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed,
- 1467 grant options and licences over all or any part of the Charged Property, sell, concur in selling, assign or concur in assigning, lease or concur in leasing and accept or concur in accepting surrenders of leases of, all or any of the property of a Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed,
- 1468 make any arrangement, settlement or compromise between a Charging Company and any other person which he may think expedient;
- 1469 bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon all actions and proceedings and submit to arbitration in the name of a Charging Company in relation to any Charged Property as he may think expedient;
- 14 6 10 make calls conditionally or unconditionally on the members of a Charging Company in respect of uncalled capital,
- 14 6.11 make such elections for value added tax purposes as he thinks fit;
- 14 6.12 manage, develop, reconstruct, amalgamate or diversify or concur in managing, developing, reconstructing, amalgamating or diversifying the business of a Charging Company,
- 14.6 13 redeem any prior Security on or relating to the Charged Property and settle and pass the accounts to which the Security relates so that any accounts so settled and passed shall be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Charging Company and the monies so paid shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred by him,
- 14 6.14 effect with any insurer any policy of insurance in relation to the Charged Property; and
- 14 6 15.promote or establish any new company (whether a Subsidiary of a Charging Company or not).

#### 147 Consideration

In making any sale or the disposal of any of the Charged Property in the exercise of their respective powers, the Receiver or the Security Trustee may accept as, and by way of consideration for such sale or other disposal, cash, shares, loan capital or other obligations, including, without limitation, consideration fluctuating, according to or dependent on turnover and consideration the amount of which is to be determined by a third party. Any such consideration may be receivable in a lump sum or by way of instalments

## 148. Receiver as agent of the Charging Company

Every Receiver shall be the agent of the Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed which shall be solely responsible for his acts and defaults and for the payment of his remuneration.

#### 149 Remuneration

Each Receiver shall be entitled to remuneration for his services at a rate to be fixed by agreement between him and the Security Trustee (or, failing such agreement, to be conclusively fixed by the Security Trustee) commensurate with the work and responsibilities involved upon the basis of charging from time to time adopted in accordance with his current practice or the current practice of his firm and without being limited to the maximum rate specified in Section 109(6) of the Act.

#### 15. APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR

## 15 1 Appointment of an Administrator

At any time after

- 15.11. the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing;
- 15 1 2. a petition or application is presented or resolution proposed for the winding up, reorganisation or administration of a Charging Company,
- 15 1 3 a Charging Company or any other person entitled to do so gives written notice of its intention to appoint an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company or the appointment of an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company, or
- 15 1 4. a written request has been made by a Charging Company to the Security Trustee for the appointment of a Receiver or administrator,

the Security Trustee may without further notice appoint in writing under its hand any person or persons to be an administrator of a Charging Company

## 15.2 Joint and several appointment

If at any time and by virtue of any such appointments any two or more persons shall hold office as administrators, such administrators may act jointly and/or severally so that each one of such administrators shall be entitled (save to the extent that the contrary shall be stated in any of the deeds or other instruments appointing them) to exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture and by law on administrators individually and to the exclusion of the other or others of them

#### 16. APPLICATION OF MONIES

#### 161 Application of Monies

All moneys received by the Security Trustee or by any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture shall be applied in the following order.

- 16.1 1. In the payment of the costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the appointment of any Receiver under this Guarantee and Debenture and the payment of his remuneration,
- 16 1 2. In the payment and discharge of any outgoings paid and liabilities incurred by any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture in the exercise of any powers of such Receiver,
- 16 1.3. in providing for the matters (other than the remuneration of a Receiver) specified in the first three paragraphs of Section 109(8) of the Act,
- 16.1.4 in or towards payments of any debts or claims which are required by law to be paid in preference to the Secured Liabilities, but only to the extent to which such debts or claims have such preference;
- 16 1 5 in or towards the satisfaction of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the terms of the Investor Loan Agreements; and
- 1616. any surplus shall be paid to the Charging Companies or any other person entitled thereto

#### 16 2. Section 109 of the Act

The provisions of this Clause 16.2 and Clause 14.9 (*Remuneration*) shall take effect as and by way of variation and extension to the provisions of Section 109(8) of the Act, which provisions as so varied and extended shall be deemed to be incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture.

#### 17. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

#### 17.1 Representations and Warranties

Each Charging Company represents and warrants to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that

- 17.1 1. It is a limited liability company duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of England and Wales with power to own its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted;
- 17 1 2 subject to the Legal Reservations, the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in each Finance Document to which it is a party are legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations,
- 17 1 3 the entering into and performance by it of, and the transactions contemplated by, the Finance Documents do not and will not conflict with

- (a) subject to the Legal Reservations, any law or regulation applicable to it;
- (b) its constitutional documents,
- (c) any agreement or instrument binding upon it or any of its assets or constitute a default or termination event (howsoever described) under any such agreement or instrument,
- 17 1 4. It has the necessary power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action to authorise its entry into, performance and delivery of, the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the transactions contemplated by those Finance Documents;
- 1715 all authorisations, approvals, consents, licences, exemptions, filings, registrations and other matters required by it in connection with the entry into by it of the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the exercise by it of its rights thereunder and the performance by it of its obligations thereunder and in connection with the validity and enforceability of such Finance Documents have been obtained or effected and are in full force and effect;
- 1716. this Guarantee and Debenture validly creates any security interest which it purports to create and validly evidences any Security which it purports to evidence;
- 17.1.7. It is or has the right to be registered as the sole legal and beneficial owner of the Charged Property, free and clear of any Security or Quasi Security which is not permitted in terms of the Finance Documents;
- 17.18. the Shares and the Investment Interests comprise the whole of the Shares in any company legally or beneficially owned by the Charging Companies and the whole of the investments of any kind whatsoever in any company or other entity legally or beneficially owned by the Charging Companies;
- 1719. subject to the Legal Reservations, this Guarantee and Debenture creates a valid charge over all the Charged Property securing the payment of the Secured Liabilities and, other than registration hereof pursuant to Section 860 of the Companies Act 2006 and, in the case of any property described in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*), registration hereof at the Land Registry, and, in the case of any Specified Intellectual Property Rights described in Schedule 4 (*The Specified Intellectual Property Rights*), registration hereof at the Intellectual Property Office, no authorisation, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with any person, governmental authority or regulatory body is required either for the grant by it of the charges granted hereby or for the execution, delivery or performance of this Guarantee and Debenture by it, or for the exercise by the Security Trustee of its rights and remedies hereunder, and

17 1.10 it has good, valid and marketable title to or valid leases of all of its assets including those necessary to carry on its business as presently conducted.

## 17.2 Repetition

Each of the representations and warranties made by the Charging Companies under Clause 17.1 (*Representations and Warranties*) are made on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and on each date that the representations and warranties contained in the Investor Loan Agreements are repeated

## 18. POWER OF ATTORNEY

## 18.1 Power of Attorney

Each Charging Company hereby irrevocably appoints the Security Trustee and any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture and for the time being holding office as such severally to be its attorney and on its behalf and in its name to sign, seal, execute, deliver, perfect and do all deeds, instruments and/or documents and to do all acts and things which may be required for-

- 18 1 1 carrying out any obligation imposed on that Charging Company by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 18 1.2. enabling the Security Trustee and the Receiver to exercise the rights and powers conferred upon them by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture or by law (including the right to sell, lease, convey, transfer or realise any of the Charged Property).

The Security Trustee shall have full power to delegate the power conferred on it by this Clause 18 1 and no such delegation shall preclude the subsequent exercise of such power by the Security Trustee itself or preclude the Security Trustee from making a subsequent delegation thereof to some other person and any such delegation may be revoked by the Security Trustee at any time.

#### 18.2 Ratification

Each relevant Charging Company shall ratify and confirm all acts and things done and all deeds, instruments and/or documents signed, sealed, executed and/or perfected by any attorney in the exercise or purported exercise of all or any of his powers

## 18.3 Powers of Attorney Act 1971

The power of attorney hereby granted is as regards the Security Trustee its delegates and any such Receiver (and each Charging Company hereby acknowledges) granted irrevocably and for value as part of the security constituted by this Guarantee and Debenture to secure proprietary interests in and the performance of obligations owed to the respective donees within the meaning of the Powers of Attorney Act 1971

#### 19. PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS

#### 191 Consideration

The receipt of the Security Trustee or any Receiver shall be conclusive discharge to a purchaser and, in making any sale or disposal of any of the Charged Property or making any acquisition, the Security Trustee or any Receiver may do so for such consideration, in such manner and on such terms as it thinks fit.

#### 19.2. Protection of Purchasers

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Trustee or its delegate or any Receiver appointed hereunder shall be bound to see or enquire whether the right of the Security Trustee or such Receiver to exercise any of its or his powers has arisen or become exercisable or be concerned with notice to the contrary or be concerned to see whether any such delegation by the Security Trustee shall have lapsed for any reason or be revoked.

#### 20. PRESERVATION OF SECURITY

## 20.1 Continuing Security

The security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and by any Supplemental Mortgage shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security for the Secured Liabilities unless and until discharged by the Security Trustee and shall not be considered satisfied by any intermediate payment or satisfaction of all or any of the Secured Liabilities or for any other reason.

#### 20 2 Waiver of defences

Neither the obligations of each Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture nor the rights, powers and remedies conferred in respect of the Charging Companies upon the Security Trustee will be affected by any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 20.2, would reduce, release or prejudice any of those obligations or those rights, powers and remedies (without limitation and whether or not known to it or any Secured Party) including.

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Charging Company or other person;
- (b) the release of any Charging Company or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any member of the Group,
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any Charging Company or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other

requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security;

- (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of any Charging Company or any other person,
- (e) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension or restatement (however fundamental and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of a Finance Document or any other document or security including, without limitation, any change in the purpose of, any extension of or increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under any Finance Document or other document or security,
- any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security; or
- (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings.

## 20.3. Rights Cumulative

The obligations of each Charging Company contained in this Guarantee and Debenture and all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee expressed in this Guarantee and Debenture are in addition to and independent of all other rights, powers and remedies possessed by the Security Trustee including, without limitation, those provided for in any Finance Document, by applicable law or in any other written instrument or agreement relating to that Charging Company's obligations or the Charged Property.

#### 20.4. Remedies and Waivers

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Security Trustee or any Secured Party, any right or remedy under this Guarantee and Debenture shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy.

#### 20.5 Partial Invalidity

If at any time any provision hereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the law of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

## 20 6 Independent Security

The security constituted by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage shall be in addition to and shall be independent of every mortgage, charge, pledge, guarantee or other security which the

Security Trustee or any other Secured Party may at any time hold in respect of any of the Secured Liabilities and it is hereby declared that no prior security held by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party over the Charged Property or any part thereof shall merge in the security constituted by this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage.

#### 21. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS

Neither the Security Trustee nor the other Secured Parties nor any of them shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers, discretions or remedies conferred upon them in respect of any Charging Company by any of the Finance Documents or by law

- 21.1 to make any demand of any of the Charging Companies other than that required by the terms of the Finance Documents,
- 21.2. to take any action or obtain judgement in any court against any of the Charging Companies;
- 21 3. to submit, make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up, liquidation, insolvency or dissolution of any of the Charging Companies, or
- 21.4 to enforce or seek to enforce any other security taken in respect of any of the obligations of any of the Charging Companies under the Investor Loan Agreements

## 22. SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS

If the Security Trustee (acting in its capacity as security trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties receives or is deemed to have received notice of any subsequent Security affecting all or any part of the Charged Property which is prohibited by the terms of this Guarantee and Debenture, any Supplemental Mortgage or all or any of the Finance Documents, all payments thereafter by or on behalf of a Charging Company to the Security Trustee (whether in its capacity as security trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties shall be treated as having been credited to a new account of the relevant Charging Company and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Liabilities as at the time when the Security Trustee received such notice.

#### 23. SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

So that the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party may claim against any Charging Company or prove in any bankruptcy or liquidation of any Charging Company for the full amount of the Secured Liabilities then owing by it, the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party may, after the occurrence of an Event of Default and for so long as the same is continuing, hold in suspense account, until the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably paid and discharged in full, any moneys received, recovered or realised from or on account of any of the Charging Companies without being under any intermediate obligation to apply the same or any part thereof in or towards the discharge of the said amount. The Security Trustee and each other

Secured Party may refrain from applying or enforcing any other security, money or rights held or received in respect of the Secured Liabilities or may apply the same in such manner and order as they see fit and no Charging Company shall be entitled to the benefit of the same until all the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably paid and discharged in full.

#### 24. SET-OFF

A Secured Party may set-off any matured obligation due from any Charging Company under the Finance Documents (to the extent beneficially owned by that Secured Party) against any matured obligation owed by that Secured Party to any Charging Company, regardless of the place of payment, booking branch or currency of either obligation. If the obligations are in different currencies, the Secured Party may convert either obligation at a market rate of exchange in its usual course of business for the purpose of the set-off.

#### 25. RELEASE AND DISCHARGE

#### 25 1. Release

Subject to Clause 25.2 (Conditional Discharge), each Charging Company shall be entitled, after the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably and unconditionally discharged in full and none of the Secured Parties being under any actual or contingent obligations to make available any facilities of any kind whatsoever to any Charging Company under any of the Finance Documents, to require, at its cost and request, the release, re-assignment or retransfer of any of the Charged Property mortgaged, charged, assigned or transferred hereunder or otherwise in terms of this Guarantee and Debenture.

#### 25.2 Conditional Discharge

Any settlement or discharge between the Charging Companies (or any of them) and the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties or any of them shall be conditional upon no security or payment to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties or any of them by any Charging Company or any other person on behalf of a Charging Company being avoided or reduced by virtue of any provisions or enactments relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation for the time being in force and, if any such security or payment is so avoided or reduced, the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties shall be entitled to recover the value or amount of such security or payment from each Charging Company subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred.

## 26. CHANGES IN SECURED LIABILITIES

Each Charging Company expressly agrees and acknowledges that the parties to the Finance Documents may from time to time agree to make amendments to the terms of those documents and may enter into such supplemental agreements as are required from time to time in order to give effect to such amendments

#### 27. ASSIGNMENT

## 27 1 Security Trustee

The Security Trustee may (without prejudice to its right to appoint any joint trustee) assign and/or transfer all or any of its rights and obligations under this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage to any person appointed as its replacement as Security Trustee (or any joint trustee) in accordance with the terms of the Security Trust Deed. The Security Trustee shall be entitled to disclose such information concerning the Charging Companies and this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage as the Security Trustee considers appropriate to any actual or proposed direct or indirect successor or to any person to whom information may be required to be disclosed by any applicable law.

## 27.2 Charging Companies

No Charging Company may assign or transfer any of its obligations under this Guarantee and Debenture or enter into any transaction which would result in any of those rights or obligations passing to another person

## 28. INDEMNITY

## 28 1. Environmental Indemnity

The Charging Companies shall jointly and severally indemnify the Security Trustee against any and all costs, losses, liabilities or expenses incurred by the Security Trustee arising (directly or indirectly) out of, or in connection with

- 28 1.1. any actual or alleged breach of any Environmental Law by any member of the Group or affecting any freehold or leasehold property now or at any time after the date of this Guarantee and Debenture owned or occupied by any member of the Group, or
- 28.1 2 any responsibility of the Security Trustee in respect of any clean-up, repair or other corrective action in relation to any actual or alleged breach or liability in respect of the business or any freehold or leasehold property now or at any time hereafter owned or occupied by any member of the Group.

#### 28.2. Indemnity

Without prejudice to Clause 8 2 (Failure to comply) and Clause 12 2 (Security Trustee's Powers), the Charging Companies shall jointly and severally indemnify the Security Trustee and any Receiver against any cost, loss or liability incurred by either of them as a result of

28 2 1. the taking, holding, protection or enforcement of this Guarantee and Debenture;

- 28 2 2 the exercise or purported exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions and remedies vested in the Security Trustee and each Receiver by this Guarantee and Debenture or by law; or
- 28 2 3 any default by any Charging Company of any of the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in this Guarantee and Debenture

## 29. DISCRETION AND DELEGATION

#### 29 1. Discretion

Any power or right which may be exercised by the Security Trustee or any Receiver under this Guarantee and Debenture may be exercised in the absolute and unfettered discretion of the Security Trustee or Receiver and without any obligation to give reasons

## 29 2 Delegation

The Security Trustee and any Receiver may delegate (either generally or specifically) by power of attorney or any other manner to any person any right, power, authority or discretion conferred on it by this Guarantee and Debenture (including the power of attorney granted under Clause 18 (*Power of Attorney*)). The Security Trustee and any Receiver may make a delegation on the terms and conditions (including the power to sub-delegate) that it thinks fit. Any such delegation shall not preclude the subsequent exercise, any subsequent delegation or any revocation of such right, power, authority or discretion by the Security Trustee or the Receiver.

# 30. CALCULATIONS AND CERTIFICATES

#### 301 Accounts

In any litigation or arbitration proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture, the entries made in the accounts maintained by the Security Trustee or a Secured Party are prima facie evidence of the matters to which they relate.

#### 30.2. Certificates and determinations

Any certificate or determination by the Security Trustee or a Secured Party of a rate or amount under this Guarantee and Debenture is, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the matters to which it relates

#### 31. PERPETUITY PERIOD

The perpetuity period applicable to the trusts contained in or arising from this Guarantee and Debenture shall be one hundred and twenty five years from the date hereof

#### 32. NOTICES

## 32.1 Communications in Writing

Any communication to be made under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture shall be made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be made by fax or letter.

#### 32 2 Address

The address and fax number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of each party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture is that identified with its name below or any substitute address, fax number or department or officer as the party may notify to the other parties by not less than 5 Business Days' notice.

## 323. Delivery

- 32 3 1 Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture will only be effective.
  - (a) if by way of fax, when received in legible form, or
  - (b) If by way of letter, when it has been it has been left at the relevant address or 5 Business Days after being deposited in the post postage prepaid in an envelope addressed to it at that address,

and, if a particular department or officer is specified as part of its address details provided under Clause 32 2 (*Address*), if addressed to that department or officer

32.3 2 Any communication or document to be made or delivered to the Security Trustee will be effective only when actually received by the Security Trustee and then only if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer identified with the Security Trustees' signature below (or any substitute department or officer as the Security Trustee shall specify for this purpose)

#### 32 4. English Language

- 32.4.1 Any notice given under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture must be in English
- 3242 All other documents provided under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture must be.
  - (a) in English; or

(b) If not in English, and if so required by the Security Trustee, accompanied by a certified English translation and, in this case, the English translation will prevail unless the document is a constitutional, statutory or other official document

#### 33. COUNTERPARTS

This Guarantee and Debenture may be executed in any number of counterparts and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 34. GOVERNING LAW

This Guarantee and Debenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.

## 35. JURISDICTION

# 35 1 Jurisdiction of English Courts

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Guarantee and Debenture) (a "Dispute").

## 35 2. Convenient Forum

The parties to this Guarantee and Debenture agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no party to this Guarantee and Debenture will argue to the contrary.

## 35 3. Concurrent Proceedings

This Clause 35 is for the benefit of the Secured Parties only. As a result, no Secured Party shall be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Secured Parties may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

IN WITNESS whereof this Guarantee and Debenture has been executed by each Charging Company and the Security Trustee as its deed the day and year first above written

# THE CHARGING COMPANIES

Name Registered Number

Angel Acquisitions Limited 08389984

Healthcare Locums Limited 04736913

# THE SHARES

Registered Owner	Name	Class of Shares	Denomination of Shares	Number of Shares
Angel Acquisitions Limited	Healthcare Locums Limited	Ordinary	£0 10	847,799,742
Angel Acquisitions Limited	Healthcare Locums Limited	Preference	£0.10	121,900,260

# THE LEGALLY MORTGAGED PROPERTY

None

## THE SPECIFIED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

## PART 1

# TRADE MARKS, SERVICE MARKS, DESIGNS, COPYRIGHTS AND APPLICATIONS THEREFOR

None

## PART 2

## PATENTS AND PATENT APPLICATIONS

None

## PART 3

## OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES

None

#### FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE

To. [.	Insurerj
--------	----------

Date:	[	]

Dear Sirs

We hereby give you notice that we have assigned to Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee (the "Security Trustee") pursuant to a composite guarantee and debenture entered into by, among others, us in favour of the Security Trustee dated • all of our right, title and interest in and to the proceeds of [insert details of relevant insurance policy] (the "Insurance Policy")

With effect from your receipt of this notice we hereby instruct you to:

- (1) note the interest of the Security Trustee on the Insurance Policy; and
- (1) disclose to the Security Trustee, without further approval from us, such information regarding the Insurance Policy as the Security Trustee may from time to time request and to send to it copies of all notices issued by you under the Insurance Policy.

With effect from the receipt by you of this notice, all rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for the benefit of ourselves arising from the Insurance Policy belong to and are exercisable by the Security Trustee.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the acknowledgement on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Trustee at Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA marked for the attention of Tim Bee.

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of

Limited

## To. Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA

We acknowledge receipt of the notice in the terms set out above and confirm that we have not received any notice of any previous assignment or charge of or over any of the rights, title and interest and/or benefits referred to in such notice and that we will comply with the terms of that notice.

We further confirm that no amendment or termination of the Insurance Policy will be effective unless we have given 30 days written notice thereof to the Security Trustee

For and on behalf of •

By:

Dated.

## **SCHEDULE 6**

# FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIED ACCOUNT

To: [Account Bank]			
	Date:	]	
Dear Sirs			
We hereby give you notice that we have assigned and charged Limited as security trustee (the "Security Trustee") pursuar guarantee and debenture entered into by, among others, us in fax Trustee dated • all of our right, title and interest in and to a account name •, sort code • (including any renewal or redesignall monies standing to the credit of that account from time to time	nt to a  your of the count of t	compo he Secu number hereof)	site irity • and
With effect from the date of your receipt of this notice any instructions in relation to the Account are terminated.	existin	g payn	ıen
Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the enclosed on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Truste Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA marked to Tim Bee	ee at To	scafund	.GI
Yours faithfully			
For and on behalf of  • Limited			

To. Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA

We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assignment and charge in the terms set out above in respect of the Account (as described in those terms) and confirm that:

- (a) the balance standing to the Account at today's date is ●, no fees or periodic charges are payable in respect of the Account and there are no restrictions on
   (i) the payment of the credit balance on the Account [(except, in the case of a time deposit, the expiry of the relevant period)] or (ii) the assignment of the Account to the Security Trustee or any third party;
- (b) we have not received notice of any previous assignments of, charges over or trusts in respect of, the Account and we will not, without the Security Trustee's consent (a) exercise any right of combination, consolidation or set-off which we may have in respect of the Account or (b) amend or vary any rights attaching to the Account, and
- (c) all existing payment instructions in relation to the Account are terminated and all payments and communications in respect of the Account shall be made to the Security Trustee and we will not, without the Security Trustee's consent amend or vary any rights attaching to the Account

For and on behalf of •

By:

Dated.

Fax:

Attention

# **SIGNATORIES**

EXECUTED and DEANGEL ACQUISITE acting by in the presence of:	LIVERED as its deed by IONS LIMITED , a director,	Director
	Witness	
	Full Nan	ne
	Address	
	Occupat	ion
Address for Notice	10 Old Baıley, London l	EC4M 7NG
Fax.	0207 451 1444	
Attention:	Mark Phillips/Mike De	nnıs
EXECUTED and DE HEALTHCARE LOC acting by in the presence of:	LIVERED as its deed by CUMS LIMITED , a director,	Director
	Witness	
-	Full Nan	ne
i	Address	
	Occupat	ion
Address for Notice:	10 Old Bailey, London	EC4M 7NG

0207 451 1444

Ian Ketchın

Attention.

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a deed by TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED as SECURITY TRUSTEE acting by . a director.

Tım Bee

in the presence of:	, a director,			
ar the presence of.			Director	
		Witness		
		Full Name		
		Address		
		Occupation		
	7th Floor 90 Long Acre London WC2	E 9RA		
Fax:	0207 845 6101			
	90 Long Acre London WC2	Occupation		

A250\002\EH5759832.2

WE CERTIFY THAT, SAVE FOR MATERIAL **REDACTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 859G** OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2008, THIS COPY INSTRUMENT IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT

# COMPOSITE GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

Dated 30 JULY 2014

between

ANGEL ACQUISITIONS LIMITED

and the other companies listed in Schedule 1

and

TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED as Security Trustee

Dickson Minto W.S. Edinburgh

## **CONTENTS**

1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	]
2.	COVENANT TO PAY	. 9
3.	GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY	10
4	CHARGING CLAUSE	10
5	NEGATIVE PLEDGE	. 14
6	PROTECTION OF SECURITY	. 15
7	FURTHER ASSURANCE	. 18
8	UNDERTAKINGS	. 18
9.	THE SHARES AND INVESTMENT INTERESTS	. 20
10	ACCOUNTS	. 22
11	BOOK DEBTS	. 23
12	INSURANCE	24
13	POWERS OF SECURITY TRUSTEE	. 25
14.	APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER	27
15	APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR .	. 30
16	APPLICATION OF MONIES	30
17	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	. 31
18	POWER OF ATTORNEY	33
19	PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS	34
20	PRESERVATION OF SECURITY	34
21	PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS	36
22	SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS	36
23	SUSPENSE ACCOUNT	36
24	SET-OFF	37
25	RELEASE AND DISCHARGE	37
26	CHANGES IN SECURED LIABILITIES .	37

## A250\002\EH5759832 2

27	ASSIGNMENT	38
28.	INDEMNITY	38
29	DISCRETION AND DELEGATION	39
30	CALCULATIONS AND CERTIFICATES	39
31	PERPETUITY PERIOD	39
32	NOTICES	40
33	COUNTERPARTS	41
34	GOVERNING LAW	41
35	JURISDICTION	. 41
SCHE	DULE 1 THE CHARGING COMPANIES	. 42
SCHE	DULE 2 THE SHARES	. 43
SCHE	DULE 3 THE LEGALLY MORTGAGED PROPERTY	44
SCHE	DULE 4 THE SPECIFIED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS .	. 45
SCHE	DULE 5 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE	46
SCHE	DULE 6 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIED ACCOUNT	48
SIGNA	ATORIES	50

#### GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

THIS COMPOSITE GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE is made the 307th day of July 2014

### BETWEEN.

- (1) THE COMPANIES listed in Schedule 1 (The Charging Companies), and
- (2) TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED a company incorporated in England and Wales (registered number 06942099) whose registered office is at 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA as agent and trustee for itself and for each of the other Secured Parties on the terms and conditions set out in the Security Trust Deed (as hereinafter defined) (in such capacity as agent and trustee hereinafter referred to as the "Security Trustee" which expression shall include each person appointed as the Security Trustee at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture or any additional security trustee appointed for the purpose of, and in accordance with, the Security Trust Deed).

#### WHEREAS.

- (A) The Charging Companies have entered into the Investor Loan Agreements with the Investors, pursuant to which the Investors have agreed to make available to the Charging Companies certain loans,
- (B) the Security Trustee has been appointed by the Investors and has agreed to hold the benefit of this Guarantee and Debenture in accordance with the Security Trust Deed, and
- (C) It is condition of certain of the Investor Loan Agreements that each Charging Company enters into this Guarantee and Debenture.

### NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows

## 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

## 11 Definitions from Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement

Words and expressions defined in the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement or whose definitions are imported into the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement shall bear the same meaning in this Guarantee and Debenture (including, without limitation, the recitals and schedules hereto) unless otherwise defined herein or unless the context otherwise requires

#### 12 Definitions

In this Guarantee and Debenture and the recitals hereto

"ACE" means ACE Equity Holdco (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (Registration Number MC-223591) and having its registered office at c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

"Ares" means Ares Capital Europe (Luxembourg) Sà r1, incorporated in Luxembourg (Registration Number B135825) and having its registered office at 11-13 Boulevard Grande-Duchesse Charlotte, L-1331 Luxembourg, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg

"Act" means The Law of Property Act 1925

"Bridge Investor Loan Agreement" means the loan agreement dated 23 July 2014 originally between ACE and Tosca (as lenders) and the Angel Acquisitions Limited (as borrower) in respect of a loan of an original principal amount of £1,000,000, the rights of ACE under which have been assigned to Ares pursuant to a deed of assignment of loan dated on or around 30 July 2014

"Charged Property" means the property, assets or income of each Charging Company mortgaged, charged or assigned to the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture

"Charging Companies" means each company listed in Schedule 1 (*The Charging Companies*) and "Charging Company" will be construed accordingly.

"Debt Repayment Loan Agreement" means the Ioan agreement dated on or around 30 July 2014 between the Investors (as lenders) and Healthcare Locums Limited (as borrower) in respect of a Ioan of an original principal amount of £16,163,000 00

"Default Rate" means the aggregate of four per cent per annum over the base rate for the time being of the Bank of England

"Environment" means humans, animals, plants and all other living organisms including the ecological systems of which they form part and the following media

- (a) air (including without limitation, air within natural or man-made structures, whether above or below ground),
- (b) water (including without limitation, territorial, coastal and inland waters, water under or within land and water in drains and sewers), and
- (c) land (including without limitation, land under water)

"Environmental Law" means any applicable law or regulation which relates to

- (a) the pollution or protection of the Environment,
- (b) harm to or the protection of human health,
- (c) the conditions of the workplace, or

(d) the generation, handling, storage, use, release or spillage of any emission or substance which, alone or in combination with any other, is capable of causing harm to the Environment including, without limitation, any waste

"Event of Default" means occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in either of the Investor Loan Agreements)

"Finance Documents" means the Investor Loan Agreements, the Investor Security Documents and any other document designated as such by each Charging Company and the Investors

"Financial Collateral Regulations" means the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations (SI 2003 No. 3226)

"Floating Charge Property" means the property, assets or income of each Charging Company comprised within the floating charge created by Clause 4.4 (Floating Charge)

"Group" means each Charging Company and each of their Subsidiaries from time to time and "member of the Group" shall be construed accordingly

"Insurance Policies" means the insurance policies in which a Charging Company may from time to time have an interest and "Insurance Policy" shall be construed accordingly

"Intellectual Property Rights" means the Specified Intellectual Property Rights and any other licences and patents (including applications and the rights to apply therefor), copyrights, rights in trade marks whether registered or not, trade names, rights in service marks whether registered or not, registered designs, business names, design rights, moral rights, inventions, know-how and rights in confidential information

"Investment Interests" means all shares and stock in the capital of any company (other than the Shares), debentures, securities, certificates or deposits, interests in collective investment schemes, warrants, options and any other rights to subscribe for or acquire any such investments held by or on behalf of a Charging Company in any manner whatsoever or in which it otherwise has an interest together in all cases with all rights, including dividends and other distributions arising in relation thereto in any manner whatsoever

"Investor Loan Agreements" means the Debt Repayment Investor Loan Agreement and the Bridge Investor Loan Agreement

"Investor Security" means this Debenture together with such further security as may be granted by a member of the Group in favour of the Security Trustee to secure amounts due pursuant to the Investor Loan Agreements from time to time

"Investors" means Tosca and Ares or any of them as the context may require and "Investor" shall be construed accordingly

### "Legal Reservations" means

- (a) the principle that equitable remedies may be granted or refused at the discretion of a court and the limitation of enforcement by laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, reorganisation, court schemes, moratoria, administration and other laws generally affecting the rights of creditors,
- (b) the time barring of claims under the Limitation Act 1980 and the Foreign Limitation Periods Act 1984, the possibility that an undertaking to assume liability for or indemnify a person against nonpayment of UK stamp duty may be void and defences of set-off or counterclaim,
- (c) the principle that in certain circumstances Security granted by way of fixed charge may be recharacterised as a floating charge or that Security purported to be constituted by an assignment may be recharacterised as a charge;
- (d) the principle that any additional interest imposed pursuant to any relevant agreement may be held to be unenforceable on the grounds that it is a penalty and thus void,
- (e) the principle that an English court may not give effect to an indemnity for legal costs incurred by an unsuccessful litigant,
- (f) the principle that the creation or purported creation of Security over any contract or agreement which is subject to a prohibition against transfer, assignment or charging, may be void, ineffective or invalid and may give rise to a breach entitling the contracting party to terminate or take any other action in relation to such contract or agreement, and
- (g) similar principles, rights and defences under the laws of any other relevant jurisdiction

"Legally Mortgaged Property" means the freehold, leasehold and other immovable property described in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*) together with the proceeds of sale thereof and all buildings and trade and other fixtures on any such property belonging to or charged to each Charging Company and machinery thereon and therein and all rights, licenses, guarantees, rents, deposits, contracts, covenants and warranties relating to any such property

"Planning Acts" means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, the Planning (Consequential Provisions) Act 1990, the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and all regulations made or taking effect as if made thereunder in each case as from time to time amended and re-enacted by subsequent legislation and regulations

"Property" means the Legally Mortgaged Property and any other present and future freehold or leasehold property together with the proceeds of sale thereof and all buildings and trade and other fixtures on any such property

"Plant and Equipment" means plant, machinery, computers, office and other equipment and vehicles together with the benefit of any obligations and warranties given by the manufacturer or supplier of such plant, machinery, computers, office or other equipment or vehicles and the benefit of all maintenance agreements entered into in respect of such plant, machinery, computers, office and other equipment and vehicles

"Quasi-Security" means an arrangement or transaction in terms of which a Charging Company

- (a) sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of any of its assets on terms whereby they are or may be leased to or re-acquired by any other member of the Group,
- (b) sells, transfers or otherwise disposes of any of its receivables on recourse terms,
- (c) enters into an arrangement under which money or the benefit of a bank or other account may be applied, set-off or made subject to a combination of accounts, or
- (d) enters into any other preferential arrangements having a similar effect,

in circumstances where the arrangement or transactions is entered into primarily as a method of raising any indebtedness or of financing the acquisition of an asset

"Receiver" means a receiver and manager, receiver or administrative receiver and includes any substitute receiver, receiver and manager or administrative receiver

"Secured Liabilities" means all present and future obligations and liabilities (whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally or as principal debtor, guarantor, surety or otherwise or as the equivalent obligor under the laws of any other jurisdiction) of each Charging Company to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties (or any of them) under the Finance Documents together with

- (a) any refinancing, novation, refunding, deferral or extension of or increase in any of those obligations or liabilities,
- (b) any further advances and additional facilities which may be made by any Secured Party to any Charging Company under any agreement expressed to be supplemental to any of the Finance Documents and all interest, fees and costs in connection therewith,

- (c) any claim for damages or restitution in the event of rescission of any of those obligations or liabilities or otherwise in connection with any of the Finance Documents,
- (d) any claim against any Charging Company flowing from the recovery by any Charging Company of a payment or discharge in respect of any of those liabilities on grounds of preference or otherwise,
- (e) any amounts which would be included in any of the foregoing but for any discharge, non-provability, unenforceability or non-allowability of the same in any insolvency or other proceedings, and
- (f) all costs, charges and expenses incurred by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party in connection with the protection, preservation or enforcement of its rights against any Charging Company

"Secured Parties" means the Security Trustee and the Investors or any of them as the context requires and "Secured Party" shall be construed accordingly

"Security" means a mortgage, charge, standard security, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect

"Security Trust Deed" means the security trust deed dated on or around the date of this Guarantee and Debenture between the Investors, the Security Trustee and the Charging Companies

"Shares" means the shares listed in Schedule 2 (*The Shares*) and all other shares held by or on behalf of a Charging Company in any member of the Group together with all rights, including dividends and other distributions, arising in relation thereto in any manner whatsoever

"Specified Accounts" means any current, deposit or other account with any bank, lender, financial institution or similar third party that may at any time be designated in writing as a Specified Account by the Charging Companies and the Security Trustee

"Specified Intellectual Property Rights" means the intellectual property rights in which a Charging Company has an interest as at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and detailed in Schedule 4 (*The Specified Intellectual Property Rights*).

"Subsidiary" means in relation to any company, corporation or legal entity (a "holding company"), any company, corporation or legal entity

- (a) which is controlled, directly or indirectly, by the holding company, or
- (b) more than half the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the holding company, or
- (c) which is a subsidiary of another subsidiary of the holding company,

and, for these purposes, a company, corporation or legal entity shall be treated as being controlled by another if that other company, corporation or legal entity is able to direct its affairs and/or to control the composition of its board of directors or equivalent body

"Supplemental Mortgage" means a legal mortgage or charge in respect of any other freehold or leasehold property at any time belonging to a Charging Company (other than the Legally Mortgaged Property) together with all present and future buildings and fixtures (including trade fixtures) and fixed plant machinery from time to time thereon and therein entered into pursuant to the provisions of Clause 7 (Further Assurance) in a form required by the Security Trustee

"Tosca" means Tosca Opportunity a fund incorporated in the Cayman Islands and having its registered office at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

### 13 Interpretation

Save where the contrary is indicated, any reference in this Guarantee and Debenture to.

- 131 "assets" includes present and future properties, revenues and rights of every description,
- "book debts" means all present and future book and other debts and monetary and other claims due or owing to a Charging Company and the benefit of all security, guarantees and other rights enjoyed or held by a Charging Company in relation to any of them,
- 133. a "company" includes any body corporate,
- "guarantee" means any guarantee, letter of credit, bond, indemnity or similar assurance against loss, or any obligation, direct or indirect, actual or contingent, to purchase or assume any indebtedness of any person or to make an investment in or loan to any person or to purchase assets of any person where, in each case, such obligation is assumed in order to maintain or assist the ability of such person to meet its indebtedness,
- 1 3 5 "indebtedness" includes any obligation (whether incurred as principal or as surety) for the payment or repayment of money, whether present of future, actual or contingent,
- 1.36 "intellectual property" shall be construed as a reference to the property described in Clause 4.25,
- a "person" includes any individual, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality),

- 138 a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency or department or of any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation,
- 1.3 9 a provision of law is a reference to that provision as amended or reenacted,
- 1 3 10 the singular shall include the plural and vice versa,
- 1 3.11. this Guarantee and Debenture and any provisions of this Guarantee and Debenture or to any other agreements, instrument or document are to be construed as references to this Guarantee and Debenture, those provisions or that agreement, instrument or document as amended, varied, supplemented, substituted, replaced or novated (however fundamentally) from time to time, including (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) (1) any variation, increase, extension or addition of or any variation of or to any facility or amount made available under any Finance Document or any variation of the purposes for which such facility or amount may be available from time to time and (2) in respect of this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 1312 Clauses and Schedules are to be construed as references to the Clauses of, and Schedules to, this Guarantee and Debenture as amended or varied from time to time and references to sub-clauses shall unless otherwise specifically stated be construed as references to the sub-clauses of the Clause in which the reference appears, and
- 1313 an Event of Default is "continuing" if it has not been waived
- 14 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994

The limitations on liability set out in Section 6 of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 shall not apply to, or in respect of, the covenants implied by virtue of Sections 2(1)(a), 3 and 4 of that Act on the part of any Charging Company by its execution and delivery of this Guarantee and Debenture

### 15 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

The terms of the agreements or documents under which the Secured Liabilities arise and of any side letters between one or more of the Charging Companies and/or the Secured Parties (or any of them) relating thereto are incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture the extent required for any purported disposition of the Charged Property contained in this Guarantee and Debenture to be a valid disposition in accordance with Section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

### 16. Successors and assignees

Any reference in this Guarantee and Debenture to the Security Trustee or a Secured Party shall include the successors, permitted assignees and permitted transferees of the Security Trustee or such Secured Party

## 17. Rights of Third Parties

Unless expressly provided to the contrary in any of the Finance Documents, a third party (being any person other than a Charging Company or the Security Trustee or any Secured Party and their permitted successors and assignees) has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or enjoy the benefit of any term of this Guarantee and Debenture and no consent of any third party is required for any amendment, variation or termination of this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 18 Trust

The Security Trustee shall hold the benefit of the covenants, mortgages, charges and assignments given by each Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture upon trust for the other Secured Parties in accordance with the terms of the Security Trust Deed. The duty contained in Section 1 of the Trustee Act 2000 shall not apply to the Security Trustee in relation to the trust created by this Guarantee and Debenture.

### 19. Tacking

Each Secured Party must perform its obligations under the Finance Documents (including any obligation to make available further advances).

### 1 10 Supplemental Mortgage

If any of the provisions of this Guarantee and Debenture duplicate or contradict the provisions of any Supplemental Mortgage, the provisions of that Supplemental Mortgage shall prevail

## 2. COVENANT TO PAY

### 2.1 Covenant to Pay

Each Charging Company hereby, as principal debtor and not merely as surety, covenants with the Security Trustee for itself and on behalf of the other Secured Parties that it will pay or discharge the Secured Liabilities on the due date therefor in the manner provided in the relevant Finance Document or, where no such provision is made in the Finance Documents, on demand

#### 22 Interest

If a Charging Company fails to pay any sum on the due date for payment of that sum, such Charging Company shall pay interest on any such sum (before and after any judgment and to the extent interest at a default rate is not otherwise being paid on such sum) from the date of demand until the date of payment calculated on a daily basis at the Default Rate

### 3. GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY

Each Charging Company hereby irrevocably and unconditionally -

- guarantees to the Security Trustee and the Secured Parties the due and punctual payment, observance and performance of the Secured Liabilities owing by each other Charging Company when and as the same shall become due,
- as principal debtor undertakes to the Security Trustee on its own account and on behalf of the other Secured Parties that if and each time that another Charging Company shall be in default in the payment or performance of any of the Secured Liabilities, it will on demand from the Security Trustee make good the default and pay all sums which may be payable in respect thereof as if it instead of such other Charging Company were the principal debtor in respect thereof, together with interest thereon at the rate per annum from time to time payable by such Charging Company on such sums from the date when such sums become payable by that Charging Company hereunder until payment of the Secured Liabilities in full, and
- 3.3. agrees as a primary obligation to indemnify the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party on demand by the Security Trustee from and against any loss incurred by the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party or any of them in connection with the non-payment or non-performance of any of the Secured Liabilities owing by any other Charging Company or as a result of any of the Secured Liabilities or any of the Finance Documents being or becoming void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective as against any other Charging Company for any reason whatsoever, whether or not known to the Security Trustee or the other Secured Parties or any of them or any other person, the amount of such loss being the amount which the person or persons suffering it would otherwise have been entitled to recover from such Charging Company

### 4. CHARGING CLAUSE

### 41. Legal Mortgage

Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, by way of first legal mortgage, all its estates and interests in the Legally Mortgaged Property

## 42 Fixed Charges

Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Liabilities, by way of first fixed charge

- 421 all its estates and interests in the Property (other than the Legally Mortgaged Property);
- 422 all its Plant and Equipment,
- 423 the Shares,
- 4 2 4 all its Investment Interests,
- 4 2 5 all its Intellectual Property Rights,
- 426 all licences, consents and authorisations (statutory or otherwise) held or required in connection with the business of each Charging Company or the use of any Charged Property and all rights in connection with them,
- 4 2 7 all its beneficial interests, claims or entitlements in any pension fund,
- 428 all its goodwill and uncalled capital,
- 4.29 all the book debts and monetary claims due or owing to it in any manner whatsoever,
- 4 2.10 all balances standing to the credit of any of its current, deposit or other account with any banks, lenders, financial institutions or similar third parties and the debt or debts represented thereby, other than any such balances to the extent effectively assigned to the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 4 2 11 all its benefits in respect of all contracts and policies of insurance which are from time to time taken out by it or (to the extent of such interest) in which it has an interest, other than any such benefits to the extent effectively assigned to the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture

### 43. Assignments in Security

- 431 Each Charging Company hereby assigns with full title guarantee absolutely to the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, all of its right, title and interest in and to
  - (a) the Insurance Policies, and
  - (b) the Specified Accounts.
- 432 To the extent (if any) that such right, title and/or interest is not assignable, such assignment will operate as an assignment of all proceeds received by such Charging Company under the Insurance Policies or the Specified Accounts (as the case may be) as security for the Secured Liabilities

### 44. Floating Charge

- 441 Each Charging Company hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Security Trustee (as agent and security trustee for the Secured Parties) as security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, by way of first floating charge, its undertaking and all its property and assets both present and future (including, without limitation, any property or assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots Law).
- 4 4 2 The floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture shall be deferred in point of priority to all fixed security validly and effectively created by a Charging Company under the Finance Documents in favour of the Security Trustee
- 4 4 3 Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 applies to the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture

### 45 Conversion Of Floating Charge

### 451 Conversion by Notice

If, at any time

- (a) an Event of Default occurs;
- (b) the Security Trustee reasonably believes that any assets of any Charging Company are in danger of being seized or sold under any form of distress, execution or similar process or are otherwise in jeopardy, or
- (c) the Security Trustee reasonably believes that it is desirable to protect the priority or enforceability of the Security created by this Guarantee and Debenture,

then, without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 452 (Automatic Conversion), the Security Trustee may, by notice in writing to that Charging Company, convert the floating charge created by that Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture into a fixed charge in relation to the assets specified in such notice

#### 452 Automatic Conversion

If

(a) any Charging Company charges, pledges or otherwise encumbers (whether by way of fixed or floating charge) any of the Charged Property or attempts to do so without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,

- (b) any creditor or other person levies any distress, execution or other process against all or any of the Charged Property belonging to a Charging Company,
- (c) a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation of any Charging Company, or
- (d) an administrator is appointed to a Charging Company or any person entitled to do so gives notice of its intention to appoint an administrator to any Charging Company or files such a notice with the court,

then, in the absence of any notice or other action by the Security Trustee pursuant to Clause 45.1 (Conversion by Notice), the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture by such Charging Company shall automatically operate as a fixed charge upon the property, assets or income belonging to that Charging Company which is subject to the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture forthwith upon the occurrence of such event

#### 453 Scotland

The terms of Clause 451 (Conversion by Notice) and Clause 452 (Automatic Conversion) shall not apply in respect of any property or assets situated in Scotland or governed by Scots law if and to the extent that any such conversion is ineffective under Scots law or would result in any Receiver being unable to exercise any powers under Section 72 of the Insolvency Act 1986

### 454 Assets Acquired After Any Floating Charge Crystallisation

Any asset acquired by a Charging Company after any crystallisation of the floating charge created under this Guarantee and Debenture by that Charging Company which, but for such crystallisation, would be subject to a floating charge shall (unless the Security Trustee confirms in writing to the contrary) be charged to the Security Trustee by way of first fixed charge

### 4.55 Reconversion of Fixed Charge into Floating Charge

At any time following the conversion of the floating charge created under this Guarantee and Debenture by a Charging Company into a fixed charge in accordance with Clause 451 (Conversion by Notice) or Clause 452 (Automatic Conversion), the Security Trustee may reconvert such fixed charge into a floating charge by giving notice to the relevant Charging Company

### 456 Small company moratorium

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Guarantee and Debenture, where a Charging Company is an eligible company in

terms of section 1A and Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the obtaining of a moratorium or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium (including any preliminary decision or investigation) shall not cause the floating charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture to crystallise or cause restrictions that would not otherwise apply to be imposed on the disposal of property by a Charging Company

## 4.6 Exclusion of leasehold properties

- There shall be excluded from the charges created by Clause 4 2 1 any leasehold property held by a Charging Company under any lease entered into after the date of this Guarantee and Debenture which either precludes absolutely or conditionally (including requiring the consent of any third party) such Charging Company from creating any mortgage or charge over its leasehold interest in that property (each an "Excluded Property") until the relevant condition or waiver has been satisfied or obtained
- 4 6 2 For each Excluded Property the Charging Company that is the tenant thereof undertakes to
  - (a) apply for the relevant consent or waiver of prohibition or conditions within 10 Business Days of the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and to use all reasonable endeavours to obtain that consent or waiver or prohibition as soon as possible,
  - (b) keep the Security Trustee informed of its progress in obtaining such consent or waiver, and
  - (c) forthwith upon receipt of such consent or waiver provide the Security Trustee with a copy thereof
- Forthwith upon receipt of the relevant waiver or consent, the relevant property shall stand charged by way of legal mortgage to the Security Trustee and, if requested by the Security Trustee, the Charging Company that is the tenant thereof shall grant a legal charge in relation to its interest in such property

### 5. NEGATIVE PLEDGE

### 51 Negative Pledge

Each Charging Company hereby covenants that (without the prior consent of the Security Trustee) it shall not.

- 511 create (or permit to subsist) any Security or Quasi-Security over all or any part of its present or future revenues or assets,
- 512 sell, assign, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of or part with possession of (by one or more transactions or series of transactions

- ----

whether related or not) the whole or any part of its property revenues, assets or rights (other than assets only subject to an uncrystallised floating charge in the ordinary course of business); or

5 1.3 dispose of the equity of redemption of all or any part of the Charged Property,

except as permitted under the Finance Documents

### 6. PROTECTION OF SECURITY

### 61. Notice of Assignments

- 611 Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee.
  - (a) to give promptly upon the request of the Security Trustee in the case of the Insurance Policies, a notice substantially in the form of Schedule 5 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Insurance),
  - (b) to give promptly upon the designation at any time by the Parent and the Security Trustee of any bank account as a Specified Account in the case of the Specified Accounts, a notice substantially in the form of Schedule 6 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Specified Account),

and/or such other form of notice of assignment (and any subsequent assignments hereunder) as the Security Trustee may from time to time require

6 1 2 Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee to use all reasonable endeavours to procure that each notice specified in Clause 6 1 1 is acknowledged by the recipient thereof

### 62 Notices of Charge

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that, if requested by the Security Trustee at any time, it will promptly deliver to the Security Trustee (or procure delivery of) notices of charge (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Security Trustee) executed by, or on behalf of, the relevant Charging Company and shall use its reasonable endeavours to deliver to the Security Trustee acknowledgements of each of those notices from each of the banks, lender, financial institutions or similar third parties with which any of its bank accounts charged in terms of Clause 4 2 10 are opened or maintained.

### 63 Registration of Restriction

In respect of the properties specified in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*), the title to which is, or which is to be, registered at the Land Registry and in respect of any other registered title(s) in England and Wales against which this Guarantee and Debenture may be noted, each Charging

Company shall notify the Security Trustee of the relevant title number(s) and shall apply forthwith to the Chief Land Registrar for a restriction completed in substantially the following terms to be entered on the Register of Title relating thereto

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate [or by the proprietor of any registered charge] is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the Guarantee and Debenture dated • between Angel Acquisitions Limited and others as Charging Companies and Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee for the Secured Parties (as defined therein) referred to in the charges register or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its authorised signatory "

## 64 Registration of Title

No Charging Company shall, without the previous written consent of the Security Trustee, register any person or cause or permit any person to be registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 and any subsequent Land Registration Acts (and any regulations or orders made thereunder) as the proprietor of that Charging Company's interest in the Legally Mortgaged Property or any part thereof and the costs of entering a caution against such registration shall be deemed to be costs properly incurred by the Security Trustee under this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 65 Further Advances

The obligation on the part of the Secured Parties (or any of them) to make further advances is deemed to be incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture and each Charging Company applies to the Chief Land Registrar for a note of such obligation to be entered on the Register of Title of all present and future registered freehold and leasehold property of that Charging Company

### 66 Deposit of Title Deeds

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that it shall.

- on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture, deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all deeds and documents of title relating to (a) the Legally Mortgaged Property and (b) all other freehold and leasehold property in which a Charging Company has an interest on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture (other than an Excluded Property), and
- 662 promptly upon the acquisition of any interest in any freehold or leasehold property (other than an Excluded Property), deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all deeds and documents of title relating to that property

## 67. Deposit of Share Certificates

Each Charging Company undertakes to the Security Trustee that it shall

- on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture, deposit with the Security Trustee (or procure the deposit of) all certificates or other documents of title to the Shares and any Investment Interests held by or on behalf of a Charging Company as at the date of this Guarantee and Debenture together with stock transfer forms (executed in blank by or on behalf of the relevant Charging Company), and
- promptly upon the acquisition of any Investment Interests or the accrual, offer or issue of any stocks, shares, warrants or other securities in respect of or derived from the Shares or the Investment Interest, notify the Security Trustee of that occurrence and deliver to the Security Trustee (i) all certificates or other documents of title and (ii) such stock transfer forms or other instruments of transfer (executed in blank by or on behalf of the relevant and Charging Companies) in respect thereof as the Security Trustee may request

## 68 Registration of Intellectual Property Rights

Each Charging Company hereby agrees

- 681. If requested by the Security Trustee, to register the interest of the Security Trustee in any of its Specified Intellectual Property Rights (in each registry where such Specified Intellectual Property Rights are registered) and shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute all such documents and do all acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any Specified Intellectual Property Rights, and
- of 8 2 if requested by the Security Trustee, to register the interest of the Security Trustee in any Intellectual Property Rights (other than the Specified Intellectual Property Rights) in which that Charging Company has an interest (in each registry where such Intellectual Property Right is registered) and shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute all such documents and do all such acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any such Intellectual Property Right

## 69 Notice of Charge of Plant and Equipment

Promptly upon a request by the Security Trustee, each Charging Company shall (at its own expense) place and maintain in a conspicuous place on each item of Plant and Equipment as the Security Trustee may specify a clearly legible plate, sign or label in such form as the Security Trustee may require giving notice of the charge created by this Guarantee and Debenture

### 7. FURTHER ASSURANCE

#### 71 Further assurance

Each Charging Company shall

- 711 at the request of the Security Trustee and at the cost of that Charging Company, execute in favour of the Security Trustee (or as it may direct) a Supplemental Mortgage over any freehold or leasehold property which it owns or leases, and
- 712 enter into such further or other legal assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges or other documents and do all such other things as in any such case the Security Trustee may require in respect of that Charging Company's estate or interest in any property or assets of whatsoever nature or tenure and wherever situated, for the purpose of more effectively perfecting or protecting the security intended to be provided hereby, for facilitating the enforcement of such security or to create in favour of the Security Trustee security no more onerous than the security intended to be created pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage over any property or asset of a Charging Company located in a jurisdiction outside England and Wales

### 72 Necessary Action

Each Charging Company shall take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) as may be necessary for the purposes of the creation, perfection, protection or maintenance of any Security conferred or intended to be conferred on the Security Trustee or the Secured Parties by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture

### 8. UNDERTAKINGS

### 81 Undertakings

Each Charging Company hereby undertakes with the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that it will.

- take all such action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations) and as may be necessary to create, perfect, protect or maintain all or any of the security created or intended to be created in favour of the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage,
- 8 1.2. if requested to do so by the Security Trustee and subject to the provisions of Clause 4 6 (Exclusion of leasehold properties) in respect of Excluded Properties, use all reasonable endeavours to obtain (in form and content reasonably satisfactory to the Security Trustee) as soon as possible any consents necessary to enable the assets of that Charging Company to be the subject of an effective fixed charge or assignment pursuant to Clause 4 (Charging Clause) and, immediately upon

- obtaining any such consent, the relevant asset shall become subject to such Security and that Charging Company shall deliver a copy of each consent to the Security Trustee;
- 813 notify the Security Trustee in writing of the acquisition or purchase by that Charging Company from time to time of any freehold or leasehold property (or the equivalent in any other jurisdiction) and, promptly upon such acquisition or purchase, enter into such documents (including mortgages and charges) in favour of the Security Trustee as the Security Trustee may require,
- 8.14 keep all buildings forming part of the Charged Property and all plant, machinery, works, fixtures, fittings, implements, tools and other effects thereon and therein in no worse state of repair and condition than as at the date hereof (fair wear and tear excepted) and not take, or omit to take, with regard to any freehold or leasehold property or any such buildings forming part of the Charged Property, any action which might have a material adverse effect on the value of such property,
- 815 perform and observe all covenants and stipulations restrictive or otherwise affecting the Charged Property and permit the Security Trustee or any person nominated by it free access at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice to view the state and condition thereof,
- 81.6 not carry out any development within the meaning of the Planning Acts on or in respect of the Legally Mortgaged Property or any part thereof or sever or remove any of the fixtures forming part of the Legally Mortgaged Property or any of the plant and machinery on or in the Charged Property (except for the purpose of the replacement thereof or any necessary repairs) without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee;
- pay the rents reserved by and perform and observe all the covenants, agreements and stipulations on the part of the lessee contained in any lease or leases of the Legally Mortgaged Property and not do or suffer to be done any act or thing whereby the said lease or leases may become liable to the forfeiture or otherwise be determined,
- 818 not agree, accept, suffer or permit any alteration, variation or addition to the terms of any lease or leases of the Legally Mortgaged Property without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee,
- 819 use the Legally Mortgaged Property only for such purpose or purposes as may from time to time be authorised as the permitted use thereof under or by virtue of the Planning Acts,
- 8110 within seven days after receipt of any notice or order given, issued or made to that Charging Company by any planning authority under or by virtue of the Planning Acts give full particulars thereof to the Security Trustee and (without delay and at the cost of that Charging

Company) take all reasonable or necessary steps to comply with any such notice or order and/or make or join with the Security Trustee in making such objections or representations against or in respect of any such notice or order as the Security Trustee shall require,

- 8 1 11. pay all taxes, rents, rates, duty, fees, charges, assessments, impositions and outgoings whatsoever (whether imposed by deed or statute or otherwise) which are properly payable in respect of the Charged Property or any part thereof by the owner or occupier thereof,
- 8 1 12. preserve, maintain and renew as and when necessary all copyrights, licences, patents, trademarks and other intellectual property rights required in connection with its business and not use or permit such intellectual property rights to be used in any manner which may have a material and adverse effect upon its value,
- 8113. upon request and following receipt of reasonable notice from the Security Trustee, permit the Security Trustee and its representatives, advisers and contractors, access at reasonable times to any of its freehold or leasehold properties or other premises to view the Charged Property

### 82 Failure to comply

If a Charging Company fails to comply with any of the undertakings detailed in Clause 81 (*Undertakings*), the Security Trustee may do such things as in its reasonable opinion may be required to remedy such failure and all sums expended in so doing shall be reimbursed by that Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until it is reimbursed at the Default Rate

## 9 THE SHARES AND INVESTMENT INTERESTS

#### 9 1 Shares: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing

- 911 each Charging Company shall be entitled to receive and obtain all dividends paid in respect of the Shares, and
- 9.1 2 each Charging Company shall be entitled to exercise all voting and other rights and powers attached to the Shares provided that the Charging Company shall not exercise any voting rights or other powers in any way that restricts or limits the ability of the Security Trustee to sell or transfer the Shares to any third party, conflicts with any of the Finance Documents or is otherwise likely to have an adverse effect on the value of the Shares

## 9 2 Shares and Investment Interests: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Security Trustee may at its discretion

- 9 2 1 exercise (or refrain from exercising) any voting rights in respect of the Shares or the Investment Interests,
- apply all dividends, interest and other monies arising from the Shares and the Investment Interests in accordance with Clause 16 (Application of Monies),
- 923 complete the stock transfer forms referred to in Clause 67 (*Deposit of Share Certificates*) and transfer the Shares or the Investment Interests into the name of the Security Trustee or its nominee(s), and
- exercise (or refrain from exercising) all other powers and rights of the legal or beneficial owner of the Shares and the Investment Interests in each case in such manner and on such terms as the Security Trustee may think fit, and the proceeds of any such action shall form part of the Charged Property.

#### 93 Shares: Nominations

- 931 Each Charging Company shall terminate with immediate effect all nominations it may have made under Sections 145 and 146 of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the Shares and pending such termination procure that any person so nominated
  - (a) does not exercise any rights in respect of the Shares without the prior written approval of the Security Trustee, and
  - (b) immediately upon receipt, forward to the Security Trustee all communications or other information received in respect of any Shares for which it has been so nominated.
- 932 No Charging Company shall exercise any rights under Section 145 and 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to nominate any person in respect of the Shares

#### 94 Shares: Information

The Charging Companies shall send to the Security Trustee copies of all notices, circulars, reports, accounts and other documents which are sent to holders of any Shares promptly following receipt

## 95 Shares and Investment Interests. Calls and Payments

Subject to the terms of the Finance Documents, the Charging Companies shall promptly pay all calls or other payments which may be or become due and payable in respect of any of the Shares or any of the Investment Interests If any Charging Company defaults in making such payment, the Security Trustee may make such payment on behalf of such Charging Company Any sums paid by the Security Trustee shall be reimbursed by the relevant Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until reimbursed at the Default Rate

## 96 Investment Interests: Exercise of Rights

A Charging Company shall not exercise any of its rights and powers in relation to any of the Investment Interests in any manner that restricts or limits the ability of the Security Trustee to sell or transfer the Investment Interests to any third party, conflicts with any of the Finance Documents or is otherwise likely to have an adverse effect on the value of the Investment Interests

### 10. ACCOUNTS

#### 101 Accounts: Notification and Variation

The Charging Companies

- 1011 shall deliver to the Security Trustee on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture (and on the date of any change occurring thereafter) details of each current, deposit or other account maintained by it with any bank, lender, financial institution or similar third party, and
- 10 1 2 shall not, without the Security Trustee's prior written consent, permit or agree to any variation of the rights attaching to any current, deposit or other account or close any such account where, in the reasonable opinion of the Security Trustee, such variation or closure would prejudice the security created by this Guarantee and Debenture in any manner whatsoever

### 10.2 Accounts: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any current, deposit or other such account (other than a Specified Account)

### 103 Accounts: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Charging Companies shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any current, deposit or other account without the prior consent of the Security Trustee

### 104 Specified Accounts

- 10 4 1 Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any Specified Account
- 10 4 2 After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing
  - (a) the Charging Companies shall not be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to

time on any Specified Account without the prior consent of the Security Trustee,

- (b) the Security Trustee shall be entitled to exercise from time to time all rights, powers and remedies held by it as assignee of the Specified Accounts and to:
  - (i) demand and receive all and any monies due under or arising out of each Specified Account, and
  - (11) exercise all such rights as the Charging Companies were then entitled to exercise in relation to such Specified Account or might, but for the terms of any of the Finance Documents, exercise

## 105 Accounts: Application of Monies

Following the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Security Trustee shall be entitled to apply, transfer or set-off all or any of the credit balances from time to time on any current, deposit or other account in or towards the payment or other satisfaction of all or part of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the provisions of Clause 16 (Application of Monies)

### 11. BOOK DEBTS

#### 11.1 Collection

No Charging Company will deal with its book debts other than by getting them in and realising them in the ordinary course of its business and by paying them into a current, deposit or other account Each Charging Company shall, pending such payment, hold all amounts so received in trust for the Security Trustee

#### 11 2 Book Debts: Prior to an Event of Default

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, such amount will be credited to a current, deposit or other account will be subject to the terms of the floating charge created by Clause 44 (Floating Charge) but (subject thereto) the relevant Charging Company shall be free to deal with such amount in the ordinary course of its business

### 113 Book Debts: Following an Event of Default

After the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, the Charging Companies shall not, except with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee, be entitled to withdraw or otherwise deal in any way with any amount standing to the credit of any current, deposit or other account or any Specified Account

#### 12. INSURANCE

## 121 Insurance Undertakings

Each Charging Company shall

- 12 1 1 keep the Charged Property insured (with reputable independent insurance companies or underwriters) against those risks and to the extent as is usual for companies carrying on the same or substantially similar business;
- 12 1 2 if required by the Security Trustee, ensure that each Insurance Policy relating to the Charged Property (other than any Insurance Policies in respect of which a notice of assignment has already been sent pursuant to the provisions of Clause 6 1 (Notice of Assignments)) is issued in the joint name of the Security Trustee and the relevant Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture noted thereon,
- 12 1 3 promptly pay all premiums and other moneys payable under its Insurance Policies and, promptly upon request by the Security Trustee, deliver to the Security Trustee a copy of each policy and evidence (in a form acceptable to the Security Trustee) of the payment of such sums,
- 12 1 4. perform all of its obligations under its Insurance Policies,
- 12 1 5 not make or agree to make any amendments to its Insurance Policies, waive any of its rights under its Insurance Policies or terminate any of its Insurance Policies without the prior written consent of the Security Agent, and
- 12 1 6 if required by the Security Trustee, deposit all Insurance Policies with the Security Trustee

### 12 2 Security Trustee's Powers

If at any time any Charging Company fails to comply with the terms of Clause 12 1 (Insurance Undertakings), the Security Trustee may effect or renew any such insurance on such terms, in such name and in such amount as it may consider appropriate and all sums expended in doing so shall be reimbursed by that Charging Company to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until it is reimbursed at the Default Rate

### 123 Application of Insurance Proceeds

All moneys received under any insurance policies relating to the Charged Property shall (subject to the rights and claims of any person having prior rights thereto) prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing be applied in reinstatement or replacement of the assets which were the subject of the relevant claim. After the occurrence of an Event of

Default which is continuing, each Charging Company shall hold such monies upon trust for the Security Trustee pending payment to the Security Trustee in accordance with Clause 161 (Application of Monies) and that Charging Company waives any right it may have to require that such monies are applied in reinstatement of any part of the Charged Property

#### 13. POWERS OF SECURITY TRUSTEE

#### 131 Exercise of Powers

At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, the security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture is immediately enforceable and the Security Trustee may (without further notice and without any of the restrictions contained in Section 103 of the Act and whether or not it shall have appointed a Receiver).

- 13 1 1 exercise all the powers conferred on mortgagees by the Act (as varied or extended by this Guarantee and Debenture),
- 13 1 2 exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 13 1 3. enforce all or any part of the security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 13 1 4 take possession of and retain or dispose of all or any part of the Charged Property

The power of sale conferred upon the Security Trustee and on any Receiver by this Guarantee and Debenture shall operate as a variation and extension of the statutory power of sale under Section 101 of the Act and such power shall arise (and the Secured Liabilities shall be deemed due and payable for that purpose) on the execution of this Guarantee and Debenture

### 132 Statutory Powers

- 13 2.1 The statutory powers of leasing, letting, entering into arrangements for leases or lettings and accepting and agreeing to accept the surrenders of leases conferred by Sections 99 and 100 of the Act shall not be exercisable by a Charging Company in relation to any part of the Charged Property without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee
- 13 2 2 The Security Trustee shall have power after the occurrence of an Event of Default to lease or make agreements for leases at a premium or otherwise and accept surrenders of leases without any restriction on the kinds of leases and agreements for leases that the Security Trustee may make without the necessity for the Security Trustee to comply with the provisions of Sections 99 and 100 of the Act
- 13 2 3 The Security Trustee may delegate the powers set out in Clauses 13 2 1 and 13 2 2 to any person and no such delegation shall preclude the

subsequent exercise of such powers by the Security Trustee itself or preclude the Security Trustee from making a subsequent delegation thereof to some other person. Any such delegation may be revoked by the Security Trustee at any time.

### 13 3 Consolidation of mortgages

The restriction on the right of consolidating mortgage securities contained in Section 93 of the Act shall not apply to this Guarantee and Debenture or to any Supplemental Mortgage

### 134 Mortgagee in possession

So far as permitted by law, neither the Security Trustee nor any Receiver shall, by reason of it or any Receiver entering into possession of any part of the Charged Property when entitled to do so, be liable to account as mortgagee in possession or be liable for any loss or realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable

### 135. Prior Charges

The Security Trustee may at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing redeem any prior Security on or relating to the Charged Property or may procure the transfer of such Security to itself and settle and pass the accounts to which the Security relates Any accounts so settled and passed shall be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Charging Company Each Charging Company shall reimburse the Security Trustee on demand all principal monies and interest and all losses incidental to such redemption or transfer

#### 13 6 Financial Collateral

The Security Trustee may, to the extent that any of the mortgaged property constitutes "financial collateral" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations) and that this Guarantee and Debenture constitutes a "security financial collateral arrangement" (as defined in the Financial Collateral Regulations), appropriate such financial collateral in or towards the discharge of the Secured Liabilities

#### 13 7 Value of Financial Collateral

Each Charging Company and the Security Trustee agree for the purposes of Clause 13 6 (*Financial Collateral*) that the value of any such financial collateral so appropriated shall be

- 1371 in the case of any cash, the amount standing to the credit of the relevant account together with any accrued interest at the date of appropriation, and
- 13 7 2 in the case of the Shares or the Investment Interests (or any other shares or stock of any nature whatsoever in the capital of any company), the market value thereof as determined by the Security

Trustee (acting reasonably) by reference to the information available to the Security Trustee

In each case each Charging Company and the Security Trustee agree that the method of valuation referred to above shall constitute a commercially reasonable method of valuing the relevant financial collateral for the purposes of the Financial Collateral Regulations

### 14. APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER

## 141. Appointment of Receiver

At any time after

- 14.11 the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing,
- 1412 a petition or application is presented or a resolution proposed for the winding up, reorganisation or administration of a Charging Company;
- 14.13 a Charging Company or any other person entitled to do so gives written notice of its intention to appoint an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company or the appointment of an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company, or
- 1414 a written request has been made by a Charging Company to the Security Trustee for the appointment of a Receiver or administrator,

the Security Trustee may appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver or Receivers of the Charged Property or any part thereof

## 142 Removal of Receiver

Subject to Section 45 of the Insolvency Act 1986, the Security Trustee may remove any Receiver previously appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture and appoint another person or persons as Receiver or Receivers, either in the place of a Receiver so removed or who has otherwise ceased to act or to act jointly with the Receiver or Receivers previously appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture.

### 143 Joint and several appointment

If at any time and by virtue of any such appointments any two or more persons shall hold office as Receivers of the same assets or income, such Receivers may act jointly and/or severally so that each one of such Receivers shall be entitled (save to the extent that the contrary shall be stated in any of the deeds or other instruments appointing them) to exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture on Receivers individually and to the exclusion of the other or others of them

### 14.4 Appointment in writing under hand

Every such appointment or removal and every delegation, appointment or removal by the Security Trustee in the exercise of any rights to delegate its powers or to remove delegates contained in this Guarantee and Debenture, may be made in writing under the hand of any officer of the Security Trustee

#### 145 General Powers of Receiver

Every Receiver shall have

- 14.51 all the powers conferred by the Act on mortgagees in possession and receivers appointed under the Act,
- 14 5 2 all the powers specified in the Insolvency Act 1986 (whether or not such Receiver is an administrative receiver within the meaning of the Insolvency Act 1986),
- 1453 all the powers of the Secured Parties under this Guarantee and Debenture,
- 1454 all the powers and rights of an absolute owner to do or omit to do anything which a Charging Company itself could do or omit to do, and
- 1455 the power to do all things which are in the opinion of the Receiver incidental or conducive to the powers vested in him by this Guarantee and Debenture or by law or are incidental or conducive to the gathering in by him of any assets which, when gathered in would be, Charged Property

### 146 Further Powers of a Receiver

Every Receiver may

- 14 6 1 collect in and take possession of the Charged Property or any part of it and make such demands and take such proceedings as may seem expedient for that purpose,
- 14 6 2. carry on the business of a Charging Company as he thinks fit,
- 14 6 3 provide services and employ, or engage such managers, contractors and other personnel on such terms as he thinks fit,
- 14 6 4 discharge any person appointed by a Charging Company,
- 14 6 5 raise and borrow money (either unsecured or secured on any Charged Property) on such terms as he shall think fit (including, if the Security Agent consents, terms under which such security ranks in priority to this Guarantee and Debenture),

- 14 6 6 undertake or complete any works of repair, building or development on any property of a Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed,
- 1467 grant options and licences over all or any part of the Charged Property, sell, concur in selling, assign or concur in assigning, lease or concur in leasing and accept or concur in accepting surrenders of leases of, all or any of the property of a Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed;
- 14 6 8 make any arrangement, settlement or compromise between a Charging Company and any other person which he may think expedient,
- 1469 bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon all actions and proceedings and submit to arbitration in the name of a Charging Company in relation to any Charged Property as he may think expedient,
- 14 6 10 make calls conditionally or unconditionally on the members of a Charging Company in respect of uncalled capital,
- 14 6 11 make such elections for value added tax purposes as he thinks fit,
- 14 6 12 manage, develop, reconstruct, amalgamate or diversify or concur in managing, developing, reconstructing, amalgamating or diversifying the business of a Charging Company,
- 14 6.13 redeem any prior Security on or relating to the Charged Property and settle and pass the accounts to which the Security relates so that any accounts so settled and passed shall be, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive and binding on each Charging Company and the monies so paid shall be deemed to be an expense properly incurred by him,
- 14 6 14 effect with any insurer any policy of insurance in relation to the Charged Property, and
- 14 6 15 promote or establish any new company (whether a Subsidiary of a Charging Company or not)

## 147 Consideration

In making any sale or the disposal of any of the Charged Property in the exercise of their respective powers, the Receiver or the Security Trustee may accept as, and by way of consideration for such sale or other disposal, cash, shares, loan capital or other obligations, including, without limitation, consideration fluctuating, according to or dependent on turnover and consideration the amount of which is to be determined by a third party. Any such consideration may be receivable in a lump sum or by way of instalments

# 148 Receiver as agent of the Charging Company

Every Receiver shall be the agent of the Charging Company in respect of which he is appointed which shall be solely responsible for his acts and defaults and for the payment of his remuneration

#### 149 Remuneration

Each Receiver shall be entitled to remuneration for his services at a rate to be fixed by agreement between him and the Security Trustee (or, failing such agreement, to be conclusively fixed by the Security Trustee) commensurate with the work and responsibilities involved upon the basis of charging from time to time adopted in accordance with his current practice or the current practice of his firm and without being limited to the maximum rate specified in Section 109(6) of the Act

#### 15. APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR

# 15.1 Appointment of an Administrator

At any time after

- 15 1 1. the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing,
- 15 1 2 a petition or application is presented or resolution proposed for the winding up, reorganisation or administration of a Charging Company,
- 15 1 3 a Charging Company or any other person entitled to do so gives written notice of its intention to appoint an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company or the appointment of an administrator or liquidator to a Charging Company, or
- 15 1 4 a written request has been made by a Charging Company to the Security Trustee for the appointment of a Receiver or administrator,

the Security Trustee may without further notice appoint in writing under its hand any person or persons to be an administrator of a Charging Company

# 15 2 Joint and several appointment

If at any time and by virtue of any such appointments any two or more persons shall hold office as administrators, such administrators may act jointly and/or severally so that each one of such administrators shall be entitled (save to the extent that the contrary shall be stated in any of the deeds or other instruments appointing them) to exercise all the powers and discretions conferred by this Guarantee and Debenture and by law on administrators individually and to the exclusion of the other or others of them

#### 16. APPLICATION OF MONIES

## 161 Application of Monies

All moneys received by the Security Trustee or by any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture shall be applied in the following order.

- 16 1 1 in the payment of the costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the appointment of any Receiver under this Guarantee and Debenture and the payment of his remuneration,
- 1612 in the payment and discharge of any outgoings paid and liabilities incurred by any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture in the exercise of any powers of such Receiver,
- 1613 in providing for the matters (other than the remuneration of a Receiver) specified in the first three paragraphs of Section 109(8) of the Act,
- 16 1 4 in or towards payments of any debts or claims which are required by law to be paid in preference to the Secured Liabilities, but only to the extent to which such debts or claims have such preference,
- 1615 in or towards the satisfaction of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with the terms of the Investor Loan Agreements, and
- 1616 any surplus shall be paid to the Charging Companies or any other person entitled thereto

#### 16 2 Section 109 of the Act

The provisions of this Clause 16 2 and Clause 14 9 (*Remuneration*) shall take effect as and by way of variation and extension to the provisions of Section 109(8) of the Act, which provisions as so varied and extended shall be deemed to be incorporated in this Guarantee and Debenture

# 17. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

#### 17.1 Representations and Warranties

Each Charging Company represents and warrants to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties that

- 17 1 1. It is a limited liability company duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of England and Wales with power to own its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted,
- 1712. subject to the Legal Reservations, the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in each Finance Document to which it is a party are legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations,
- 1713 the entering into and performance by it of, and the transactions contemplated by, the Finance Documents do not and will not conflict with

- (a) subject to the Legal Reservations, any law or regulation applicable to it,
- (b) its constitutional documents,
- (c) any agreement or instrument binding upon it or any of its assets or constitute a default or termination event (howsoever described) under any such agreement or instrument,
- 17 1 4 It has the necessary power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action to authorise its entry into, performance and delivery of, the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the transactions contemplated by those Finance Documents,
- 1715 all authorisations, approvals, consents, licences, exemptions, filings, registrations and other matters required by it in connection with the entry into by it of the Finance Documents to which it is a party and the exercise by it of its rights thereunder and the performance by it of its obligations thereunder and in connection with the validity and enforceability of such Finance Documents have been obtained or effected and are in full force and effect,
- 1716 this Guarantee and Debenture validly creates any security interest which it purports to create and validly evidences any Security which it purports to evidence,
- 1717 it is or has the right to be registered as the sole legal and beneficial owner of the Charged Property, free and clear of any Security or Quasi Security which is not permitted in terms of the Finance Documents,
- 1718 the Shares and the Investment Interests comprise the whole of the Shares in any company legally or beneficially owned by the Charging Companies and the whole of the investments of any kind whatsoever in any company or other entity legally or beneficially owned by the Charging Companies,
- 1719 subject to the Legal Reservations, this Guarantee and Debenture creates a valid charge over all the Charged Property securing the payment of the Secured Liabilities and, other than registration hereof pursuant to Section 860 of the Companies Act 2006 and, in the case of any property described in Schedule 3 (*The Legally Mortgaged Property*), registration hereof at the Land Registry, and, in the case of any Specified Intellectual Property Rights described in Schedule 4 (*The Specified Intellectual Property Rights*), registration hereof at the Intellectual Property Office, no authorisation, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with any person, governmental authority or regulatory body is required either for the grant by it of the charges granted hereby or for the execution, delivery or performance of this Guarantee and Debenture by it, or for the exercise by the Security Trustee of its rights and remedies hereunder, and

17 1 10 it has good, valid and marketable title to or valid leases of all of its assets including those necessary to carry on its business as presently conducted

# 172 Repetition

Each of the representations and warranties made by the Charging Companies under Clause 17 1 (*Representations and Warranties*) are made on the date of this Guarantee and Debenture and on each date that the representations and warranties contained in the Investor Loan Agreements are repeated

# 18. POWER OF ATTORNEY

# 18 1 Power of Attorney

Each Charging Company hereby irrevocably appoints the Security Trustee and any Receiver appointed under this Guarantee and Debenture and for the time being holding office as such severally to be its attorney and on its behalf and in its name to sign, seal, execute, deliver, perfect and do all deeds, instruments and/or documents and to do all acts and things which may be required for -

- 18 1 1 carrying out any obligation imposed on that Charging Company by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture, and
- 18 1 2 enabling the Security Trustee and the Receiver to exercise the rights and powers conferred upon them by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture or by law (including the right to sell, lease, convey, transfer or realise any of the Charged Property)

The Security Trustee shall have full power to delegate the power conferred on it by this Clause 18 1 and no such delegation shall preclude the subsequent exercise of such power by the Security Trustee itself or preclude the Security Trustee from making a subsequent delegation thereof to some other person and any such delegation may be revoked by the Security Trustee at any time.

#### 18.2 Ratification

Each relevant Charging Company shall ratify and confirm all acts and things done and all deeds, instruments and/or documents signed, sealed, executed and/or perfected by any attorney in the exercise or purported exercise of all or any of his powers

#### 183 Powers of Attorney Act 1971

The power of attorney hereby granted is as regards the Security Trustee its delegates and any such Receiver (and each Charging Company hereby acknowledges) granted irrevocably and for value as part of the security constituted by this Guarantee and Debenture to secure proprietary interests in and the performance of obligations owed to the respective donees within the meaning of the Powers of Attorney Act 1971

### 19. PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS

#### 191 Consideration

The receipt of the Security Trustee or any Receiver shall be conclusive discharge to a purchaser and, in making any sale or disposal of any of the Charged Property or making any acquisition, the Security Trustee or any Receiver may do so for such consideration, in such manner and on such terms as it thinks fit

# 192 Protection of Purchasers

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Trustee or its delegate or any Receiver appointed hereunder shall be bound to see or enquire whether the right of the Security Trustee or such Receiver to exercise any of its or his powers has arisen or become exercisable or be concerned with notice to the contrary or be concerned to see whether any such delegation by the Security Trustee shall have lapsed for any reason or be revoked

# 20. PRESERVATION OF SECURITY

# 20 1. Continuing Security

The security created by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and by any Supplemental Mortgage shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security for the Secured Liabilities unless and until discharged by the Security Trustee and shall not be considered satisfied by any intermediate payment or satisfaction of all or any of the Secured Liabilities or for any other reason

#### 20 2 Waiver of defences

Neither the obligations of each Charging Company under this Guarantee and Debenture nor the rights, powers and remedies conferred in respect of the Charging Companies upon the Security Trustee will be affected by any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 20 2, would reduce, release or prejudice any of those obligations or those rights, powers and remedies (without limitation and whether or not known to it or any Secured Party) including

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Charging Company or other person,
- (b) the release of any Charging Company or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any member of the Group,
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any Charging Company or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other

requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security,

- (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of any Charging Company or any other person,
- (e) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension or restatement (however fundamental and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of a Finance Document or any other document or security including, without limitation, any change in the purpose of, any extension of or increase in any facility or the addition of any new facility under any Finance Document or other document or security,
- (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security, or
- (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings

# 203 Rights Cumulative

The obligations of each Charging Company contained in this Guarantee and Debenture and all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee expressed in this Guarantee and Debenture are in addition to and independent of all other rights, powers and remedies possessed by the Security Trustee including, without limitation, those provided for in any Finance Document, by applicable law or in any other written instrument or agreement relating to that Charging Company's obligations or the Charged Property

#### 20 4 Remedies and Waivers

No failure to exercise, nor any delay in exercising, on the part of the Security Trustee or any Secured Party, any right or remedy under this Guarantee and Debenture shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right or remedy prevent any further or other exercise or the exercise of any other right or remedy

## 20 5 Partial Invalidity

If at any time any provision hereof is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such provision under the law of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby

## 20 6 Independent Security

The security constituted by or pursuant to this Guarantee and Debenture and any Supplemental Mortgage shall be in addition to and shall be independent of every mortgage, charge, pledge, guarantee or other security which the

Security Trustee or any other Secured Party may at any time hold in respect of any of the Secured Liabilities and it is hereby declared that no prior security held by the Security Trustee or any other Secured Party over the Charged Property or any part thereof shall merge in the security constituted by this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage

#### 21. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS

Neither the Security Trustee nor the other Secured Parties nor any of them shall be obliged before exercising any of the rights, powers, discretions or remedies conferred upon them in respect of any Charging Company by any of the Finance Documents or by law

- 211 to make any demand of any of the Charging Companies other than that required by the terms of the Finance Documents,
- 21.2 to take any action or obtain judgement in any court against any of the Charging Companies;
- 21.3 to submit, make or file any claim or proof in a winding-up, liquidation, insolvency or dissolution of any of the Charging Companies, or
- 21 4. to enforce or seek to enforce any other security taken in respect of any of the obligations of any of the Charging Companies under the Investor Loan Agreements

#### 22. SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS

If the Security Trustee (acting in its capacity as security trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties receives or is deemed to have received notice of any subsequent Security affecting all or any part of the Charged Property which is prohibited by the terms of this Guarantee and Debenture, any Supplemental Mortgage or all or any of the Finance Documents, all payments thereafter by or on behalf of a Charging Company to the Security Trustee (whether in its capacity as security trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties shall be treated as having been credited to a new account of the relevant Charging Company and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Liabilities as at the time when the Security Trustee received such notice

#### 23. SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

So that the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party may claim against any Charging Company or prove in any bankruptcy or liquidation of any Charging Company for the full amount of the Secured Liabilities then owing by it, the Security Trustee and each other Secured Party may, after the occurrence of an Event of Default and for so long as the same is continuing, hold in suspense account, until the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably paid and discharged in full, any moneys received, recovered or realised from or on account of any of the Charging Companies without being under any intermediate obligation to apply the same or any part thereof in or towards the discharge of the said amount. The Security Trustee and each other

Secured Party may refrain from applying or enforcing any other security, money or rights held or received in respect of the Secured Liabilities or may apply the same in such manner and order as they see fit and no Charging Company shall be entitled to the benefit of the same until all the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably paid and discharged in full

#### 24. SET-OFF

A Secured Party may set-off any matured obligation due from any Charging Company under the Finance Documents (to the extent beneficially owned by that Secured Party) against any matured obligation owed by that Secured Party to any Charging Company, regardless of the place of payment, booking branch or currency of either obligation. If the obligations are in different currencies, the Secured Party may convert either obligation at a market rate of exchange in its usual course of business for the purpose of the set-off

# 25. RELEASE AND DISCHARGE

#### 25 1 Release

Subject to Clause 25 2 (Conditional Discharge), each Charging Company shall be entitled, after the Secured Liabilities have been irrevocably and unconditionally discharged in full and none of the Secured Parties being under any actual or contingent obligations to make available any facilities of any kind whatsoever to any Charging Company under any of the Finance Documents, to require, at its cost and request, the release, re-assignment or retransfer of any of the Charged Property mortgaged, charged, assigned or transferred hereunder or otherwise in terms of this Guarantee and Debenture

# 25 2 Conditional Discharge

Any settlement or discharge between the Charging Companies (or any of them) and the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties or any of them shall be conditional upon no security or payment to the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties or any of them by any Charging Company or any other person on behalf of a Charging Company being avoided or reduced by virtue of any provisions or enactments relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation for the time being in force and, if any such security or payment is so avoided or reduced, the Security Trustee and the other Secured Parties shall be entitled to recover the value or amount of such security or payment from each Charging Company subsequently as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred

# 26. CHANGES IN SECURED LIABILITIES

Each Charging Company expressly agrees and acknowledges that the parties to the Finance Documents may from time to time agree to make amendments to the terms of those documents and may enter into such supplemental agreements as are required from time to time in order to give effect to such amendments

#### 27. ASSIGNMENT

## 27 1 Security Trustee

The Security Trustee may (without prejudice to its right to appoint any joint trustee) assign and/or transfer all or any of its rights and obligations under this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage to any person appointed as its replacement as Security Trustee (or any joint trustee) in accordance with the terms of the Security Trust Deed. The Security Trustee shall be entitled to disclose such information concerning the Charging Companies and this Guarantee and Debenture or any Supplemental Mortgage as the Security Trustee considers appropriate to any actual or proposed direct or indirect successor or to any person to whom information may be required to be disclosed by any applicable law

# 27 2 Charging Companies

No Charging Company may assign or transfer any of its obligations under this Guarantee and Debenture or enter into any transaction which would result in any of those rights or obligations passing to another person

#### 28. INDEMNITY

# 28 1 Environmental Indemnity

The Charging Companies shall jointly and severally indemnify the Security Trustee against any and all costs, losses, liabilities or expenses incurred by the Security Trustee arising (directly or indirectly) out of, or in connection with

- 28 1 1 any actual or alleged breach of any Environmental Law by any member of the Group or affecting any freehold or leasehold property now or at any time after the date of this Guarantee and Debenture owned or occupied by any member of the Group, or
- 28 1 2 any responsibility of the Security Trustee in respect of any clean-up, repair or other corrective action in relation to any actual or alleged breach or liability in respect of the business or any freehold or leasehold property now or at any time hereafter owned or occupied by any member of the Group

#### 28 2 Indemnity

Without prejudice to Clause 8 2 (Failure to comply) and Clause 12 2 (Security Trustee's Powers), the Charging Companies shall jointly and severally indemnify the Security Trustee and any Receiver against any cost, loss or liability incurred by either of them as a result of

28 2 1 the taking, holding, protection or enforcement of this Guarantee and Debenture,

- 28 2 2 the exercise or purported exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions and remedies vested in the Security Trustee and each Receiver by this Guarantee and Debenture or by law, or
- 28 2 3 any default by any Charging Company of any of the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in this Guarantee and Debenture

#### 29. DISCRETION AND DELEGATION

#### 29 1 Discretion

Any power or right which may be exercised by the Security Trustee or any Receiver under this Guarantee and Debenture may be exercised in the absolute and unfettered discretion of the Security Trustee or Receiver and without any obligation to give reasons

# 29 2 Delegation

The Security Trustee and any Receiver may delegate (either generally or specifically) by power of attorney or any other manner to any person any right, power, authority or discretion conferred on it by this Guarantee and Debenture (including the power of attorney granted under Clause 18 (Power of Attorney)) The Security Trustee and any Receiver may make a delegation on the terms and conditions (including the power to sub-delegate) that it thinks fit Any such delegation shall not preclude the subsequent exercise, any subsequent delegation or any revocation of such right, power, authority or discretion by the Security Trustee or the Receiver

#### 30. CALCULATIONS AND CERTIFICATES

#### 301 Accounts

In any litigation or arbitration proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture, the entries made in the accounts maintained by the Security Trustee or a Secured Party are prima facie evidence of the matters to which they relate

#### 30.2 Certificates and determinations

Any certificate or determination by the Security Trustee or a Secured Party of a rate or amount under this Guarantee and Debenture is, in the absence of manifest error, conclusive evidence of the matters to which it relates.

#### 31. PERPETUITY PERIOD

The perpetuity period applicable to the trusts contained in or arising from this Guarantee and Debenture shall be one hundred and twenty five years from the date hereof

#### 32. NOTICES

# 32.1 Communications in Writing

Any communication to be made under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture shall be made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, may be made by fax or letter

#### 32 2. Address

The address and fax number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of each party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture is that identified with its name below or any substitute address, fax number or department or officer as the party may notify to the other parties by not less than 5 Business Days' notice

## 323 Delivery

- 32 3 1 Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture will only be effective.
  - (a) If by way of fax, when received in legible form, or
  - (b) if by way of letter, when it has been it has been left at the relevant address or 5 Business Days after being deposited in the post postage prepaid in an envelope addressed to it at that address,

and, if a particular department or officer is specified as part of its address details provided under Clause 32 2 (Address), if addressed to that department or officer

32 3 2 Any communication or document to be made or delivered to the Security Trustee will be effective only when actually received by the Security Trustee and then only if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer identified with the Security Trustees' signature below (or any substitute department or officer as the Security Trustee shall specify for this purpose)

### 324 English Language

- 32.4.1 Any notice given under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture must be in English
- 32 4 2 All other documents provided under or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture must be
  - (a) in English, or

(b) If not in English, and if so required by the Security Trustee, accompanied by a certified English translation and, in this case, the English translation will prevail unless the document is a constitutional, statutory or other official document

#### 33. COUNTERPARTS

This Guarantee and Debenture may be executed in any number of counterparts and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Guarantee and Debenture

#### GOVERNING LAW

This Guarantee and Debenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law

# 35. JURISDICTION

# 35 1 Jurisdiction of English Courts

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Guarantee and Debenture (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Guarantee and Debenture) (a "Dispute")

## 35 2 Convenient Forum

The parties to this Guarantee and Debenture agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes and accordingly no party to this Guarantee and Debenture will argue to the contrary

# 35 3 Concurrent Proceedings

This Clause 35 is for the benefit of the Secured Parties only As a result, no Secured Party shall be prevented from taking proceedings relating to a Dispute in any other courts with jurisdiction. To the extent allowed by law, the Secured Parties may take concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions

IN WITNESS whereof this Guarantee and Debenture has been executed by each Charging Company and the Security Trustee as its deed the day and year first above written

# THE CHARGING COMPANIES

Name Registered Number

Angel Acquisitions Limited 08389984

Healthcare Locums Limited 04736913

# THE SHARES

Registered Owner	Name	Class of Shares	Denomination of Shares	Number of Shares
Angel Acquisitions Limited	Healthcare Locums Limited	Ordinary	£0 10	847,799,742
Angel Acquisitions Limited	Healthcare Locums Limited	Preference	£0 10	225,558,530

# THE LEGALLY MORTGAGED PROPERTY

None

# THE SPECIFIED INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

# PART 1

# TRADE MARKS, SERVICE MARKS, DESIGNS, COPYRIGHTS AND APPLICATIONS THEREFOR

None

# PART 2

# PATENTS AND PATENT APPLICATIONS

None

# PART 3

# OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES

None

# FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE

To [Insurer]

Date [ ]

Dear Sirs

We hereby give you notice that we have assigned to Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee (the "Security Trustee") pursuant to a composite guarantee and debenture entered into by, among others, us in favour of the Security Trustee dated • all of our right, title and interest in and to the proceeds of [insert details of relevant insurance policy] (the "Insurance Policy")

With effect from your receipt of this notice we hereby instruct you to

- (1) note the interest of the Security Trustee on the Insurance Policy, and
- (11) disclose to the Security Trustee, without further approval from us, such information regarding the Insurance Policy as the Security Trustee may from time to time request and to send to it copies of all notices issued by you under the Insurance Policy

With effect from the receipt by you of this notice, all rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for the benefit of ourselves arising from the Insurance Policy belong to and are exercisable by the Security Trustee.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the acknowledgement on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Trustee at Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA marked for the attention of Tim Bee

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of

Limited

# To Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA

We acknowledge receipt of the notice in the terms set out above and confirm that we have not received any notice of any previous assignment or charge of or over any of the rights, title and interest and/or benefits referred to in such notice and that we will comply with the terms of that notice

We further confirm that no amendment or termination of the Insurance Policy will be effective unless we have given 30 days written notice thereof to the Security Trustee

For and on behalf of •

By

Dated

# FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIED ACCOUNT

To [Account Bank]

Date [ ]

Dear Sirs

We hereby give you notice that we have assigned and charged to Toscafund GP Limited as security trustee (the "Security Trustee") pursuant to a composite guarantee and debenture entered into by, among others, us in favour of the Security Trustee dated • all of our right, title and interest in and to account number •, account name •, sort code • (including any renewal or redesignation thereof) and all monies standing to the credit of that account from time to time (the "Account")

With effect from the date of your receipt of this notice any existing payment instructions in relation to the Account are terminated

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the enclosed acknowledgement on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Trustee at Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA marked for the attention of Tim Bee

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of

• Limited

To Toscafund GP Limited, 7th Floor, 90 Long Acre, London WC2E 9RA

We acknowledge receipt of the notice of assignment and charge in the terms set out above in respect of the Account (as described in those terms) and confirm that

- (a) the balance standing to the Account at today's date is ●, no fees or periodic charges are payable in respect of the Account and there are no restrictions on (i) the payment of the credit balance on the Account [(except, in the case of a time deposit, the expiry of the relevant period)] or (ii) the assignment of the Account to the Security Trustee or any third party,
- (b) we have not received notice of any previous assignments of, charges over or trusts in respect of, the Account and we will not, without the Security Trustee's consent (a) exercise any right of combination, consolidation or set-off which we may have in respect of the Account or (b) amend or vary any rights attaching to the Account, and
- (c) all existing payment instructions in relation to the Account are terminated and all payments and communications in respect of the Account shall be made to the Security Trustee and we will not, without the Security Trustee's consent amend or vary any rights attaching to the Account

For and on behalf of •

By

Dated

# **SIGNATORIES**

EXECUTED and DE ANGEL ACQUISIT acting by in the presence of		D	
•		1	Director
		Witness	
		Full Name	
	·	Address	
		Occupation	
Address for Notice	10 Old Bailey,	, London EC4M	7NG
Fax	0207 451 1444		
Attention	Mark Phillips/Mike Dennis		
EXECUTED and DELIVERED as HEALTHCARE LOCUMS LIMIT acting by , a d in the presence of		D ector,	 Director
		Witness	
		Full Name	
		Address	
		Occupation	
Address for Notice	10 Old Baıley	, London EC4M	7NG
Fax	0207 451 1444		
Attention	Ian Ketchın		

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a deed by TOSCAFUND GP LIMITED

as SECURITY TRUSTEE acting by , a director,

in the presence of

Director

Witness

Full Name

Address

Occupation

Address for Notice

7th Floor

90 Long Acre

London WC2E 9RA

Fax

0207 845 6101

Attention

Tım Bee